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Dear Harry

I thank you for your long letter of 6 Instant and for the
Dening Handbook that you enclosed. Attached please find that Handbook
and a photocopy of the manuscript that I turned over to Niel Gunson for
publication in the Journal.

I have only had a chance to glance at the Handbook, but
what I have seen is very impressive. I shall go through it more
carefully for the re-write of my thesis, after I teturn from Canada.
I have taken a copy of it.

My plans have been slightly affected by the birth of a new
McCall, just after midnight on 16 Instant. Edwin Matthew Irving is
coming along fine, in Canberra Hospital, and Julia expects to be coming
out either Sunday or Monday. It is a good thing that her mother is here
to help us out.

I did manage to get a manuscript typed up of the Peruvian
business and delivered it (uncorrected) to Niel. I told him about the
strictures on time, but hoped that he wouldn't nind. When I see him
next week, I will make the more important corrections and then he can
do with it as he wishes. If I just had a bit more time, I could go
through another draft or two. Still, even this re-write of my thesis
material has been helpful towards my main goal (the dissertation). I^
send you a corrected copy and if you have the time, I would appreciate,
your comments. Niel has already pointed out, on my Table One, that
MQura," is probably in the Tuamotu's and therefore not Rapanui, so I'll
have to delete that one.

I appreciate your comments on Chapter Two and acknowledge
that "^it needs considerable work, especially in the chronological arrange
ment xvhich I do not want. Your suggestion of thematic lines is what

I agree on the changes inT had intended, but did not carry off.
emphasis needed. As for Section 4, I
''

go to Sydney on 11 August to
ead" through Le Messager de Tahiti, in the Mitchell and hope to come
^  with some good stuff between 1880 and 1890. I leave Sydney for
Vancouver on 15 August. If I am lucky, I will have some good material
from that run-through.

Your comparative comments were particularly useful as you
irnow I am very weak in the comparative Pacific literature. I will show

my Conclusions section, when I write it, for your comments.
I am informed that if the enclosed manuscript is accepted

.  j-iie Editorial Meeting next week, then publication will be in early
fa76 I ^ great difficulty in restraining myself
i nm'putting in too much, but Niel seemed to think that a manuscript of

iind 5,000 words or so would be most appropriate. I look forward to
full study in order to display better some of the Peruvian material.

Best wishes to Honor and I look forward to hearing from you,



19th CENTURY LABOUR RECRUITT-'ENT

AND EASTER ISLAND^

By

Grant McCall

The use of Islander laboiir for the development of 19th century European

projects in the Pacific has a long and iniquitous history, the details of

which are coning to light in an increasing number of detailed studies of the

period. IJhile so-called "Kanaka" labour featured throughout the whaling and

plantation period, the first wide-scale scheme of labour importation in

Polynesia was the Peruvian Labour Trade that operated between 1862 and 1863.
0.

Considering its short life, the trade and its consequences wrought unparalleled

havoc on a number of island populations.

This was particularly the case with Easter Island which, possibly due

to its relative proximity to the Peruvian coast, suffered the greatest irrpact

of this venture; its effect being to terminate that island's isolation from

the rest of the world and to-obliterate the highly developed culture of that island

for all time.

Situated over 1500 km from its nearest inhabited neighbour, Pitcaim

Island, Easter Island is the most remote of the Pacific Islands. Nevertheless,

since its discovery in 1722 by the Dutch navigator Jacob Roggeveen, at least

5^3 vessels called at Easter Island before 1862. The outsiders who either
1  ̂ . 2 .

landed or wie'ghed anchor off the shores of the island known as Rapanui to its

^esent-day inhabitants, came for a variety of reasons - discovery, trade,
DC

supplies^pid plunder. The natural resources, then as today, have never been

considered rermrkable and their most desired product has been the people

themselves.
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By the 19th centiory, Easter Island was known to sailors for its wonen.

Moerenhout (1837:26-7) in 1830, was aware that there was "much trafficking in wcaren,"
eal

and he mentions the fear that vener^ diseases were prevalent on the island at

that time. Cook's men, in 1774, had noticed the paucity of women in their

time and just over a decade later,(Beaglehole 1961:337-60), La Perouse (1798)

opined that females had been hidden at the time of the famous British naviagor's

visit. As for his visit, the Frenchman (La Perouse 1798:6) noted, " ... they

[the women] offered their favours to all those who would make them a present."

With unusual perspicacity. La Perouse (1786:17-8) varote that some of the females

were forced into this trade against their will:

They brought to us by force young girls of thirteen or
fourteen years of age, in the hope of receiving pay for them;
the repugnance of those young females was a proof that in this
respect the custom of the country was violated. Not a single
Frenchman made use of the barbarous right which was given him;
and if there were seme moments dedicated to nature, the desire and

consent were mutual, and the women made the first advances.

Women were often brought on board ships that did not otherwise land, as for

exarrple, in the case of Dupetit-Thouars (1841:226-7) who stated that in three

of the five canoes that approached his ship, an attractive woman was placed

in the prow of each. Gumming's (ms. :10) coy remark that the Ensign of the

Discover, had much to do with the Islanders while they lay off Ilangoroa for five
h avc beo'''-

days in 1827 may''be a reference to such behaviour. "Te'ree," beloved of Captain

Bishop (1967:40-2) in 1795, was brought on board the Ruby, along with other maidens,

precisely for the purpose of sexual intercourse with the crew of that ship.
rt.

When strong surf prevented the landing of the Pilgrim, in 1801 (Del^o, 1817:356)

in addition to attenpting to attracEthe crew with bunches of sugar-cane,

yams, and other produce, the wonen also made clean: by signs what commerce tliey

offered.
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While probably not a canmercial venture, three ships reports contain a

reference to Islanders actually wishing to be taken off the island. Captain

Raine (De Salis, 1969:37-8), in 1821, refused to take an Islander vjith him

who expressed a desire to leave, v/hile quarter of a century earlier. Bishop

(1967:37-8) notes that two young men specifically requested to be taken to

"Britanniee," which he refused to do. In about 1806, a South whaler. Captain

Page, took a young man to England with him and his story is told in

retrospect in a navs story that was reprinted in a Nev/ England newspaper:

A few days since the youngest son of Crang-a-low, King of Easter
Island, was baptised at Rotherhithe Church, in the name of
Henry Easter, after the island. This prince came to England six
years ago, in the ship Adventure, Captain Page, South Whaler, who
touched there to refresh the crew, they having scurvy. When he
departed. King Crang-a-low was supposed to be 125 years old,
scarcely able to walk, and his hair as white as milk and the
father of twenty three children, all of whom were alive. This
young prince is, in every respect, a handsome man, about 22
years of age, five feet eight inches high, is very tractable, and
will, in a short time, be able to civilize his countrymen, if an
opportunity should offer (W£u:d 1967:230).

Accc^ding to an Islander oral historical accounts, at least one other Islander
3

voluntarily went off on a whaling voyage, to serve as crew.

In only seven of the over fifty accounts is there a mention of European

fear of Islander attack v/hile of these, in five of these there are actual

accounts of attacks. Looking at them in chronological order it seems that while

sore Captains feared attack, others enjoyed good relations, often even in the

same year. Captain Chapman (ms.), in 1821, remarks, "This island [Rapanui] is

inhabited by savages," though five months earlier Captain I^ine of the Surry

had enjoyed excellent relations (De Salis 1969:37-8). Before Raine, Captain

Shubael chase had conducted extensive trade (Ward, 1967:230). In 1827, the

Discoverer landed no personnel for fear of attack, but appeared to have had no

difficulties during their stay.
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La Perouse (1798:15-6) experienced some pelting by stones in 1786, when

seme of his crew attenpted to recover a grapnel stolen from the ship, but it

wasn't until Captain Mams, in 1806, and Captain Windship, in 1809, that Islanders
4

are alleged to have actually repelled visitors by attacking them. Von Kotzebue,

(1821:16-8), in 1815, appears to have received a very chilly reception, though

initial relations were amicable with trading of vegetables for small bits of

old iron. VJhen a landing v/as attenpted, his men were repulsed, apparently

without provocation^.

A story that enjoyed a certain notor^ity in the last century was the surprise

attack on Captain Beechey's men, who attempted to land in 1825 at Cook's Bay,

kncs'mi locally as Hangaroa. Two published accounts exist of this incident

(Peard^l972, Beechey^ 1831), though the manuscript version by Belcher, in the

Turnbull Library is also full. Cough (1972:73) is quite incorrect when he states

that "Prqgeveen had a similar experience; a friendly receiption gave way to

native hostility;," as the Dutch difficulties are relatable to Undermate

Cornelius Mens's timidity, as the original Dutch account makes very clear

(see Comey 1980:12-3; Sharp 1970:94-5). In the Beechey case, it more

difficult to explain just why an attack should ensue from initial friendly

relations. Peard believed that the Islanders may have feared that the foreigners

v/ere about to move off, without further trading and so wished to prevent their

departure. Beechey (1831: 48), from his vantage point on the deck of HMS Blossom

note^: "About this time [of initial landing] one of the natives, probably a

chief, with a cloak and head-dress of feathers, was observed...hastening from the

huts to the landing place, attended by several persons with short clubs."

VJhat Beechey's men suffered may be related to some onshore conflict between the

newly arrived chief and those already present, the result being a confused

decision to pelt the outsiders.
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Of all the incidents of conflict report, however, it is usually the

European v7ho has escaped unscathed and therms only one report of a foreigner's

death on the island, a£d""Siat v/as of Robert F. V7eek.s, boat steerer, who was

murdered by Rapanui in 1856 (Ward 1967:239-41).

On the other hand, attacks on Islanders by Europeans did occur in the

last century, even before the 1862 outrage that I shall recount shortly. The

most notorious episode occurred in 1805 and is known frcm several sources, though
5

all attempts to identify a schooner Nancy from New London, have failed. It was

a well-known incident and even in the reports on violence against Europeans by

Rapanui, newspapers and other corrmentators refer to the Nancy as an explanation

for the attacks. Delan^ (1817:304-8), who arrived to the seal island of

Mas Afuera (Suan Fernandez Group) in 1800 & 1805 provides a good description of

the, then, infant industry. Between 1800 to 1804 between ten to ̂ enty ships
I  (V

called at the small island for the purpose of sealing. The trade beg^ betasreen

Canton and the sealers in about 1797. Delano estimated that

as many as three million seals may have been carried off up to 1804, he

himself being an important participant in the trade. He reported that he

had been "... at the place when there were the people of fourteen ships,

or vessels, on the island at one time, killing seals" (Delano 1817:306). Such

work required labour and as Easter Island was the closest inhabited (and

otherwise unprotected) territory to the sealing grounds, it is not surprising

that unscrupulous captains looked to the Rapanui as a labour pool. In 1805,

most reports agree, the Nancy carried off 12 men and 10 women. While the

females remained on board, the men, given the first opportunity, jumped overboard

to escape, most of them perishing as the ship v/as far out to sea. Englert (1970:

150-1) reports a tradition that one of tlaese desparate Islanders actually managed

to sujo/ive the long sv/im and returned to his island. Contemporary reports recorded

that the lane/ returned to Rapanui for another raid shortly after their first one.
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The only other reported incident of this nature was that of the whaling

ship Pindos, in 1822. An enterprising first-mate, Waden, gathered up a

quantity (by force?) of wonen and took them to his crew mates as prostitutes.

The following day, the Islanders were released and thrown back into the

water, left to make it to shore as best as they could. Shortly afterwards, on

the same day, Waden amused himself by proving his marksmanship with a rifle.

He felled an Islander on shore with a single shot, "son coup d oeil,

as he is known to have bragged. Hov/ many other such actrocities might have

occurred is unknown, as the purpetrators undoubtedly would have preferred
jifiL

anonymity to infamy for their deeds. There is a veiled note/Thcxnson (1891:

465) that another similar act may have been performed by Captain Rugg of the

Friend at sane time not specified.

The final year of relative internal harmony for Easter Island was

1862. In February, the Edwards, a New England whaling vessel, passed seme

miles distant, viiile the French vjarship, Cassini, hove off-shore for a few

hours in September^jar early October. Captain Lejeune believed that there

were between 1200 to 1400 Islanders inhabiting the place and reported that

trade was initiated with potatoes, taro, but only one chicken. The Islanders

came out to his ship, with their produce, after he had sent two scout boats

into shore to initiate contact. He reconmended to the Sacred Heart s Missionaries

in Valparaiso, to whom he spoke in October of that same year, that they might

do well to send a mission to the island, for he believed the people to be docile
7

and frxendly.

Previously accounts of what has been euphemxstically termed The Peruvian
i 1 •:

Labour Trade" in books about Easter Island (e.g. Englert 1948:lo2-o, Merusujc

1940:42-3), have erred in asserting that the trade lasted from 1859 to 1862 and

I am at a loss to explain just how this misconception could have come about.



The great public edifices of Peru had been built with slave labour, irrported

from Africa, but this trade came to an end in the early 19th century with the

emerging South American republics banning the practice (Ponce 1967).

Indigeneous Indian labour had from early in the country's history, proven to

be unsatisfactory, the Indians being able to escape too easily fron their forced

labour. For a while, the "sons of the celestial kingdom," as the hua chiao

or oversease Chinese, were known in Peru, served on the work gangs in agriculture,

the guano exploitation, and other capacities where cheap imd plentiful labour was

required (Millones 1973:75-6). Though Chinese immigration was officially abolished

in 1856, many ships continued to arrive and it is estimated that between 1861 and

1875, as many as ̂ ^00,000 "coolies" were broughtto Peru. One researcher is of

the opinion that unsettled conditions due to a series of civil wars in south and

southeast China may also have pronpted Chinese to leave their homelands (Millones

1973:69).

Every month in the 1860s the front page of the main Lima newspaper.

El Comercio, carried a detailed account of the export of guano, extracred

principally frcm the Chincha Islands, located about 20 kms off of the coast frcm
0

the p|b:t of PiscO||-also came frcm ahlf a dozen other less iirportant sources.

An economic historian observes:

Frcm the late 1840's to the early 1880's, guano dominated
the ccmmercial and financial life of Peru. It was the

country's main ccmmodity export for most of the period, and
being the property of the state, the principal source of
government revenue as well (Mathew 1970:112),

Contrary to previously published information, my evidence frcm the French and

Peruvian primary sources mentions nothing of any Polynesian involvment in the

extraction of guano. Even if this were so, the impact of this activity upon the

labour force of the country must have been enormous. Often, owners of cotton

or sugarcane plantations \-rould alternate their peons on agriculture and guano

extraction, so the whole of the rural econorrry was boimd up witii giuuio. Ivlioai Chinese

loiijur h/ujorre less available in the late 1850's, deserters mid petty crinrLnais weiu
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often brought in to do the work under extremely difficult conditions (/epes

1972:314-7). Mathew (1970) shows how the British market influenced Peruvian

guano work and the demand for the fertilizer caused prices to cone to a peak

in late 1862. The labour, however, was not available in Peru and tlie

Peruvian government was beccmming worried.

A ret^QTspective view of the Polynesian episode pijblished in May of 1863

in the leading Lima daily. El Comercio, pointed to the alternatives that

had been open to the labour contractors in 1862. According to the article,

the hacienda owners, in whose interests the trade was principally promulgated,

had three options: raise their rates of pay in order to attract Peruvian workers,

bring well-paid colonists from Europe to establish thOTselves as small

landholders/or look for cheap, nearly slave labour.^ On 20 April, 1861, the

Peruvian Government gave in to the labour contractors and Chinese rmmigration,
y

mainly from Macao, was instituted. In April of 1862, however, the Irxshman, B)ime,

of seeimingly reputable credentials applied for and was granted a permit to

import a quantity of natives of the Southwest Pacific Isl£mds, for

agricultural and domestic services.

Joseph Charles Byrne was a flamboyant Dubliner whose business was people

and that was a scarce commodity in the Perof of the 1860's. He had worked in

labour migration schones, his greatest success being with Natal in the 1840 s,

(Byrne 1848). His fortunes turned, however, in the 1850's, and he persued

immigration schemes in Brazil and Ireland. According to a report in the

Sydney Morning Herald in 1863, By^e had tried his hand in Melbourne, with an

American called Clarke, ^'flien their ventures in Australia failed, they applied

for and were granted an otpion to a permit to introduce 1,000 irrmigrants into

New Caladonia. The venture never took place, though Byrne played upon the

ingorance of his contacts in Peru to convince them that he had even became a

French citizen in order to carr\' out the venture. B^Trne was on his last le^js,

v/h^n he turned uo in Lima with his schene and his healtii was poor. It is saneliow

aoororriate that he died on the return tidp of tiie first ship to brina P^lvTieisans
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When the 151 ton ship, Adelante docked in Callao on 13 September, 1862,

it carried frcm Tongareva 266 Islanders, including men, wcitien and children.

Their contracts, apparently duly signed and attested, were sold for US$200 the

men, $150 the women and $100 the boys. If British Consular information on this

voyage is accurate, then the ship's owners must have collected over $35,000 for

the voyage. In contrast to the Chinese voyages, where at least ten percent of the

"cargo" would perish en route, only one woman died and four children were bom on

the Adelante's voyage. One editorial at the time even noted the benefits that

would accrue to the Polynesians, being brought to a civilised country such as Peru.

At this point, evervone seemed happy and, within the space of a few weeks, twenty-

six more ships were outfitted and formally entered the trade.

But, even as the first license was being granted to Byrne, some notes of

caution were being published in the Lima Press. This caution turned to criticism,

with one editorial terming the proposed importation of Polynesians, scandalous"

already in September of 1862.

Sources contemporaneous to the events I describe suggest that while the labour

trade eminated frcm Peru, it can in no sense be considered a wholy Peruvian

venture. Both Government and private gicitzens of the country were strongly

repu|61sed by the forced importation of human chattel. The Government s granting

of the initial permission was in good faith and contingent upon the conditions of

recruiting "colonists," as they understood than. Once it had been demonstrated

conclusively that things were not as they had seemed, the trade was officially

baned and ships were irtpounded. The caution and then the outrage of private citizens

suggests that the desire for illicit labour was confined to a discreet group within

Peruvian society and by no means indicates a general Peruvian participation in

these dispicable events. Among the crew members and ships captains who

oarticipated, there were men frcm many countries. Ships from neighbouring Chile

were also involved in seme of the more distasteful incidents (see Veliz 1961:

147-52)



Though ths iniatoE' of ths txa.d.G had. tcavGllod to distant Cook Islands fon

his "colonists," most of these maritime entrepreneurs in human labour focused

their attention on Easter Island. In late December of 1862, as many as eight

ships assembled off the western coast of Rapanui, intent on recruitment .

When I elicited oral history from ray Rapanui informants in 1973-74,

on the Peruvian episode, I received what I first took to be contradictory

statements. From one source, I was informed that two Islander brothers had
ri't 8 '■« -i

volunteered to sign on a Peruvian vessel and had even had time to take a formal

leave-taking. From another, I heard that the trusting Islanders, as they had

done many times before, swam out to the visiting ship and when they had climbed
on board, they were forced into the ship' s hold and. locked up. But, the version
most wdLlifknown to Rapanui says that the foreigners arrived at Hanga Piko and there
threw on the ground mirrors, pipes, and other trinkets, i^en the Rapanui approached
to collect the objects, the numerous crew fell upon them. Those who tried to
escape were trussed up like sheep ("haro mamoe'] in Rapanui) and thrown into small
boats to be taken out to the ships that were waiting. The attacks were

launched also at Hangaroa and Tahai and one informant told me that an attack was

also executed at Hanga o Hoonu, all of these likely places for ship s

anchorage.

Sources in recorded testimoj^ at a trial of some of the Captains epatured
in French territorial waters held in Papeete and afidavids taken by British

Consulor officials now confirm these different Islanders traditions as all being

correct, but representing the different approaches taken by the different

cajjtains to acquiring their desired quota of Rapanui. The account of Rapanui having

been enitced on board and then the hatches being closed is related in testinx:)p
in Be Messager de Tahiti , for 27 June, 1863. A similar episode was reported

for another island in Cov;an (1936 : 39- 41) . Testimony appe^iring in ^ Messager de



T&hiti for 30 Novsnber, 1863 confirms the story that trinkets were thrown on the ground

and that Rapanui were scooped up when they tried to retrieve the desired objects.

However, in that same transcript of testimony. Captain Suasategui claims that

his Rapanui "colonists" were voluntary and produced, to the Chilean Consul in

Callao, a number of signed and witnessed contracts. He testified that when

he saw the expeditionary force forming up off Rapanui in late December, 1862, he

departed. That sane Rapanui may have been eager to sign on for labour in Peru

is suggested by the information that I present above of Islander willingness

to depart in the pre-1862 period. It is possible that Suasategui's colonists"

may have been willing, as he affirms.

The principal assault on Easter Island occured in December of 1862, but

evidence from archival sources suggests that less violent contacts might have been

made earlier. Early in Novanber, the Serpiente Marina was detained in Papeete

with two Rapanui on board. However, subsequent to the Decomber attack, the island

appears to have been used as a half-way point, where Islanders fron points further

west were transferred to ships to take them to Pern. British Consulor records

in Lima suggest that another violent attack occured on Easter Island in Tiarch of

1863.

In Appendix 1, I have listed those vessels known to have called at Rapanui during
U,j' V ->r_ "

this period, including the numbers'collected, when known. This listing of 18
^  •

ships represents two thirds of those ships known to have participated xn the Peruvian
12

affair. I have listed these for separate consideration in Table One,

According to official Peruvian sources, who by mid-1863 were as disgusted with the

trade as the foreign governments who had earl^ier protested, a total of 2069

Polynesians were known to have arrived in Callao. If this is so and my top figure

of 1707 Rapanui landed is correct, then that means that over 80 percent of those

Polynesians who are known to have landed at Callao were frcm Easter Island. If we allov>7

that -bz/o or three hundred additional' might have been killed in the violent raids

or landed elsev/here, then Rapanui's contribution to 18th century Perxruaii prospei'ity

could have been as high as 2,000!



But, Peru did not prosper from the trade and the individuals involved in it

even less so. Eleven of the twenty-seven registered ships in the trade were lost.

Captains were fined and jailed but most unfortunately, the Polynesians died in

huge nijmbers.

As early as February, 1863 the following notice was published:

We have been assured that the Polynesians that are in
the countryside are dying of smallpox; thus we call
attention of the Goveimment to thrs so that, if it is
convenient, they might be vaccinated. After all,
these unfortunates have been brought to our country,
it is necessary to consider their life, for they
are after all men. (El ccmercio 19 February, 1863)

As I mention above, there is little in the primary documentation to suggest that

any Polynesians worked on the guano islands. There is, hov;ever, much evidence

in the contanporary press in Luna for their employment as peons on large country

estates and as dcmestics in prosperous Lima households. A number of Polynesians

appeared in the Peruvian press, as escapees frcm dcmestic service and substantial

rewards were offered for the recovery of "the goods."

In El Comercio of 30 January, 1863, scarcely a few months after the trade

began, the following notice appeared:

LOST POLYNESIAN - Wednesday, at 5 o'clock in the rooming
a boy of 12 years of age, called Carlos and one of those
recently arrived on the ELIZ|3^ MASON, left the house of
his patron on Marcelo Street, No. 60. He is dressed in
blue coloured cotton trousers and a light shirt. Will the
person in whose custody he may be found please be so kind
as to advise the occupant of the store at Number 75
Arvohia Street, where a reward will be given.

/\bout a half a dozen such notices, of varying length and ccmposition, appeared

in the Peruviean press during 1863, together witlVsimilar requests for lost or

escaped blacks, Chinese, or Indian dcmestic servants. In the morning edition of

El Ccmercio for 13 October, 1863, an announcement that may be relevant to Easter

Islanders taken to Peru appears:
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On t±ie eleventh Instant at 4 o'clock in the afternoon, a
canaca called 4" his land Vacajiva and here Fransisco ,
Alvarado fled frcm the house of the Count of Cartago; he is a boy of
16 or 17 years of age and his description is as follows: dressed in
black pants, straw hat and shirt sleeves. A reward is offered
to the person who delivers the sought person to the above residence
and one who hides him shall suffer the penalties stiinpulated in
the Police Code.

Vakahiva, as the Islander's name would be more properly spelled, is the name

of a Rapanui known to have been taken to Peru, but who was never heard from
o

again. In another, similar announcement, "cotodberi [ko Toroveri],"

another Rapanui known to have been abducted is sought by his "patrdn, the

merchant Cipriani brothers (El Comercio 22 April, 1863, afternoon edition).

Though the names are the same, it may only be a coincidence, of course.

The general Polynesian reaction to their predicament was melancholia

and commentaries about Polynesians dying appeared in the Peruvian Press of 1863.

But, melancholia was only part ot the depredations that the Polynesians had to

endure. The records of only one Charity Hospital ("La Beneficencia") in the

Lima-Callao/ survive and they reveal a good deal about the coiipositxon ot the

population and the conditions under which it lived,
f

Over hal^ of those who died frcm disease came from tlie middle-class

Lima Parish of Santa Ana, while the next largest numbers were from equally

prosperous areas of Cercado and Sagrario, as presented in Table 3. Two thxrds

of those who died were male and the ages range frcm 2 males who died at six

months to 1 woman who died at forty-five years. About a fifth of those males

who died were only twenty years of age and the same proportion appertains for

the females. With respect to the diseases that attacked them, sixty five

of both sexes died of pulmonary or intestinal diseases - the maladies of the

poor and ill-kept while only about a sixth perished from smallpox (See Table 4)
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Fran March, 1863 onwards, a growing number of Islanders were retained in

a large warehouse in Callao^awaiting return to their islands. Events conspired,

however, to depirve the Polynesians of even this possibility of happiness for on

•ISie 24 May of 1863, the Lima newspapers routinely reported that an American whaler,

the Ellen Snow, had been put into quarenteen as there was evidence of smallpox

on board. Less than a fortnight later, her crew was allowed to land and what

followed was one of Lima's worse smallpox plagues in decades.

The citizenry of Callao-Lima were concerned for their health and flocked

to receive the (then) newly discovered vaccine. The Polynesian captives, however,

had no such advantages and a "concerned Chalaco (citizen of Callao)" while

lamenting the unfortunate circumstances of the Polynesians, nevertheless reccnmended

that the warehouse be cleared with all haste, so as to protect other members of the

conmunity.

These tragic events did not go unnoticed, for objections to the trade were

published in a variety of forms in Peruvian sources, until and after the trade

was officially terminated in March of 1863. One form of criticism produced by

Peruvians took the form of soi^imes very subtle satire of those involved in the
trade. In the morning edition of El Conercio of 24 January, 1863, the following

announcement appeared in the "Comercial Section":

POLYNESIANS AT FOUR REALES

Two are for sale, female and male - the woman is old, has
false teeth, plaited hair like a corpse ["trenz^de
muerto"], drooling mouth and gives cries like a cui
[a guinea pig]. The man is a gander of first class
hide, doesn't suck much who can be managed like any
ignorant thing.

Applications to be made in Lima in Polvos Azules Street, in
the study of a big Doctor [Doctorazo] and in Vivero Street,
also in the second Colon Street, just before the second
block of Barlovento Street.

I suspect that the occupants of these addresses were kiia\n to be involved in the

Trade, and judging frcm information given to me about the rmportance of the addresses,

rray have been pror^inent politicians. The descriptions of the two PolsTiesians

"for sale", use.rterms appropriate for the selling of horses and otlier farm

ar.imals, the irony of which not escape tiie targets of tlie iest.
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More subtle still was the notice appearing in El Comercio for 14 March, 1863,

again apparently referring to those with political or ccmmerical (or both!) '{r^tcrtst

in the iirportation of Polynesians:

THE POLYNESIAN LANGUAGE is taught
grammatically and in a short time in Polvos Azules
Street number 192.

Also, wanted to buy a Canaca
who has ccme voluntarily to Peru, under stipulated
conditions and with a contract signed by him.

Throughout the course of the discussions pro and con in the Peruvian dailies,

a number of individuals emerged as politically interested in the traffic or caught

dealing in the human cargo. The reactions of these people varied, probably

according to degree of involvement, but unknown (to me) factors may have
phc.

determinedMifferent reactions. For example, in June of 1863, the

wealthy planter, John Montero publically proclaimed his innocense of any

wrong doing and offered to send those Polynesians on his properties back to

their homes at his own expense. Though owners of large agricultural tracts

("haciendas"), were criticised as a class, it was the urban politician and

merchant who often received his reprimand for his part in the trade on an

individual level. A prosperous trader named Juan Etockendorff announced in

the afternoon edition of El Gonercio for 13 March, 1863 that he was

disassociating himself frcm his import trade and the "cargo" of Polynesians

brought under his auspices in the ship Genera. This appears, however, to have

only been so that three days later he could advertise Chinese contracts for

sale. Within a week of the announced Dockendorff change, a severe editorial

appeared in El Comercio, condemning the selling of human beings, no matter

under what legal fiction. The public version of the affair ends with a

satirical "advertisement" p\±)lished in El Ccmercio on 26 March, of the same

year:



POLYNESIAN DOMESTIC SERVANTS - The contracts of six
men and ten women of those recently arrived on the "Genera" has
been transferred. These ccme frcm a different island than the
others; they are more robust and healthy, not one of them has
beccme sick; they know how to wash a bit and they learn
anything they are taught en just a few days; for the business,
see Dockendorff and Company, Callao, Commercial Street Number
86.

HDwever, protests also came frcm the international community in Lima. Leading

the Consular protests in Peru was the French Charge d'Affaires, de

Lessepps. The involvement of the French Government in protesting the trade was

undoubtedly prompted by humanitarian concerns, but the contemporary conflict between

Mexico and France may also have played a part in making de Lesseps an implacable foe.

At that time, France was attenpting to place the Emperor Maximilian on the throne

iw Mexico. The Mexican Nationalists f^pesed- this and Peru, as well as other

South American nations, opposed France and supported Mexico. Through the years

1862 and 1863, when the diplomatic protests were most active, benefit balls were

being held in Lima to collect money to support Mexico. The Battle of Puebla,

a turning point in the French-Mexican conflict, and raging during much of the

Labour Trade's existence, received wide coverage in the Lima Press, including

maps of the battle lines, and strong affirmations of support. Anti-French statements

were made in newspaper^; editorials and even suggested in Government communications.

The French Charge d'Affaires took a very stern line with the Peruvian government

over the Polynesian scandal and insisted that all Polynesians be rounded-up and

transported back to their islands, whether they wished to or not. A scouting party

was even organised to ccmb the coijntryside around the farming region of Chancay,

a short distance frcm Lima, in order to bring in any Polynesians found there.

Just over thirty/resulted frcm the search and after seme of them were

dispatched on a French ship, the Consul appears to have dropped his interest

in the affair.



In the second half of 1863, when already a number of Polynesians had perished frcxn

disease, the growing menance of their enfirmed state prcnpted the outfitting of

two ships to take what remained of the more than two thousand Islanders who had

originally arrived. Together, the two ships boarded only about forty percent

(842 persons) of those known to have arrived a few months earlier in Peru. The two

ships (see Appendix I) were the Barbara Gomez and the Adelante.

The return of the Polynesians was conducted in most haphazard manner, with

the Chilean Consul even suspecting that Captains of seme smaller shipments had

accepted Peruvian Government money for transport, only to discharge their

human cargo on the high seas, once out of sight of land. The two documented

transport schemes supported by the Peruvian Government took place in August

and September of 1863.

The Barbara Gcmez did manage to reach its destination, Polynesia,
, 1

but of the 360 Polynesians who/beg^n the voyage, only about fifty managed to

survive to be debarked in Rapa, in the Austral group (see Hanson 1970:33).

The Naval Officer who acccnpanied the trip, Guilleramo I^ick, was ̂ o horrified
on i't

by the events of his voyage to Rapa, that he refused to ccmment|,to the Lima Press

when he returned.

The fate of the other ship, the Adelante, which had initiated the trade, was

even more disastrous. The Captain apparently lost his way and became unhinged by the

scenes on board his ship. In a tempest, the ship floundered off of the Cocos

Islands, presumably loosing all of the nearly four hundred Polynesians on board.

According to a report piJblished in El Comercio in December of 1863, the Captain

subsequently conmitted suicide. Though survivors of the wreck were spied by a

whaler in October of 1863, the disease prevalent among the ill-fated group

prevented any rescue (Ward 1967:201-2).
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When I had embarked upon my research in Peru in 1973, I had had hopes of

possibly discovering sane descendants of Polynesians who might have escaped fron

the fate that doomed so many others. A tradition exists on Easter Island that

when a contingent of Rapanui returned horie, one of them. Roe 'a Tea, carried

back news that two of the Rapanui who had voluntarily signed on for the Peruvian

venture had settled in Peru and were living with "Peruvian women." They sent

back blankets and other trinkets to their relatives. Further, a Rapanui named

Hito, who worked on whalers in the late 19th century, when visiting a Peruvian

port he said was "Pakatanayo" (the northern port of Pacasmayo?) had met a

Peruvian wotian married to a Rapanui.

When I mentioned it^ hopes of finding descendants to a Museum Director in Lima,

she infoimied me that the term "canaca" was a derisive term for a lazy person, but

was unaware that the word was Polynesian. Other, older Peruvians were famxliar with

that use of the term, including Angel Narvay, whose nurses in the Callao "Casa Asilo

de las Hermanitas de los Ancianos Desanparados (As^ylum House of the Sisters for

Abandoned Elderly)" claim was bom in 1855. However, Kany (1960:177-8) wrote

that "canaca" means a member of "the yellow race," in Chile, but also signifies

^  a brother keeper. He further carments that a slang verb, canaquear, means to

"frequent brothels." I was lanable to discover any trace of the Polynesians,

either in popular memory ̂ or, for that matter, in any degree of depth in Peruvian

contemporary historical sources.

The older Rapanui today however, rsnember those events of over a century
7 hi,

ago and recount with some please the story of a Peruvian who returned to the
•rrforrtliSn't.

island sometime in the 1880's: I will quote from the Rapanui original, as Leon

Tuki told it to me:

VJhen the Pemvians arrived here, they tied up people. Tori arrived. He
went to a place called Ana o None. The bullets of the rifle of a man
[Peruvian slaver] ran out, VJhen he [Tori] arrived at Ana o Nono, he met
this Peruvian man. Tori ran after him, \"Jhen Tori ran after him, he was
very close. There, and by a hut, he shouted, "He'^', young nian, \v'here
are you running off to? Turn around and lets fight. Turn arcond and let's
fight. Let's make war. Where are you running off to?" He ran to Aiia
o done. He ran away to Pou a Rare. "Hey young man, where are you running
to. Vi'ait ... " Tori was right behind him. "Turn ai'ound so Uvit we Ccm
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fight. Where are you running off to?" Tori could easily have thrown his
niata^ [spear] and have killed that man, but he did not want to throw
at the man's back. "Turn around with your face at me so that I can
throw and we can fight." That's how he shouted. "Where are you
running off to, young man. Turn around and let's fight." They arrived
at Apina Nui. They arrived at the same time. Tori shouted the same
thing. "Hey, young man - where are you running off to? Turn around and
let's fight. They arrived at Puku Paka Kina. Well. He shouted
again the same phrase - Tori's cry. [The Peruvian] captiied that part of the
phrase that said, "he pea." At the same time, a boat from the [Peruvian]
ship came ashore, having seen the chase. It came to shore this boat
of the ship. The man ran away and arrived at the place called Apina Iti and
there he left. At that place, that man went directly down to the
boat. This man [Tori] stayed up above. They took him [the Peruvian] away.

Now, this [next part] happened in the time of Paea [Tati Solomon, Manager
of the Easter Island ranch for John Brander from 1878 to 1888]. Now, a ship
arrived here and that same man [Peruvian] came. He was the one that in

ppp'Jnu''pascuense is called by the name, "Tono Panioro". I don't know what is his original
name, but they always said "Tono Panioro." That was the name that
they called him. Well, then. Paea went on board the ship and the man asked
Paea. You see, when that ship arrived, this man came in that ship. "Ask when
you go back on shore if there is a man who was around when we came here
to tie people up who chased me and shouted, "ki pea taua." In Spanish he
asked this. His conversation was in Spanish, but the part, "ki ̂ a taua," was
just like that. Ask about a man who chased after me and said this please -
"he pea." He shouted, "he pea." And when we arrived at Apina, I climbed into
the boat. Well, he saved ray liYe. I tell you, I want to m^t that man.
Perhaps he died o^ perhaps he still lives. I wamt to give him ^
presents like blankets, tobacco, "paha«paha" [meaning unknownpfo
I want to give gifts to that man because he didn't kill me and for that that
he shouted at me." Good. Paea said, "All right,"
and returned to shore and asked about who chased a Peruvian^^m^ in the time
when the Peruvians came to tie up the Rapanui and shouted, 'Ki
pea taua." That is the only thing that is rememberd, "ki pea, ki pea,"
That was the only phrase that he caught. Tori said that he was ■^e man and
that he chased him fron Ana o Nono to Apina Iti. "I will tell ^old
fellow, what this phrase means that I shouted at him. I said. Don't run
away young man. Turn around with your face to me so that we c^ fight.
I don't want to throw my spear at your back. I could have easily thrown
my mataa at your back and have killed you but I didn t want to. ^ What
I wanted was for you to stop, turn your face so that we could fight
together. That's what "he pea" means when I shouted it at you. That's
what he told that man. That's what old man Tori said. Paea returned to
the ship. He told the man. "That man is alive. He explained the
C(&ersation up thssei on the ship. "That phrase that was shouted at you
means, 'Where are you going, turn around your face, wait and let's fight. '"
"That's what it means." "He didn't wish to cut you with his mataa from
behind. You would nov; be dead with his mataa. He didn't wish to cut you
frcm behind. 'Turn your face first and wait so that we can fight. ' That
was the phrase that he shouted at you. That was the phrase when you fled.
That man is here." [The Peruvian said] I love this man and I want to
carry him my gifts, blankets, tobacco, pipes."
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On the Peruvxan side, there was disgust in sonie quaters that those

involved in the trade had gotten off so lightly. Aside from losses of a few ships,

the trial in Papeete by the French, and the few confiscations of Polyneisans landed

after the official termination of the trade in March of 1863, none of the major

figures whose names figured as sponsors of ships were inconvenienced. Just after

the official section of El Comercio on the morning of 7 September, 1863, the

following small notice appears:

Polynesia
It is said that the Honorable Consul named

for Tahiti, has been lost.

That the Vice-Consul has ccme back, that

the salaries paid to both ha^been ...

That the Peruvians involved in the affair

ought to be very rich, such that they ranain silent,
seeing that their interests are so well taken care of
by the I4inistry. - Stupid people.

El canaca curioso [Incpiiring Canaca]

The episode, which lasted less than twelve months and proved so traumatic

to so many innocent Islanders ceased to be a topic of interest in the Peruvian
^ -t ; < p f' ̂ 4^,

newspapers of the tojne^ The matter was closed, as far as the Government was

concerned and the whole distasteful affair was brushed under the collective

ca|^et of the Peruvian people. Ptmy of the same ships involved in Polynesian

labour importations, returned to merchant cargoes and the huge China Clippers

once more began depositing their coolie cargo.



NOTES

1. This work is based upon eighteen months fieldwork on Easter Island and

four months spent in archive research in Chile and Peru, all between

1972 and 1974. The month spent travelling in Peru was financed jointly by a

Ph.D. Scholarship in the Department of Anthropology and a special grant

frcm the Department of Pacific and South East Asian History, both of the

Australian National University. Professor H.E. Maude has supervised

the research and provided me with valuable information and direction in

it^ research. I am grateful to Dr. Michael Young, who has read earlier

versions of this paper and to Dr. Niel Gunson, who assisted me in the

'"a 1 5 --a J'.
publication of it. „ • ■ d a

2. "Rapanui," is probaJjly a name that is new to the island, dating no further

irr-trilrfe' than the 1860's when, for the first time, the Islanders came to

meet other Polynesians (See Metraux 1940:33-6)« Today, however, when

speaking in their own language, the Islanders use "Rapanui," to refer to

themselves, their language eind their in this paper,
I* M

I will respect their choice and only vary "Rapanui," with Easter Island

for stylistic purposes.

3. There is an ethnohistorical account of Henry Easter, known as Ure Hina 'a

Tuke in Rapanui, and I intend to publish this text in the near future.

There is also another, long tale recorded by me concerning Toroveri, who went to

sea as a whaler, which includes a detailed discription of his initiation

ceremony. These texts, and the one which closes this present paper, were

collected by me from Leon Tuki, an extremely knowledgeable Islander who

was kind enough to recount this information to me.

4. Captain Raine's account was originally published in the Sydney Gazette

of 9 June 1821. This is reprinted in part in a privately published

biography of Raine, publis'hed by his£granddaughter (DeSalis 1969:37-8).

The account of the visit of the Discoverer in Novaiiber of 1827 is coiitaiiie^i

Ln the rran'oscript journal of Hugh Cunrning (n.d.), held in tlie Mitchell Library-,
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Sydney. The visits by Captain Alexandre Adams, in the Kahumana, in 1806, and

Captain Windship in the Albatros in 1809 are mentioned by von Kotzebue

(1821:20).

5. The identification of the schooner Nancy, said to have participated in the

1801-1802 raid on Easter Island, has proven extremely difficult. Richard C. Kugler

"f 0 '^c!
Director of the Old Dartmouth Historical Society Whaling Museum (New Bedore-,

Massachusetts, USA) knows only one ship that might have been involved in the

incidents carrying the name Nancy. She was a brig of Salem, Massachusetts,

and sailed on a sealing voyage in 1821-2, to the Falkland and South Shetland
Covn.}-

Islands'! Edouard A. Stackpole, Director of the Nantucket Historical
•-N

Association, Peter Fougler Museum (Nantucket, Massachusetts, USA), is "more

or less certain" that this Nancy from Salem was the probable one.

(both personal ccmmunications).

6. The Pindos affair was reported by the trader Moerenhout (1837:278-9).

7. My infometion on the visit of the Cassini to Easter Island in late

1862 cones fron a letter fron Father Padome Olivier to the Very

Reverend Father Rouchouze, Head of the Sacred Hearts Main House in Paris.

The letter is dated "Valparaiso, December, 1864," and is contained in

Lettres des Missionaires, pages 159-67. A copy of this and other documents

dealing with Easter Island and contained in the Rone Archives of the Sacred

Hearts Mission, were kindly sent to me by Father Amerigo Cools.

8. The precise reference is to the short-lived magazine of Lima's principal

newspaper, El Conercio .^called Revista Americana and is on page 236 of the
edition of 20 May, 1863. The town vs. country conflict, still prevalent

tcxiay, I am informed, appears to have been the case in 19th century Peru,

for other navspaper writers of the time attribute the impetus of the

Labour Trade to the greed of holders of large land tracts ("haciendas") of

agricultural land. In an -unsigned article in El Cor^arcio for 10 Octolxjr,

1362, the cheap price of the impor-tation of Polynesians is noted

and their suffering linked to hacienda a-ners. In a nvire satirical stylo,
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a writer who signed himself "un Chalaco [resident of the port of Callao] ,

shames the hacienda ownders for their greed, affirming that they

ought to seek legitimate colonists and pay them fairly (El Comercio

13 October, 1862).

9. Professor Derek Freeman, Department of Anthropology, The Australian

National University, collected a number of inportant documents in the

Foreign Office and other London archives between 1946 and 1948. His

copybook has been extremely useful in locating a variety of sources and

as an aid to an overall comprehension of the Peruvian Labour Trade.

A main source of information on Byrne is contained in Hattersley (1950:

102; 109-10). Byrne tells his own story in a rare two volume work published

in 1848 (Byrne 1848). For details on Byrne's activities in New Caledonia,
9

I am indebted to Dr. Bronwyn P. Doi:^las (Department of Hxstory, La

Trobe University), who supplied me with the references to the

Bulletin Officiel de la Nouvelle Caledonia (1858) and to other sources

discussing Byme^ early activities.

10. References in El Comercio commenting adversely upon importatxons of

Polynesians and their appalling treatment appeared in editions of 17

and 20 September, 10 October, 2 and 24 December all of 1862. IVtore

notices opposing the trade were published in El Comercio throughout 1863.

11. This present article is mainly concerned with what happened to the Easter

Islanders involved in the Peruvian Labour Trade and a sketch of what befell the

Polynesians in general when they arrived in Peru. Much detailed information

has been left out here as a fuller and more b^radly conceived study of the

entire episode from a variety of sources and perspectives is cjurrently under

preparation by Professor H.E. Maude. I will assist him in this work

regarding the Easter Island and seme of the Peruvian source material.

I am greatly indebted to Professor Maude who provided me witli access to much

of the non-Easter Island material cited in this paix^r.



12. The ships that I have listed in Appendix I of this paper are only those

that were connected with Easter Island. A more complete listing is to be

contained in the forthconing study (see note 11). Even so, our sources

are limited to the principal Penivian port of Callao. Especially
1 fV

after the banning of the trade 1^5? March of 1863, captains fearful of

confiscation of their "colonists," may have diverted to secondary ports,

such as Islay, Pisco, or Pacasmayo, in the north. One landing is reported

in it^ listing of a Chilean ship, in Lambayeque, and others may

have followed a similar course. , , , ^
of iVc

13. My search in the Archives of El Comercio extended frcm the^irst of

May, 1862 to the first of March, 1874. These'dates, including th©^e o-f th<i.

labour trade at its height, simply reflect ray lack of time and have

no other significance. As the Sociedad de Beneficencia Publica of Lima,

I checked Register entries from the end of 1862 to the end of 1867.

Again, time prevented rae from going any further. The last entry of

a Polynesian death in the records of this Charity Hospital was for 10

August, 1867.

14. In El Comercio, the morning edition of 5 October, 1863, the

correspondent fron Callao for the paper regrets the treatment that the

Polynesians have received in Peruvian hands, but also asserts the necessity

to clear the warehouse of its "dnagerous" contents and to send the

Polynesians back to their islands. Ten days later, the Adelante departs on

its ill-fated voyage. Earlier, a similar article appeared in El Comercio

for 19 August, 1863 (afternoon edition) and just nine days later, the

Barbara Gomez departed with its assumed charges, most of whom perished.

In both cases, the writers were aware that those Polynesians who would

board those cramped vessels had contiacted smallpox.
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SHIPS CERTAIN TO HAVE CALLED AT EASTER ISLAND

Ship

Misti

Jose Castro

Barbara Gomez

Serpiente Marina

Rosa y Carmen

Hermosa Dolores

Teresa

Jeoncora

Cora

Males Females Children Total

2

18

9

2

78

138

19

4

3

14

35

22

24

I

21

15

22

2

128

160

203

43

6

MINIMUM TOTAL 270 99 16 788

SHIPS THAT PROBABLY CALLED AT EASTER ISLAND

Ship

Urementa y

Ramos

General Prim

General Prim

Bello

Margarita

Eliza Mason

Rosalia

Males Females Children Total

31

126

174

Island given

"Necua"

"Pay-Pay"

"Frinaley"

"Oura"

"Estea/

Paypay"

"Hayram"

ADDITIONAL TOTAL 532 208 22

TOTAL POSSIBLE NUMBER OF RAPANUl LANDED IN PERU

lOI

142

140

149

73

12

86

37

12

10

154

238

196

191

Certain Ships

Uncertain Ships

Males F emales Children Total

270 99 16 788

532 208 22 191

MAXIMUM TOTAL 802 307 2 8 1707

lable J - Murnher of Rapanui landed in Peru.

Source: As indicatei.1 in

Appendix I.



MALES = 101 TOTAL - 155 FEMALES = 54

A^es at Death

AGES 6. mos. 4 6 7 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 22 23 24 25 26

NUMBERS 2 1 1 2 4 4 1 4 5 2 3 2 20 3 2 4 4 2

AGES 28 30 34 36 40 ?

NUMBERS 1 6 1 1 1 25 = 101 Males

AGES 10 11 12 14 15 16 17

NUMBERS 2 1 1 7 1 4 2

18 20 22 23 24 25 27 28 30 31 45 ?

4  12 2 2 3 2 1 1 4 1 1 3

= 54 Females

Table 2 - Frequency of age of death for Polynesians in
Lima Charity Hospital, "La BenefIcencia", 27 March,
1862 to 10 August, 1867.

Source: Hospital Register
Archive Numbers: 02536 to 02538



Poz de Policia Huerfanos San Bartolme San Marcelo

San Sebastian Cercado

26

Sagrario

-26

San Lazaro

17

Santa Ana

155 TOTAL

Table 3 - Origin of Polynesians who died in Lima Charity
Hospital, "La Beneficencia", 27 March, 1862 to
10 August, 1867.

Source: Hospital Register
Archive Numbers: 02536 to 02538,



3!

Tuberculosis 21 25 46

Disentary 20 9 29

Smallpox 16 9 25

Diarrhoea 14 0 14

Pneumonia 8 4 12

Measles 5 3 8

Fever 5 0 5

Typhoid 2 0 2

Anemia 1 0 1

"Gastric Attacks" 1 0 1

Burn 1 0 1

Cancer 1 0 1

Colic 0 1 1

Delirium Tremens 1 0 1

Hepatitis 0 1 1

Cardiac arrest 0 1 1

Yellow F'ever 1 0 1

Misc. 4 1 5

Total Fatuities 101 54 155

Table A - Fatalities by disease and sex in the Lima
Charity Hospital, "La Beneficencia", 27 March.
1863 to 10 August, 1867.

Source: Hospital Register.
Archive Numbers
02536 to 02538.
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THE AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL UNIVERSITY

Department of Anthropology
THifRESEARCH SCHOOL OF PACIFIC STU]THif^EARCH SCHOOL OF PACIFIC STUDIES

IN REPLY PLEASE QUOTE:

BOX 4. P.O.. CANBERRA. A.C.T 2600 TEL. 49-3111

Telegrams: "Natuniv" Canberra

'Canberra, 21 January, 1975

Maude, Esq.,
77 Arthur Circle,
Forrest, A.C.T, 2603.

Dear Harry:-

I thank you for your letter of 21 December and for the three
photographs that you sent to me. I will have them copied by the
Visual Aids Unit, as soon as they have some spare time - that is, when
HNZAAS ends, I will then return them to you.

I look forward to your starting on the Peruvian business. I would
still like to work with you on this, if you are still interested in the
collaboration. In any case, all of the material that I gathered in
Peru is at your disposal. A few days ago, I received some more micro
film from the French Archives in Paris, but I have yet to look at it.

Tony Hooper, from Auckland University, has arrived to take up a
three week appointment as a "Visiting Feilow" in our Department. During
his work, with Judith Huntsman' on the Tokelaus, he came accross a number
of references to the Peruvian business. He gave me an interesting re
ference, which I am trying to track down. According to him, there is
a story reputedly told by a Polynesian who was in Peru. His discription
of their captivity in a warehouse in Callao tallies with the material
that I collected in Lima, The riference is:

James Cowan, Suwarro Gold (Published in
New Zealand)

If I find the reference, I will have copies made of it for both of us,
I will be starting soon on that chapter of my thesis which deals

with the Peruvioui period and when it is finished, I will send you a copy

of it for your criticisms.

If you would like to meet Hooper, please ring me here at the

office so that we can arrange a time convenient to you.

Best wishes to Honour and I look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,
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THE AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL UNIVERSITY

(  * THE RESEARCH SCHOOL OF PACIFIC STUDIES
IN REPiwY PLEASE QUOTE:

BOX 4, P.O., CANBERRA, A.C.T. 2600 TEL. 49-5111

Telegrams: **Natuniv" Canberra

Department of Anthropology

OF: JL

Mr H.E. Maude,
77 Arthur Circle,
FORREST. A.C.T.

Dear Harry,

3 September 1973

I enclose a copy of Grant ilcCall's report on his transactions
in Peru carried out on behalf of the Departments of Anthropology
and Pacific and South East Asian History.

I shall send the appendices that accompanied the report on
to you after I have discussed them with Deryck Scarr.

I do hope that Grant McCall has unearthed information that
will be of real use to you.

With every good wish.

Yours ever.

Derek Freeman
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Report on th.e Peruvian Research/<( 3 1 AUG'-'Tj jv )
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This research is the result of a proposal-vjnade from

Easter Island on 25.5.972, the funds for which were appro^d

later on that same year. It was financed by funds provided by

both the University and from a private grant made by H.E, Kaude.

The Report itself is divided into the following sections:

I. leads and information about Peruvian arrivals

on Easter Island;

II. Itinerary;

III. Results in:

A. Mollendo-L'atarani;

B. Lima:

1). Personal contacts;

2). Archives consulted;

3). Other investigations.

C. Ca,llao;

D. PisGO-Chincha Islands;

E. Arica-Tacna.

IV. Other results;

V. Budgetary notes.

I. Leads and information about Peruvian arrivals on Easter Island

Before embarking on the research in Peru, I was given

good reasons to believe that new information might be discovered

if a personal visit was made to the principal known sites connect

ed (or, reputed to be connected) with the arrival of Polynesians

to Peru in 1862 and in 1863. These "leads" and other information

are summarised under five major headings:

A. Traditional and modem stories

Throughout my stay on Easter Island from 1.4.972 to

28.4.973, I received stories and other information about the arri

val of so-called Peruvian ships to the Island, the experiences of

some Pascuense who were in or near Peru and the stories which

have been passed down from those who returned from their exper

ience in Peru in the last century. These stories may be con-
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sidered in two categoriesr 1). Traditional stories, known by

several of my infornants, with some even being published in past

reports by others over the years about the Island, and, 2), The

"modem" stories, where various Pascuense have claimed in recent

years to have met descendants of their unfortimate (and distant)

ancestors in or near Peru.

1). The traditional stories

Several persons know that the so-called Peruvian ships

arrived first just off Apina and landed a group of men there.

First, these men scattered gifts such as tobacco, mirrors, pipes,
etc. in front of the pascuense there assembled and as the Islanders
scrambled to pick them up, the invaders attacked and trussed up

many of the people. Those who resisted were shot. Later, more

men attacked and took people at Hanga Roa and at Tahai, along

the same coast. Another version holds that the slavers landed

first at Hanga Piko and there threw their gifts out. In another

part of the Island (possibly the north coast), a ship drew up to
the coast, and Pascuense swam out to meet it, as was their custom

with new arrivals. They began to dance and to sing and then went

below decks to continue the party. As night fell, the hatch was

q\iietly closed and the ship set sail. Two persons came up for
air from the festivities and discovered the trick and they and

various others jumped over-board. Only four of those who juj^ped

managed to get underway swimming and only one actually made it

to shore. He did this, according to Lazaro HOTU lEA, by swimming
and alternatively floating on his back and warming his heart with

his hands. Another version says that the three attacks were at

Hanga Piko, Tahai and at Hanga o Hoonu,

One family preserves the tradition that two of their

members, Macoraacona and Upa Ha (brothers of Veriarau, who has

passed the story down to the Tepano family) went voluntarily,
with their respective pregnant wives. They came to the cave

where Veriamu was living as a young girl and said goodby to tbeir

yoinger sister, preferring to walk to the ship, rather than be

tied up and dragged.

The oldest woman on the Island, I.taria Tekena, claims

that her older brothers were taken on the Peruvian ships but,
also, that others volintarily signed on previously to thie- Ameri-
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whaling vessals. These events occured before she was bom.

Another tradition mentions a Pascuense called, Hulcu Kaiiu,

who escaped from the attackers by taking his clothes off when one

of them grabbed on to them to carry him off. His name indicates

this life saving maneav(ePi.

According to various traditions, there is a large flat

rock which has the number of Pascuense taken away during these

raids incised or marked upon it. A rock that was pointed out to

me as such was located at Tongariki, in Hotu Iti and was photo

graphed on Roll LXXXIII-6,8. At other times, however, I have

independantly come across just as likely candidates for this in

other parts of the Island with the same sort of counting (I sup

pose) device. These were found mainly on the north coast and

figure on the following rolls: LXXIX-2,7; LXXVIIl-10,13;

hXXVIII-15,18; and, LXXVII-15,14.

The last surviving son of one of those taken to Peru

still lives, but he was born after the incidents in a later mar

riage and not raised by his father. Therefore, Nicolas PAKOMIO

ANGrATA knows only a little of what happened to his father,

Pakomio Maori. What he does remombor is that the Pascuense v/orked

in gangs of twenty on the guano islands and that their food for

the group for one day's work was a can (about the size of a five

gallon paint container, he indicates with his hands) of meat.

Leon TUICI HHI, one of my chief informants on all aspects

of the Island's history, tells that "Ure Kino," as Pakomio was

known by his detractors (Ure = Man - Kino = Useless), returned

from Peru with a Pascuense girl friend that he had picked^lfup

while captive there. The ship that they came back on was loaded

with a lot of very sick people. The ship first arrived at Motu

Maratiri and, there, the dead were thrown into the sea. Then,

the ship moved over to the beach in a sector called Anakena. Ure

Kino's girl friend then took sick, but Ure Kino did not. Now,

the ship put down a boat to take various Pascuense ashore. The

number usually given is fourteen, plus Ure Kino. Ure Kino was

worried, however, as Anakena was ̂  peka (enemy territory) for

him. He had been a matato'a (warrior chief) before being carried

off and had many persons who wanted to kill him, ©pecially in the

sector of Anakena. Ure Kino's safe ground and home was near Ana
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o Neru, on the Poike peninsula. So, Ure Kino took a blanket and

put it over his head like a shawl and sat in front of the boat

like a woraan. He let his red hair peek out from under the shawl

and sat quietly while the boat was rov/ed to the sandy beach. No

one ashore knew that it was Ure Kino. vVhen the boat scarcely had
touched the beach, Ure Kino threw off the blanket. At once, the
Pascuense on the shore saw his full red hair and knew that it

could only be Ure Kino, but they realised it too late. He ran

off to Ahu Runga on high ground from ^Inakena and was away from

danger. As he was the fastest runner on the Island,no one could

catch him.

Efforts to elicit the names of those foutteen persons
who accompanied Ure Kino in the boat referred to above have not

met with success. Instead, I have a list from Leonardo PAKARATI

RANG-ITAKI of fifteen persons who are known to have gone to Peru
and returned, though they arrived on the Isla.nd over time from

1863 (?) to 1888. This list has been given to me as:

I. Terongo 'A Kena 2. Pakomio ?,Iaori-Ure Kino

3. Angata 4. Tepano Rau Hiva

5. Maanga 6. 'a Ringa

7. Renga Rite 3. Vero Tangata

9. Te Hei 10. Liatias Pimahae

II. Marate Haka Hira 12. G-abriel Revahiva

13. Renga Roa-roa 'a Hare Kai Hiva

14. Papa Rona 15. Hereveri

This list may also be compared with the rough one which I have

drawn-up from my geneaology book. (Appendix I) According to
another tradition, a man called Peroa returned from Peiru and

brought with him a kind of banana which still bears his name.

This information came from IJelchor HUKI TEKEi^fA, who generally
receives all of his data from his grandmother, Maria Tekena.

With respect to returning Easter Islanders, and the
story of Ure Kino, it has occured to me that there is only one
ship known to have brought Islanders directly to the Island aiid
that was the Suerte. which brought Lay Brother Eugene Eyraud. As
his letter about his first nine month'ksl stay on the Island indi
cates, he arrived on the Island with four men and one woman, ail
of whom apparently abandoned him quickly, as they never appear
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again in his relation. As the landing also took place at Anakena
beach, Ure Kino may have been among them.

leon Tuki's tradition has it that the first person to

die of smallpox after the Pascuense began to return from Peru was

a young girl in the region of Ahu hunga. She lived with four
other persons and they too soon died. From there, the disease
snread to the rest of the population. Another disease is also

reported as having come from outside of the Island and that is
one which particularly affected the family of Hei. He had fif
teen brothers and/iisters This family lived at Ma'unga 'ori, on
the south coast. The sickness involved the knee swelling-up and

death soon followed.

There is a story known by various people about dogs

devouring the dead and near dead who were too weak to resist.
The story was made more precise by Maria Tekena. In 1863 — that
is, after the raids, but before the arrival of Brother Lugene —
a shin arrived at Ovahe. It was an American ship and it carried
"dogs good for snow." They were big and the ship was going to
use them during its voyage. However, the food gave out on the
ship and the dogs were put ashore at Ovahe just after the sickness
started (?) . These huge dogs, which had not been seen on the Is

land before, went from house to house and cave to cave and ate
the sick people. Maria Tekena knows what such dogs look like now
as she saw the same ones that her elders had told her about when

the American Admiral Byrd arrived in the 1930's on his way to
(Xv<.

the South Pole on/expedition.

Leon Tuki says that a man who took care of him when

he was young, was called Mata Kau Va'e. He used to live in Mata—
Y0ri, After the sickness had started, three men from the north

coast (where the disease eventually took fewer lives) went wallcing
along the south coast, the hone of their traditional enemies and
where the majority of the peoolc who fell ill died, ihe three
men designated themselves titles in the following way:

Lgure He kapo o te miro

Vaka Ariki(father of
Hanga Rau) He "first mate" o te miro

Mata Roa He mataroa

As noticed by various 19th century visitors to Hasten Island, the

Islanders knew well the composition of a ship's crew and the
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various officers. Kgure, the grandfather of ray neighbour, Juan
RIROROKO I;':AHUTE, designated himself "Captain," while Mata Roa

("eyes long" or "sharp eyes") called himself simply "sailor,"
v/hich also happens to be his name. Vaka Ariki, like Leon when
he told me the story, used the English, "first mate." Then,
they went walking in the devastated section and if they met some
one, they would pretend to be from a ship just off of the coast
and would ask: "I hia kanakita o te henua i mate?" (How many
little kanakas are dead in this land). It was seen as a joke
and they walked from Hotu Iti to Vinapu and then to I.Tataveri,
where they met Mata Kau Va'e and asked him their question.

Another story known by many concerns Hito Rangi, who
went on a merchant ship and one day found himself in a place
called, "Paka te Mayo," in Peru. He remarked that it was a poor
place. There, he met a woman whose husband was a Pascuense and

had stayed behind after the raids. The exact time of the arrival
of Hito's ship to Peru is unknown, but it must have been before

1888, for he was back on the Isloaid tlien. For phonetic changes
from the Peruvian original to a Pascuense pronunciation, I have
supposed this to be the north peruvian port of Pacasmayo.

There are other stories of subseauent Pascuense travelling
between their time in Peru and their return to the Island, but
they are not directly related to the Peruvian episode. One last
story, hov;ever, I will quote from the Pascxiense original, as
Leon Tuki told it to me:

V/hen the Peruvians arrived here, they tied up
people. Tori arrived. He went to a place called
Ana o Mono. The bullets of the rifle of a man [slaver]
ran out. When he [Tori] arrived at Ana o Kono, he met
this Peruvian man. Tori ran after him. V/hen Tori ran
after him, he was very close. There, and by a hut, he
shouted, "Hey, young man, where are you rumxing off to."
Turn around and lets fight. Turn aroimd and let's
fight. Let's nialce war. //here are you running off to?"
He ran to Ana o Nono. He ran away to Poii a Kare . "ney
young man, where are youi running to. Wait..." Tori
was right behind him. "Turn aroxmd so that we can fi^-ht
where are you running off to." Tori could easily have
thrown his raataa Cspear] anc' have killed t'e.at man but
he did not want to throw at the man's back. "Turn
around with your face at me so that I can throw and
we can fight. That's how he shouted. "Where a,re you
running off to, young man. Turn aroiuid and let's
fight." They arrived at Apina Rui. They arrived at
he same time. Tori shouted the same thing. "Hey
young man - where are you running off to? ^Tum around
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and let's fight. They arrived at Pizku Paka Kina.
Well. He shouted again the same phrase - Tori's
cry. [The peruvian] captured that part of the phrase
that said, "he pea." At the same time, a boat from
the [peruvian] ship came ashore, having seen the chase.
It came to shore this boat of the ship. The man ran
away and arrived at the place called Apina Iti and there
he left. At that place, that man went directly down
to the boat. This man [Tori] stayed up above. They
took him [the peruvian] away.

Now, this [next part] happened in the time of
Paea [Tati Solomon, Manager of the Haster Island
ranch for John Brandor from about 1877 to 1888]. Now,
a ship arrived here and that same man [peruvian] came.
He was the one that in pascuense is called by the name,
"Tono Panioro"[this has no meaning in pascuense and is
thoup-ht by Leon to be a Spanish name that was deformed
by the Pascuense]. I don't know what is his original
name, but they always said "Tono Panioro." That was
the name that they called him. Well, then. Paea went
on board the ship and the man asked Paea. You see,
when that ship arrived, this man came in that ship.
"Ask when you go back on shore if there is a man who
was around when we came here to tic people up who
chased me and shouted, "ki pea taua." In Spanish he
asked this. His conversation was in Spanish, but the
part, "ki pea taua," was just like that. Ask about
a man who chased aft-er me and said this phrase - "he
pea.' He shouted, 'he pea.' And v/hen we arrived at
Apina, I climbed into the boat. Jell, he saved my
life. I tell yoti, I want to meet that man. Perhaps
he died orperhaps he still lives. I want to give
him presents like blankets, tobacco, "paha-paha"[meaning
unknown]. I want to give gifts to that man because
he didn't kill me and for that that he shouted at me."
Good. Paea said, "All rirht," and returned to shore
and asked about who chased a peruvian man in the time
when the poruvians came to tied up the pascuenses and
shouted, "Ki pea. taua." That is the only thing that
is remembered, "ki pea, ki pea." That was the only
phrase that he caught. Tori said that he was the man
and that he chased him from Ana o Kono to Apina Iti.
"I will tell him, old fellow, what this phrase means
that I shouted at him. I said, "Don't run away young
man. Turn around with your face to mo so that v/e can
fight. I don't want to throw my lance at your back.
I could have easily throvm my mataa [lance] at your
back and have killed you, i:^ut T dudri't wuiit to .
What I wanted was for you to stop, turn you face so
that we could fighi together. That's what "he pea"
means when I shouted it at you." That's what he
told that man. That's what old man Tori said. Paea
returned to the shin. He tola the man. "That man
is alive. He explained the conversation up there on
the ship. "That phrase that was shouted at you means,
' vVhere are you going, turn around your face, wait and
let's fight." "That's what it means." "lie didn't
wish to cut you with his mataa from behind. You v/ould
now be dead with his mataa. He dic3n't wish to cut yoii
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from behind. 'Turn yoin* face first and wait so that
we can fight.' That was the phrase that he shouted at
you. That was the phrase v/her you fled. That man is
here." [The peruvian said] I love this man and I want
to carry him my gifts, blankets, tobacco, pipes."

r»

Because of these acts which occured so long ago, the

pascuense have a special dislike to all (nearly) Peruvians v;ho

have come to their Island. Anti-peruvian feelings on the part

of some Chileans from the mainland may also plaj'' a part in

keeping this near hatred alive,

2) . The modem stories

These stories, especially in recent years as pascuense

travel off the Island has increased, have aboimded to the point of

absurdity. An example of this is that the Chavez family on the

Island always feels a close kinship to any person with the surname,

"Chavez," when they come from Peru. They are the only Peruvians

given an unambigious welcome on Easter Island. In the Pascuense

case, all persons with the family name of Chavez are ultimately-

related to one man in the last century called, Te Ave. Becanse

of the close phonetic resemblance between the pascuense initial

"t" and the 6hi lean Spanish "ch" and the bhilean tendancy to drop
terminal consonants, "Te Ave" (a personal name converted at bap

tism to a surname) became "Chavez." Thtis, the lil^ihood of any
other pascuense who went to Peru also being called, "Te Ave" and

following the same phonetic chajiges in the Peruvian context would

be very small.

In late august of 1972, the story started to circula.te

that a Peruvian singer by the name of Alberto Pate had appeared
on Radio Americas (Lima). Pate is also a pascuense surname. Later

versions of the story added that this same singer had acknowledged
his pascuense origins.

Finally, there was the hope of at least one Islander

that any possible relatives in Peru might be wealthy or have lands

that the Pascuense could claim, as they have done and are trying
to do with their relatives in Tahiti.

By far, however, the largest group of stories ultimately
came from a Sascuense travelling businessman who spent many years
in Continental Chile called, Jose Nahoe. I have eight first re
ferences in my notes to his stories and many more supposed references,
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He used to live in Colina near Santiago de Chile and was married

to Victoria Siena HSREVSRI PAKARATI. He died of stomach cancer

in 1971 while still on the Continent and rarely returned to the

Island.

One story is that he went to Peru on a business trip and

there met a Sr. Pakomio who took him to the house of a Pua family.

He also met a "Teave family" and reported that in the south of Peru

all of the Pascuense had lived in a large walled fundo and that
outsiders were not allowed to live with them. Angelina ATAI^] PAIlOMIO

knows the same story and claims that Jose has the address of the

Peruvian Paltomio^s, but lost it v/hen he fought with his wife.

According to another story, Jose Hahoe and a Teniente

Riveros of the PACH (Chilean Air Force) went to Peru and there

they met a pascuense descendant of the Chavezes,

The existance of Chavezes in Peru (as mentioned above)

w ith the story coming from various sources, is believed or at

least related by a number of persons. Jose Nahoe's name is often

given as proof.

A man whose stories I tend to doubt

retired official of the Chilean Array.

is known in most respects to be an

honourable and hard-working man.

I first heard his story on 21.9.972 and I checked it

again on 20.2.973* It was on the re-telling that I began to lose

a bit of faith, for he then acknowledged that the first person to

meet these descendants was Jose Nahoe.

In any case, the first version I have included as a

Xerox of three pages of ray notes. (Appendix II) In the second

version, he said that the place where he had met "Abuelo Hitorangi,"

was Tacna in the south of Peru. He also said that the old man

used, "old language" to greet him and recited:
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Koho mai koe V/elcome

I.Iai a nua era Bring me that mother

Mai a koro era Bring me that father

Mai te kainga Bring me the land

Mai vai a potu te rangi Bring me the water

of the extremes of the sky.

This is perfectly good ^ascuense, but there is nothing strange or
"old" about it. It is also strange that the old man should have

greated Leviante's mother("nua") when she could not possibly have

been there. "Bring me the water of the extremes of tlie sky,"

which, while being poetic, is hardly "old" or special. In my

second interview, he also claimed that the old man had two boys

and one girl and that the two sons had promised to come to Pascua

one day. He also said that his son Alberto had met a pascuense

descendant while in military service in Arica, in northern Chile.

The next group of stories, which also enjoy a certain

popularity, are those brought back by some of the forty odd |ascuense
young men who have been conscripts in the Chilean Army, in Arica.

According to these stories, when the first group of pascuense con
scripts arrived in Arica, a group of them were playing the guita.r

and singing in front of the main military post, the Rancagua regiment

An older woman, who was said to be a descendant of the pascuense

in Peru, invited them to her house and has continued to invite

other conscripts since to Aripit her family. She is married to

"a Chilean." Stories vary that there is one family or two families,
but the ascription of pascuense descent is constant. I secur^ed
the address of one of these women, Gabriela Chavez.

The last of the modern stories is one which eventually
comes from Martin RAPU PUA which he, in turn, received from his

mother. Three -uncles of his grandfather were taken away in the

Peruvian raids. One was Emilio, who returned and stayed to die
in Tahiti, the other was Eduardo, who eventually came to live in

Valparaiso, Chile, and the name of the third is unknown, but he
is thought to have lived in the south of Peru. Emilio figures in
the Taliiti land claims registered in 1887, while the son of Eduardo
(also (Billed Eduardo Pua) is svipposed to have come to the Island
in 1956 as an official on the Alii pen, a vessel of the Haberbeck
Company, mer^ he came to the Island, he told Pilomena Pua (Martin's
mother) about their mutual ancestor's adventures in Peru. According
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to my informant and his brother, iiduardo Pua still lives and is

in Valparaiso. Further, a, certain Carolina Pua works in the

City Hall of Valparaiso in the Health Section. The relationship

between Eduardo Pua and Carolina Pua was not specified.

A final short story is told by Pedro TEAO RIRORCKO,

who lives in Valparaiso. V/hen he arrived in Valparaiso fresh from

the Island a man on the dock helped him to find his way. This

man explained that his grandfather was a ̂ ascuense who had gone
to Peru in the last century as a slave and that his family came

from Hakarava. After the man helped Pedro Teao out, he disanpeared

and was never seen again.

The latter two cases have yet to be investigated here in

Valparaiso.

In addition to these stories from the Island, there

were also other items which led me to consider the trip to Peru

and northern Chile.

B. A STATUE exists in the British I.Tuseimi (London) v/ith

the following entry in the catalog:

Nro. 8700. Easter Island.

Wooden figure in the form of a man, with a
fish's mouth, and finny hands. The eyes inlaid
with shell and obsidian. At the back of the

neck a pierced projection. Prom the Chine.'.a Is.
Peru. Presented by A.\7. Pranks, Esq, 29-Oct.,
1872 ( Boucard) .

No other information is available at the present time about how

this object came to London or, even, the kind of wood out of which

it is made. Through the kindness of the British Museum, I securred

three photographs (different angles) of the statue to take with

me to Peru. The style of the statue is imdoubtedly from Easter

Island and the motif is a well-known one. It is, in reality,

a tangata moko (man lizard) .

C. A REPORT written by M. Eucher Henry about his

mission to Chancay details the presence of Polynesian agricultural

workers in this valley in 1863. The report was sent to me by

H.E. Maude.

D. IN PO?TPOLIO 138, NO. 36 OP THE ARCHIVE OP THE ARCH

BISHOP OP SAiiTIAGO, with the date of 2. Secember, 1869, a certain

Pierre Mau sold his house and property on Easter Island to the
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Catholic llission and asked that two hundred and fifty francs be

paid to him personally and a s-um of six hundred and fifty francs

be sent to lima for the Reverend Mother Superior of the Nuns of

the Sacred Hearto

E, FINALLY, DR. RAITON CMIPBELL, who lived on Easter Island

for one year as the medical doctor and who has published a book

about the Island is is about to p^iblish another, tells that when

he went to Katarani in 1970, he and his wife went by ^axi to
AreqirLpa, in the south of Peru, for a tourist visit. On the way

back to the port, in a taxi, the driver said that about one htuidred

years ago, a group of Indians from across the ocean came to the

area. They arrived sick and were put into warehouses to be isolated

from the population. There, they died and were buried in a special

cemej(t@rry near Matarani. V/hen Campbell got to the ship with this
nev/s, the British Consul in Antofagasta, who was travelling on the
ship, told him to wait for dinner to see a certain Ernesto Jeager

who v/as said to have had a large collection of ^a-scuense objectso
The man never arrived on board for dinner and the ship sailed.

Campbell wrote to Matarani twice and on the second time received

word that Jeager had died.

Before leaving for the trip to Peru, letters of intro

duction were sent from Canberra and by me to various suspected

points of interest. Every effort was made to contact as many of

the places as possible so that time could be saved once in Peru,

Though not all of the above is related to the investi

gations which follow, I have included it here so as to be a

general report to H.E. Maude about information relating to

Peruvians on Easter Island.

II. Itinerary

26.5.973 - 2.6.973 La Serena-Coquimbo, to visit
Dr. Alfredo Cea and former

■'overnor of Eg^ster Island from
1.934-1.936,+1937, He mann 0 o! 'piS j 0

3.6.973 - !,.icrobus, fr. La Serena to Arica.
4.6.973 - 7.6.973 Arica, + travel to Mollendo, Peru
8.6.973 - 10.6.973 Mbllendo-LIatarani

11.6.973 - Arenuina + travel to Lima
12.6.973 - 29.6.973 Lima-Callao
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30,6.973 - 4.7.973 Ica-Pisco-Chincha Islands

5.7.973 - Llicrobus to Arioa from lea

6.7.973 - 10.7.973 Arica-Tacna, with evening; flight
to Santiago

III. Resulis.-dn:

Little time was spent at first in Arica as all of the

people that I wanted to visit were either in Saritiago or, in the

case of one, in Spain.

A. Mollendo-Matarani

In Mollendo, the town in which most who work in the new

(25 years) rort of Matarani live, I rapidly located information
about the German, Srnesto Jeager. I did not use his name, but

was led to him through questions among the dock workers in the

port of Matarani. Jeager was a former Manager of the Mauricio

Hochschild Company and lived a solitary life. I did, however,

manage to speak to a number of people who knew of him. His col

lection, according to his hpiisekeeper for many years, was a result
o  T • . , ry\0-dQ. ct . r)01 his travels and we re souveni^rs, which included a pascuence

rooai kava-kava, as v/ell as a stone Inca figure which dispensed ci

garettes out of its mouth and had a cigar lighter in its head.

I carried vdth me a small ^ascuense carving just to elicit such
information. The majority of the collection is still in the

storehouses of the Company in Matarani, as Jeager's sister in

Germany doesn't wish to be bothered with the shipping and custom's

formalities. Her address in Germany for future reference is:

Prau Berta Haeusser,
Hauptstrasse, 151,
7119 Sorchteneberg,
GHRi^^Y.

The story that the taxi driver told Ramon Campbell could

be a confusion of one of two things. In 1871, a ship with members

of a Peruvian military regiment came to what is now Matarani and they
carried b/ubonic plague, which eventually wiped out the port of that
time, which was called I slay. The driver may also have confused

the >i'story with one from about the same time when a ship load
of Chinese coolies arrived in Aric., (a Peruvian port, at that time)
and were put into warehouses because of yellow fe^ver tJial they
carried. These Chinese were buried in a special Chinese Cemetery,
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which IS today largely in ruins. Information about these two
episodes in Peruvian history is contained in any good history
of the country, but I also purchased books dealing precisely with
these topics. I explored the still standing ruins of the old port
of Islay and ̂ otographed the salient features, but found nothing
resembling the cemetery of the story. A search of a Peruvian
Atlas of the time which contained a number of town plans also
failed to reveal an "Indian cemetery," in the region of Islay.
katarani, in the last century, in any case, existed as a place
name, further inland than the present-day port. Research also
showed that it is of Quechua origin and the same name exists in
three other parts of Peru. (Mariano Felipe PAZ SOLDAN. 1877.
Diccionario geografico estadfstico del Peru. Lima).

I did not go any deeper into the Matarani matter and
consider that it was a false lead.

B. lima

1). Personal contacts.

I was fortimate in getting the cooperation of Hermann
Buse De la Guerra, a lecturer in geography, ^vriter on South Sea-'s
topics and journalist for the leading Lima newsnaper, ̂  Comercio.
He agreed to publish a front page (Appendix III) announcement about
my work on 19.6.973 as a kind of call for help and, most important,
facilitated my ajcess to the very complete archives of ̂  Gomercio
(founded 1839) . This latter allowed me to photograph a number of
items for the context of the trade, as well as to photogranh those
items which were not available for Lucila Valderrama's thorough
exploration for K.H. Maude in 1970, as indicated in her letter of
16.6.970 to him. A Xerox cony of the listing of the items that I
photographed accompanies this report (Apnendix IV), as well as notes
I took on Items that I did not photograph. (Appendix V). In kl
Gomercio, I photographed sevencategories of things:

in\hl^ZlZT all ships involved
involved in the

speoifioall.v dealine witri the ore^^ence
of Polynesians in Peru; -once

The context of contract labour in Peru wi ova-:
and Indian ( ■•Cholo") labourers; Chinese

a)

b)

c)

d)
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e) . A full record of the trade situation in the Ghincha
Islands, with monthly figures of extraction and ex
portation and changes in rdmini strati on;

f). Examples of French antipathy towares the Peruvian
government at that time due to the war in Kexico and
vice versa;

g). The history and presence of smallpox in Lima-Callao
in 1863 and the Polynesians's contact with it.

lucila Valderrama G. of the National Library was consulted

for further paths to follow and these included the Mnist/ry of the
Interior and the Ministj^ry of Finance. Neither of these, as I indi
cate belov/, proved to hold docujnentation that could be investigated

in the time available. That is, the possibility of finding something

existed, but it was a remote one,

I also consulted with a number of Peruvian historians about

possible sources and archives, both public and. private. These were

Felix Denegri Luna, Jorge Basadre, Alejandro Lostaunau and Fernando

Ponce. The latter showed me a Chilean publication that published

much information about the Peruvian raids from the archives of

the Chilean Consuls in Peru at that time:

VELIZ, Claudio. 1961. Historia de la marina

mercante de chile. Santia.go de Chile, Ediciones

de la Universidad de Chile,

This latucr lead will be followed-up in Santiago if time permits,

Denegri Luna confirmed a story on Easter Island abou-t a

Peruvian who had come to purchase stock from the Williamson, Bal—

four Company and who had been rebuffed by the Islanders, According

to him, Miguel Muelle Leon was the man, who t.iirty years ago went

to the Island. At first, he did not mention his nationality and

he had a very pleasant time. As soon as he said that he was

Peruvian, he had to return to the ship. An Engineer names Alberto

Chaparro Melendez had told Denegri Luna about the episode.

With respect to Chancay, I spoke to Jose MATOS MAR,

Director of the Institute of Peruvian Studies. He and his colleagues

had carried out extensive studies in the valley of Chancay and

he informed me that if Polynesians has been in the haciendas of this

area, then he had never come across any traces of them. Someone

with a great deal more time could profit from a thorough investi

gation of the few individual hacienda archives remaining, as well
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as an examination of the archives of long-established notaries in
the area.

Luis Mlliones, who has recently published a small book
on black and Chinese workers in Peru, could only provide me with
comparative information from these similar cases. He noted that it
would be unlikely that the Polynesians had retained any vestiges
of their original names, as there were strong superstitions in the
work gangs against unbaptised workfellovvs.

Pablo Macera, and others, informed me that Port Captain
archives and most archives from the Herchant Harine of the time
had been lost in the burning of many public buildings in the War
of 1879 with Chile.

Jorge Basadre, whose history of Peru since the Republic
of 1821 is now into fourteen voliimes, suggested that any serious re
search into Pema's history must be done in Washington, B.C. (USA)
where a better collection of archives has been maintained in the
Library of Congress. This is particularly true in the case of
periodicals.

I also spoke with Heraclio Bonilla, who is completing a
study of French and En-lish relations with Peru in the nineteenth
century. He informed me that no records of use were available in
Peru and that I would have to go to the respective archives in
Prance and Hngland.

Archives consulted

Through the above persons, I found out about and fre
quently got information about a number of archives in Peru

The Archives of the l.nnistery of the Government (today,
called, biinistery of the Interior) were not actually consulted,
but I was informed by a member of the Investigations Section, who
did try to find out for me, that nothing remained from that period
in the Mnistery archives and that their records are periodically
destroyed in any case.

visit to the Ministery of Hconomy led me to believe
that the only possible information that might be found there would
be the papers on the indemnization paid by the Peruvian government
of thirty thousand pesos in 1863. These records too are disorganised
and periodically "cleaned out" as well. The Director of the ArThives,
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Durant Floras, was in Europe when I called and was not available

in Lima during? my time and so could not personally be consulted.

Photographic archives turned up only one photograph of

Gallao in 1860 and this was copied in the liational Library. The

Archives, in general, of the National Library suffered heavily in

the War of 1879 with Chile and also with the complete burning of

the National Library in 1943> by accident.

A cursory search in the A-pChives of the Archbishop in

Lima failed to turn up any important informations, but a more

thorough one might. Those in charge of the archives, however,

felt that research would be carried out in the actual parish

records. The time was not available, however, for me to mder-

take such a task.

The Archives of the government company in charge of

the development of the Chincha Islands, among other things,

SENAPER (The National Company for Fertilising Agents) were equally

barren for the time period involved, though I was promised some

copies of old black and white photogranhs by the Director of the

Department for Guano, Demosthenes CABRERA QUIROZ. These have yet

to appear by post.

A great deal of hope had been put into finding something

in the archives of the French Embassy, According, to M. Jean de

Souza, the Consul with whom I spoke on 19.6.973, these old archives

had been packed off and sent to France some two months previous to

my arrival when the Embassy and Consulate moved from their old

quarters on Nicolas de Pierola to Plaza Francia. 1 have initiated

efforts to have a friend of mine, a trained librarian who is also

French, to make a thorough search in Paris for these records.

The most rewarding suggestion for archives was made to

me by Felix DEIiEGKI LUNA, who recommended that 1 examine the books

of the Charity Hospital (La Beneficencia) of Lima. In Appendix VI,
I have included the results of my search, which is the names of

one hundred and fifty five Polynesians who died of various diseases

Detween 27.6.863 and 10.8,867. At the end of this, I made up some

tables showing the distribution of diseases, ages, and, more im

portant, parts of Lima (by parish) from which these deceased ori

ginated. A later researcher with more time could then examine these

parishes in detail in order to find records and possible evidence



it .

Peruvian ei,'^jiteen

of descendants. The Parish of St. Ane's should prove to be par

ticularly interesting^.

These records in Lima indicate that these Polynesians

undoubtedly worked as domestic servants in the houses of well to

do Limenos, whose surnames they often bear. This latter assumption

is heavily supported by the fact that Polynesians were advertised

in the press for this purpose, as well as being reported as having

escaped from such private homes. I have photographed these adver

tisements from ̂  Gomercio.

Attempts v/ere made to find more complete listings of

patients from the Lima Hospitals from that time as well as to

locate similar records for Callao, but these do not exist any longer.

The Lima records are missing in a more complete form and the Callao

ones are not to be fotind at all.

Municipal Archives from the time were also sought in Lima

and Callao, but these were not found, many of them having been des

troyed due to various causes.

3)» Other investigations.

During the research in Archives, attempts were constantly

made to try to find descendants of the Polynesians by newspaper pub

licity and by personal searches with photographs of Pascua and ex

amples of Pascuense carving. Ko certain information was gained from

these constant questionings. Both ray wife and I practically

memorised a patter to explain our presence in Peru and we solicited

information from all with whom we came into contact. V/e found

people generally helpful, but not sufficiently informed.

In the National Library, a series of drawings and en

gravings of places connected with Polynesians in Peru was copied

from:

PAZ SOLDAII, T.Iariano Felipe- 1865

Atlas geografico del Peru. Paris, Lihreria
de Permin Didot Hermanos, Hijos y Cia.

Archive and historical questions v/ere complicated by the

fact that the Polynesians probably did not retain any vestiges of

their Island names and so only archives which showed the olace of

origin of the persons in it were of use in my research.
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C. Callao;

As mentioned, archive sources in Callao were non-existant

and so, by an idea given to me by ray wife, I went to the Old Peoples'h

Home, operated by Nunsr

Casa Asilo de las Hermanitas de

los Ancianos Desaraparados,

Constitucidn, 779

Callao.

There, I encountered Angel Narvay, who claims to have been bom in

the Department of Ica on 8.7.855• He could still speak with diffi

culty, but moved in small steps and was hard of hearing. He was

also loosing his vision. He had lived in the region of Chincha

as an agriculturalist during the 1870's and his clearest memory

was of the War of 1879» which he insisted upon relating in great

detail as it affected him. He did not recognise any of the clues

as to "canacas," "polinesians," "Indians from the Ocean," etc.,

that I gave him and did not know anything about the Chincha Islands.

In the two hours that I spoke to him, he was very eager to speak

(about the War), but professed ignorance of the events of ray in

terest ,

In a personal search in Callao, my wife encountered a

woman called, "Teresa kanaka," but she turned out to be of Japanese

descent. The showing of the statues only turned up a retired Danish

shipwright who sold small Pascuense statues, among other trinkets.

He was t

Jorgen Bjelke,
2. de Lnyo, 749/301,
Callao.

The library and Institute of Culture did not have any

inf ormation.

D. Pisco-Chincha Islands;

Through the Regional kuseum of Ica, I contacted a local

historian in Pisco (the Port for the Chincha Islands), Luis Velarde,
He was not familiar with the Polynesian episode, but took me to the

Pisco Inspector of Culture, Mamerto CASTILLO KHGROH, who has written

possibly the most complete comnendium about Pisco, Monografia de

Pisco, published by himself some years ago and now out of print,

Castillo told me as much as he knew about the operations



Peruvian twenty

on the Chincha^s using Chinese workers. He knew nothing about the
Polynesians working there, but he did confirm that such foreign

workers were mostly not allowed to keep their original names, as

persons imbaptised were called, "Morros (Ivloors)," and were thought

to be responsible for work accidents. He also explehned that at

that time, Pisco was not the Port of the Chincha/s, but that wor

kers were brought directly from Callao, liA^ed on the Islands and

then were taken back to Callao after the period of guano extraction.

I mentioned the theory expressed by Campbell and Silva

in their paper on the Polynesians in Peru about workers from hac

iendas being used on the Islands and he said that if there was

a connection, it was not with haciendas in Pisco provinceo At that

time, there was only one hacienda and that was Caucato, which had

a specialist production in chancaca and rum from their sugar cane

plantations and employed almost exclusively resident black workers.

He suggested that I go to the Parish Church in Pisco and

consult the Parish records, which survived the War of 1379 through

clever priests hiding their records and relics in the thick church

walls. During the time of work on the Islands, there was always a

resident priest.

As noted in the two photocopies from my notes in Appen

dix VII, I did find two books from Nuestra Senora de las Lercedes

de las Islas de Chincha, which was the church on Islands during

the period of my interest. I have photographed the marriage and

death books, but no Polynesian names nor origins were encoixntered

in any of these. Still, these books do point to a very large

foreign and Peruvian settlement on the Chincha/s at the time of
the supposed Polynesian arrivals there. A further search is being

carried out by the Spanish parish priest. Father Antonio, in more

detailed archives and the results of that are to come by post.

No municipal or charity hospital (or any other) records

exist from the 1860's because of their distraction during the War

of 1879 with Chile.

On 3.7.973, through the help of the Pisco Port Captain

and the local manager of SHNAPHR at La Pimtilla (near Pisco), I
was able to visit the Chincha Islands. As time was limited and the

sea journey takes about two hours each way, I chose to go to the
Island with the greatest concentration of people in the 1860/'s, as
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a small map in the above-named Atlas indicates (Appendix VII) »
This was North Chincha. The time allowed was also short as there

was no possibility of staying the night and the sea was too rough

for travel in the afternoon. My investigations were hampered by

the need to respect the guano producing birds, which are very ner

vous and scare easily if approached.

The skipper of the tug that took me out, Victor PARNDES

SIPUENTBS of the "Remoquedor Tommy," had been employed with SENAPER

for fifteen years. Ke came from Yungay and had started working as

a common guano extractor and^ so^ knev/ the Islands well. I showed
him the photograph of the old plan that I carried to try to elicit
some information about what he might have seen. He said that no

thing remains of the two tov/ns indicated, out that in the place that
I have marked on the plan, he recalls that corpses, witn their skin

dried and clothes in tact, were often dug up while guano was being

excavated. I sumniise that these bodies are those of the Hiuropeans

and Peruvians whose names appear in the church books that I photo

graphs d.

This notion was further supported by Mario ALLCCACO

CHOCI'IA, the young Quechua who is one of the two men who live all
year around on the nearly deserted Island and who was my guide.
He said that the poor and especially the Chinese (about whom he
knew) when they died, were taken out to sea with a heavy weiglit
and their bodies thrown into the sea. He also knew about the place

where bodies are dug up on North Chincha, but was quite surprised

to see the two tov/ns indicated in the map, as he knew nothing about

them. He did, hov/ever, knew about a rotted stump along the shore
near those places which is all that remains of an old loading docko

He recommended that when the Chief Guard, Eduardo Molendes, returns

from other guano extractions on the Island of Asia in November of

this year, that I write to him as he has worked for the Company for

a long time and knows much about the history of the place. Chief
Guards have a tradition of passing Hway along stories about the

past of the Chincha's from older to younger. I will write him from
Easter Island.

It occured to me that Peruvian historians have missed

much by not having attemoted to write a social history of the ex
ploitation of the Chincha Islands.
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E. Arica-Tacna

Arriving in Arica, I returned, the next day to Tacnao

Transport between the two towns is very easy. Through Jorge Basadre,

a native of Tacna, I had the name of the Directoress of the Tacna

Institute of Culture, Virginia LAZARO VILLAREL. She immediately

put me into contact with a local historian whose local interests,

among others, include the Chinese migrations to the area. He is

Luis Cabanaro,

He informed me that he had never come across any persons

with Oceanic or Polynesian origins, let alone Pascuense, thou^ he

did have thorough records of Chinese who had come to Tacnao

The charity hospital records for Tacna had disappeared

in a fire in the early 1860's and because Tacna was a Chilean

possession from 1879 to 1929* the best collections of old documents

for the area would probably be found in Santiago de Chile or in the

former centre of that part of Peru before 1879, which is Iq-uique,

now deep into Chilean territory.

He suggested that I might make a re-study of the Parish

records for Samo, where Chinese had worked in oaane plaritations

between 1860 and 1870 and also have a look at the general Parish

records for Tacna. Unfortunately, the lack of time and a prosoect
V^o\

forf^encountering easily the information forced me to abandon this

research. Cabanaro has promised to write me if he should encounter

anything in his researches relevant to ray work.

The last point to be investigated was the so-called des

cendants of Pascuenses living in Arica. Through a contact with Juan

ARAKl KAITUOE, 1 met Pablo HERR/ERl TEAO. The former has been

established for some time in Arica, working for EMTEL, the Chilean

Telephone Compcny, while the latter had just completed military ser
vice in precisely the Rancagua Regiment in Arica. VYe also carried

a letter for Hereveri from his mother on Easter Island, Araki knew
nothing of l^fciS^^^i^^^tory, but it was throiigh them that I en
countered Gabriela Chavez and Gustavo COHTRERAS ORELLAi^A and their
families,

The two families in question first began to have contact
with Pascuense conscripts in I968 and, on the I4. April, I968, they
made a list Oj. the first group that they had entertained in their
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homes. It carried twenty one names and, they assured me, that they

have attended to at least another twenty since then. Their interest

was simply one of curiosity - lilrs. Contreras first saw the boys,

as they had told me, playing Pascuense songs in front of the Regiment

and invited them home for their own interest. They are not Pas

cuense nor do they have any inkling that there is any other con

nection with the Pascuense than just their own friendliness. They

have no economic ends for their help and appear to be simply generous

people. Gabriela Chavez's mother was Bolivian, but that is about

as exotic as the family lines become. They said that after the

first group, other Pascuense conscripts would arrive to their homes

with a special map, showing the route with all details, from the

Regiment Rancagua to their doorstep. These two families were known

to be helpful and kind people. For example, in Hereveri's case,

Contreras provided him with a job in the bicycle factory, through

a mutual friend.

It is my opinion that the Pascuense with whom 1 spoke

felt a special closeness to these people and perhaps could not con-

cieve that a Chilean, whom their parents had always told them to

distrust, would want to do them disinterested good. Their way of

dealing with this anomalous situation was to try to imagine them

as somehow related. Disinterested family relations are under

standable, but a Chilean simply helping out without other ends is,

unfortunately, rare in the Pascuense experience. 1 could cite

other examples where other helpful Chileans have been given kin

ship status for their kind acts.

Tly penultimate paragraph in this section may also explain

"the Pascuense" that Nahoe met, as they too were kind to him,

IV. Other results of the Peruvian trip;

Before actually arriving in Peru, 1 had already received

a letter from:

Ilaria J.fercedes Rotalde,
Congregation of the Sacred Hearts,
Avenida Alvarez C<?lder6n, 761,
San Isidro, 27 - Lima,

in which she explained that she had had a look at her Congregation's
archives and had found nothing about Pierre Mau's gift nor the pre

sence of Pascuense or other Polynesians in Peru.
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An interesting prospect was offered to me by Jose IvIATOS
LIAR, Director of the Institute of Peruvian Studies. He manifested
a strong interest^ in publishing a small book about the Polynesians
in Peru, He proi^sed that 1 v.T-ite a chapter on Pascuense traditions
about the Peruvian raids and ray Peruvian research. Then, as
another chapter, he would publish the paper that Ram6n Campbell
and Jorge SILYA OLIVARES wrote. Finally, a Spanish translation
of the letter of the French M. Eucher that H^E. ITaude sent me could
be included. For using the latter, of course, 1 will have to have
Llaude's permission.

As a result of my contact with Llatos and the Institute,
I secured the Campbell-Silva paper, a copy of which I can send at
a later time.

1 do not feel that my contribution to this volume will
in any way betray my confidance nor compromise my obligations to
Kaude. Before absolutely accepting and completing this task,
however, 1 must have his permission. This additional task would
not measurably interfere with my other research that 1 am at pre
sent carrying out here in Valparaiso.

Should the publication be possible, it will mean that
Peruvian students who read the book will come up with valuable
additional information that was not possible to obtain during my
short visit. The point® of the oublication, as Llatos and
I agreed, was to call attention to the historical problem, to
show what had been done in Peru and in Chile on the problem and to
suggest further avenues of research.

Arriving in Chile, 1 again contacted Campbell (whom 1
iiad met for the first time in Lima on 17.6.973) and he agreed to the
publication of his paper in the volume. 1 also renewed my contact
with Jorge Silva, whom 1 had previously met on Easter Island, and
we decided that it would be advantageous to both of us if we could
do It together. Thus, instead of my Pascuense stories only, th--v^e
would also be a larger section detailing Peruvian and Chilean sources
which we would both write. He and 1 will begin work on our respective
sections while 1 am occupied here in Valparaiso mth various otW^r

r:" f'rv r"before the end of the year.

Finally, 1 would like to make a special not
G of thanks for
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R.H, Howard and the staff of the Australian Embassy in Lima for

their cooperation in both the study and its practical side.

V. Budj^etary notes.

I have continued the same system of collecting receipts

for all items during the time in Peru and connected with the trans

port to the North of Chile. The details of this will have to be

presented later, as the time required for this task is not now

available.

Neither the University nor H.E. Kaude are responsible

for any amoimts in excess of the budgeted A$ 500.00 alloted for

this work and no expenses v/ere incurred which were prejudicial

to the main requirements of my study.

One large effect on this budget was the obligation of

Paragraph Two of the Supreme Resolution of the Peruvian Hinistery
of Foreign Relations, dated 21.3.972 that every tourist must ex

change a minimum of USS 8.00 per day per person while in Peru.

This meant that I was obliged to change US$ 16.00 per day during
the stay of my wife, my child and rayselfo

This report is being sent to Canberra via the Australian

Embassy in Santiago de Chile to whom I am very grateful for assuring
"the safe arrival of my report. A copy should be sent to H.E. Maude.

Grant McGall,

Conc6n, 30.7.973.
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Cha-oter Tv;o
1722

From contacts to contracts: Easter Island from to the prosont

Precis C'

The ain of this chapter ts to provide theVliistorical

context for the sociolsgxBxaiz cultural events that will be

discussed in the remaining thr -o parts of this thesis. I begin

v.'itli a discussion of the exnlorers and navigators fchatzioHzhsiix

atzEaszx Imown to have called at Eastor Island from 1722 to l862,

taleing ±H a t lOmatic approach under three categories: 1).

General character of islander-outsider int'-raction, 2). Specific

instances of trade, and, 3). Hostilities. It is anerouriate that

tte first section should end with hostilities for, in December

1862, a period of severe strife and subjugation began that
Z'?^  J "baiies in t .e arrival of slavers, missionaries and settlers. Section

thrc:.; talces up the shattered and de—populated island at 1872 and

discusses t e vanning Tahitiem inf .uence as Chilean interest

gains in momentum to the first positive acts in 1917. The last

section de.als with a brief summary of salient events from 1917

to the present time.

Introducti on

I do not wish to provide hero a mere chronology of events,

but more a conir,ontary upon signifigant thomes in the cultural

ox ..vri onee of tho Pananui. As I will discuss in greater detail

in Charter VII, Raganui vs. the world, these events are remembered

and retold as irn'orbant elements in the modern Rapanui conscious-

ne..;3. They are soi.etimes offer' d as justification for stances

tsLen to autnorities and arc implicit(^ for many at itudes pro-

vailing aioong oven some of the young'.;r members of the population.

lo'/ever, a c ironoi.O';ical perrpr,;ctive is also necessary, if

one is to gain a mo .• a urate understanding of tee sequence and

develoemenb of events. For this reason, I have composed my
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of visits to Rapanui" (Appendix C) and "Registry of

authorities on Rapanui. (Appendix D)." The .justification for

t;je Registry of Visits and the Registry of Authorities is to

allow me to discuss theraatically my interpretation of Rapa^nui

'  history, but to still rmit my reader to consult and to assess

the primary sourci^s upon which my perspective is based. Further,

esnecially wijh the Registry of Authorities, I am including one

of the research tools that I used to establishl^chrnology (and

sometimes matters of demography) that hxe is found in subsequent

c apters.

The tTYxirxxy recen-: history of Eapanui is largely a shipl^^
history, as this was the prj.ncipal source of written information

for my study. It was not until 1866 that Europeans came to dwell

permanently on the island and even then, fev/ written materials
IP A ,

have omergod from that residence. ships ca.i-ling was the onl

t  ii'o when written luatorials wore transmitted and, often, the

occasion for the compij.ling of such data. There is another side

to tkiK Rauanui history and that is what might euonemistically

bo t urned, the view from the shore, b'ithin the small scope of

this pror:.ont thesis, such ethnohistorical data can only be

13touciied upon Lightly. ̂

I divide my pr-sont chapter into fo- r sections and thesH

designations refer prixx to the outsiders and theirj^intentions.

I have done t is because as contact between Rapanui and outsiders

became more intense, the behaviour of the island's popui.ation

became more a reaction to conditions imposed upon them, then

acts deriving from any over-all strategy, as was the case on

Gowo other Polynesian islands (e.g. Pearson 1970). The four

sections are;

1. Explorers and navigators;

2. Ltlers « rnissi nncsries;

ExplvLt>.rs and colonisers;
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3, The ivv2)vA<vty^- era

T::bs2,±EX0X It seems that each section is also a stage in

historical dGvelonment. The sequence develops pfltJevolves

one period building uponj^another, rather like the prehistorlcal

phases discussed in Chapter One.

In the accounts of visitors to Rapanui, 1 will largely ignore

t -Cir coniuiontaries and speculations upon the island as they saw

it and concentrate upon the actual relations between the outsid.rs

and the islanders. The accounts of Cook, Roggeveen, Thomson and

so on have been as iduously mined for information to corroborate

otinological reconstruction by Barthel (1974)> Hoyerdahl (I96I:

21-08), lie'traux (1940), Routledge (1919) and many others of

lesser renown. In the Registry of VisitisESS, 1 have supplied

b- i;.grs.phic ref _s:uc8g and tliose may be consulted by those

int ircstedin '-s^ dt'tai'-

Coction 1, Exploreris and navigators.

Even if it is conceded that int..r-island (or continental)
contact

voyages occurred in the pre-i722 epocr, it must be confirmed that

the island did not genera y become known to outsiders until

a Dutchman searching for terra australia happened to come upon

the tiny territory on Easter day, 1722.^^

Poor w ather appears to have prevented the three Ships,

Den Arend, Thienhoven, and Africaansche Galey, from approaching

tkx Rapanui itself until two days after their initial siting on

the 5 April, 1722. But, on the morning of the seventh, a lone

Islander aijproached the Thienhoven and boarded her. Captain

j'o .man's entry is first Icnovm record of an Easter Islander

u.'c.'.ing pith a European. He not s that his visitor was;
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...a Eap well into his_ilfties, of the browns, v/ith a goatee
airor tne I'urliisn fashion, of very strong physique. He v/as
nmcn astonisned at the tnaJie of our ship and all that belonred
uo it, as we could percieve from his expressions. As we
could not in the least understand each other, v'e had to ma-'e
1^ out from his exnressi-^ns and signs. We gave him a smaj,]*
mirror, wherein he looked at himself, at which he was verv'
irignuonod, as olso at the sound of the bell. "/e gave him a

v;ine, which he noured over his face, and . hen
iO felt the strGwgtn of it he began to oioen his e^es wide
■.ve gave a second glo.ss of brrmdywine with a biscuit, hheh'
none 01 ^nnicn ho used. He had some shame because of his
niur.edness -wnon^hn sav; that we w-ro clothed. He went there-
^01 e ...n uo his ari.is and head on the taiile,ap .leanod bv this
to mane a sneecn to his dioty, as lyas evident from his^act-'ons
and raised ,,is dead and hands many times to the sky, led
many ..ordo in a loud voice, being engaged thus for lialf an

-no-'d^h-'- ■'^-°"d -ed this be fe egan to leap and sing. Heouon d nd.i.hsej.x very_merry anu gay. V/e tied a niece of sail-
ciotii in iront of his rn-ivate warts, which wonderfullv
ylep,sed mm. He was naturally cheerful of face. He danced
Litn tne sailors shen they had the fiddleplayed before him.
a  was not a little astonished at the sound and make of the

little craft was made of small nieces of v/ood
ana nold Logrih-r by some nlant, being nrovided from within
mth two nieces of wood. it was so light that one mian could
eaoiiy carry it; it was for us wonderful to see that one
man_alone dared to proceed in so frail a craft so far to sea^

nothing to helf him but a paddle, for when he r ached
b  about three miles from the shore. (Sharp I97O:

following day, other followed what may have b en a chief's
or n adman's oxar.iplo .and also cnrne to the same ship, in small
canoco ^nd on poro, the Rananui bull.rush swimming aid. On the
nintn of .april, word had a;wnrently gotten around about the unusual
visjtors and all of th- ships had Islander visitors. The first
nota.tion of what Ferdon ( ) has termed "forced exchange"
and to vdmch most .kiroeean visitors have referred as theft, occurred
on the tnmrd day of contact, vdion hats and caps were taken. One
crafty Islander, possibly recalmng the fine sailcloth obtained by
the .advance scout, made off with a table cloth from the Africaansche

0^"

Galey,

That paa.se of ship.oard interaction completed, it was up to
the Dutch to make th ir move. Five landing craft (three ooats ^nd
two slo ..ns) .ore outfitted and manned ••'ith a formidable part.v of^
Ip4 men ami sent in on the morning of the tenth, their l-ancllrig
vrobably being affected at La Pdrouse $ay (Hanga o Hoonu).
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In srite of the threatening asnect that the Dutch wished to

CO: ;runicatG, they boin.^ heavily arnod, tne Islanders were not

deterred and soon after landing, the lig t-hearted pilphering

that had occured on chip, emerged once again, but this time with

lethal consequences. Apparently frightened by the Islanders

rapacio':!snes , a young Under Mate ordered his colleagues to

open fire and a swath of death rioned through the encroaching

hapanui tiirong. Ten or t'.volve men fell dead and a number of others

lay wo'jnded as a result of the incident.

This macabre turn of e. ./nts does not aopear to have dampened

Saoanui dosire to come to t-rms v.ith th -ir bs unpredictable visi

tors for a man who ray have been a chief orderri)that, "...all

that they I the .HaranuiJ had, consisting of fruits, vegetables

and fo-vls," nhoul 1 f.sbched and brought from all sides, for.

(Sharp 1970:95). Sugarcane, fowls, yams and 'ananas were brought

iia t!ie Dutch co-.._ ected about 60 birds and 30 bunches of bananas,

for V/hicu tliey, "...^aid them the value amply with striped linen,

with whicn they a Ocur d to bo well pleased and satisfied." (Sharp

1970:96).

Tne ensuoing d?scri])tion of what the Dutch obsersaed sugr:ests

that the Urvrty may have str-oDJ.ed about tlie immddiate area and the

rrtho Garonicler of the Doggevoon expedition, Friodrich Behrens,

notes that tiio wumek xaoanui att muted to entice memb' rs of the

chip's couipr.ny (Sharp 1970:100), jni much the same manner as the

later Spanish expedition v/as to cxr,erience in 1770 (Gorney I9O8;

97). hegretiably for our further knowledge of Easter Island at

that early (for Eireiuean^) date, Minheer Roggeveen declined to

to go to the, ̂ .. main place of their land-cultivation and fruit-

trees....," because the v/oather took a bad turn (Sharp 1970:102).

J on returning to their ships, the ilotilla departed, pre-

cirma.blyy^ that c.ame day^ sithout further contact with the Islanders.
Tno:agh the ilppanui wbkbxhh are not known to have had contacts

..J yi xuro-ueans -irior to Rog eveen's areival, it. is suriiiising
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how Giiullar the caaracL r of oho hutch encounter was to thoso

diocx"'Lbed for tuthcr, looro vioited iol-nnds. fhns ilg j^nrtncudnrly

true vritLi .r ot' to enchajxco and recii nrocity (see Peoirson 19?0:

-122). I Ei^THtlciaiidiMaho'HB rej^er rKi above to tl'is enisocle as

re i'e ontic,' a pattern, ijiit I should liavo said r.iore accurately that

it was the foundation of a r^attorn.

This was that ,'11 ,su' senuent contacts (to lo62) mere most

often iiiitiwtod by an Iclandor (or a s; nil 'arty) coming out to

the dr.roi.-.-an ves el and t en, later, noosibly on-shoro int raction

with a landing party, hcgrottably, details of those interactions

are so!iiotii..os laclciiv; in oomo of the accounts.

Botivcnui 1722 and 1770, no contacts are l.no-."n to have occurred,

t!iou;jh tdio araivul of the Gn.nnish ships San Lorenzo and. S.nnta

l^osalia did not a -■":iear to perturb the Islauidors, who aga.in

dealt with their virwtors in a perraisslvo, tn;Ugh inter -ted manner.

This e^mmij.seivono ;:; ew..u owtonded to allowing the party, u der

ti io comi .and of G-npt.ain Lelipe Gorizaloz, to croct throe flags on

a trio of "iwi" sitic conos, locet /'X on the Po:i l-ie peni':iGula. T'-io

.•;ictua.l CO ..■••ntary u; on the Spaniard • c six day visit is nwulfcr^f in

t-hTT— an;,l what dxtxiix "embarrasing behaviour" th.at may Imvo

Lraucriircd du.r'i.n,('; I .h.i.c vis; "'t lias boon omitted (of. Pearson 1'97C:122)

The Spaniards also landed at Hanga o Hoonu and the exchange

began with the customary scouting party, this time of three men,
who were later joined by a fourth. Within two days from the initial

contact. Islanders swam out to the ship in large numbers (Corney
1903:97, 120). The Spaniards were generous with their initial

trading partners, as they wire given, "...ribbons, shirts, trousers,
seaman's jumpers and small gift metal crosses," as well as biscuits,
salt pork,ajii4 rice, "etc." ^ These amicable exchange relations
existed throughout the sojourn, including the relations that

the party on two small launch's circumnavigating the island had.
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As opposed to the taciturn Dutch traders, the Spanish explorers
I ? } \ .

were free with their prestations and counter-prestations and

little commentary appears in the accounts to suggest t e sort

of wholesale rifling that so upset Easter Island's first

group of foreign tourists. The Spanish philosophy in their

relations with the Rapanui is summed up by in Sub-Lie'tu. Juan

Herv^'s account;

The officer, Don Cayetano de Langara, issued orders
to our people that no one, under pain of a severe
flogging, should accept any article from the islanders
without giving some equivalent in return, or something
of greater value than that which they received, since
it was known there was a disposition to exchange
articles: and such in fact was put into practice(Corney
1903:122)

It is not surprising, then, that when an elaborate ceremony

was performed, on 20 November, the Islanders were not at all

fearful of the gunfire and musketry that accompanied the

erection of crosses and the signing of papersxxxXbK(Corney 1903:126).

Though good relations characterised the Islanders's initial

encounter with Spaniards from Peru, less than a century later

this happy episode was to be obliterated forever from the Rapanui

consciousness.

As I stated at the beginning, I do not propose a chronology

of events to encompass the forty-nine ZH^SHZdCBii known ships

that either called or approached Easter Island from 1770 to

1862. After establishing the above points regarding general

islander amicability and trading relationships, I would now like

to pass on to some specific features of contact in this time

period.

Referring to the Registry of ships, in Appendix C, it is

apparent that about a quarter of the ships associated with Easter

only sited the island, but came no closer than a few miles. I

have included them to indicate how well knov/n a reference point

the island was for mariners, particularly in the nineteenth century.

This suggests to me that there may have been many more contacts
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between the Islanders and outsiders than I have been able to
locate, though it is unlikely that such accounts, discoverable
in the future, shall add much to the general picture that I am
here presenting,

I have included in the Registry seven visits the exactitude
Of which I am not certain and, given my interest in exchange
aspects of the contact situation, they bear some discussion.

Two accounts are known only because of the wooden statues
alleged to have originated from Easter Island in the Peabody
Museum (Harvard) collection. One is very obscure and purports
to have been collected in 1840 by Oliver Perry Stone, during one
of the many whaling voyages of that time. The other is associated
with the famous (or infat,ous) mad Jack" Pcrcival, a United States
Huval captain in the l^th century./tc-JU«^>,ne Museum catalogue
card, Perclval collected his statue in 1845, on Easter Island. This
is unlikely, as he was off-duty in that year. According to my
sources, he may have collected the statue in 1826, during his
voyage as Captain of the USS Polphin. though one account of the
voyage malces no mention of a call at Easter Island (Paulding I970).
The other possibility is that he collected it from another navigator
during his spell commanding the OSS Constitution between 1844 and
1846. Accounts of "Mad Jack-s" behaviour in other ports suggests
that Easter Island is perhaps better off never to have encountered
such a rAinbuhhtious individual.

The visits Of Captain Blyth in 1826 and Captain Thlbaud in
^  1829 are known to me only thrcngh secondary sources and nothing

is known about the character of thilr contact with the island.
Finally, Captain Charles R. Cary, In 1839. hp, stayed just off
shore Of the island In late February, but mentions nothing 1» his
log about his relations with the Isla ;ders.

Their are two other possible contacts about which little is
known and they each are important, but for separate reasons.

V
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As will be discussed in greater detail below, Chile took

possession of Easter Island in 1888, though their interest in

the territory antedates that annexation by nearly two decades.

Most Chilean publications dealing with gxginnr Rapanui credit

the Chilean naval vessal, Colo-Colo, with a call in I85O (Marin

n.d.:83, Ramirez 1939:26, Stephan-Chauvet 1965:372, etc.). When

I discussed this trip with a retired Chilean Admiral, who is

publishing the official history of the Chilean Navy, he informed

me that the Colo-Colo had been de-commissioned and sold in I84I

and that its fiLsmasxsd&E alleged commander for the voyage, Leonicio

Sefioret, was otherwise engaged at that time. I was prepar d to

accept this authoritative view until I was informed that a des

cendant of Commandante Se&oret, in Santiago, was selling a large

collection of Easter Island statues. The purchaser, who has

assembled probably one of the finest private collections of Easter

Island carvings of the last century, knows his product and attested

that their style revealed that they were certainly pre-l862 and

possibly even eai^lier. In addition, they were carved from the

now rare toromiro wood and were finished with an exactitude unknown

to present-day island carvers. A glance at the Registry of

aut orities, however, indicates that a possible descendant of

the Comandante, was Military Governor of the island in 1943. In

either case, the eollection is a very fine one and, from my

exchange point of view, an extensive one. If Senoret did call at

Easter Island in I85O, he must have sustained a lengthy bartering

session to procure the fine pieces that his modern descendant

possessed.

The other uncertain contact may have occurred in 1843 and

is very different in nature for the Europeans involved may have

been overcome and ultimately eaten by the Rapanui! If this is

so, then it is the only occasion on which it occurred on such a

large scale. The h±xk evidence pro and con is found in inference

and in oral traditions elicited in the last century.
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There is only one fact in the affaire and that is that Monseigneur

Etienne Rouchouze, the Bishop of Nilopolis and 23 priests,

novices, lay brothers and nuns disappeared, along with their

ship the Marie-Joseph. It is alleged that the Bishop and his

party airrived on Rapanui and were overpowered by the Islanders,

information obtained in Mangareva in 1872 mentions that there was

a gr at battle between those on the ship and the Islanders, cul

minating in a large issst cannibalistic feast at Anakena. Another

version, collected at the same time and place, however, states

that the Bishop stayed only one day but departed due to hostilities,

but the other version prevailed among the Mangarevans, who

persecuted the Rapanui for having eaten a Bishop. Still another

priest, in Haapaper, Tahiti, however, mttwsx doubts the Mangarevan

assertions and believ s that the Bishop was only wounded when he

arrived and departed the island wit out further harm. The last,

and perhaps most accurate word, in 1898, suggests that the story

of having eaten and attacked the Clergymen was a confusion with

actual events known to have occurred, such as the killing of Robert

F. Weeks, of the Prudence, in 1856. Neve theless, the story con

tinues to haunt the Rapanui imagination and, according to

Englort (1948:152), the Islanders who visited Tahiti in 1926 made

special inquiries and "discovered" that the Bishop was, in fact,

eaten by Tuamotuans, whose dessendants today still preserve

^ - memorabilia in the form of vestments. Further, most visitors
to the island, even today, may be taken to see the pit at Analcena

wherein the Bishop and his companions are supposed to have been

cooked.

The remaining thirty txxkHx thirty known instances of contact

may be divided, only for conveinece's sake, into those thir'teen

who actually effected a landing and the kh other thirteen who

merely ramained offshore. The number of visits, growing to

more than one per year in some years of the 19th century, is

partly due to the island being designated as a known source of

/U^
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fresh vegetables and fruits. As is evident from the Registry»
American ,

many/whaling vessals called there for just that purpose and other,

particularly laR British, ships may also have done so. Accounts

from these mostly trading voyages suggests that the Islanders

were used to dealing with such commercial exchanges. Though

some visitors, such as Cook's company, complained of the lack

of fowls, sweet potatoes and bananas appear to have existed in

adequate quantities. In 1848, Joseph Mitchell II, on the New

England whaling bark, Three Brothers obtained 00 barrels of

sweet potatoes, yam and forty bunches of bananas. In 1851,

the Poiiomac's master traded for 30 barrels of yams and sweet
el?r. ; v. tOf- Of ; '4jr v ""-'n

potatoes'3^ There are other, less precise examples in the

Registry.

One whaling captain, in 1821 on the Foster, appears to have

accomp ished sufficient contact v/ith the Islanders to not only

have traded for vegetables, but also obtained information about

the moiety social organisation that I will be discussing further

in Chapter Three below. He also, like La P^rouse Before him,

presented different kinds of seedsand instructions for their

planting. Thomas Raine, in that same year, on the merchant

ship Surrey, did likewise a few months later.

These commercial enterprises were well established by

the late l8th century, as James Baker, in the Jenny called at

Easter for the needs of his crew, and Charles Bishop of the Ruby,

in 1793 and 1795, had EsKt the Island's location and attributes

as part of his secret orders. Another merchant, Amasa Delano,

in l801, though unable to land, observed the Islanders along the

shore holding up produce for trade. In 1838, Dupetit-Thouars

notes that the Islanders aopear to be accostomed to interaction

(and exchange) with visiting ships, though he was not satisfied

witii the produce he received. rV- ,i.'i ■ .' \ f 1 ■jf- It
The Islanders made it clear to their guests just what;^.i-A'es".

they wanted in return for their garden items. Since La Perouse's
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distribution of cheap medals on chains, such adornment continued

to be a welcome item. Lisiansky, of the Neva in I804, distributed

Russian copper money on a string, along with empty mustard bottles,
and even copper earings. Captain Raine, in 1821, also tied a

^  bottle around the neck of an Islander, wit the name of his ship
(  ) in it and six years later, Hugh Gumming reported that tewirferv

empty bottles were a favoured trade item. In a more long term
connection. Captain Bishop in 1795, amused some Rapanui men by
shelving off their beards and this unusual ceremony was demanded
by the ten men who came on board Admiral Dupetit-Thouars's

vessal in 1838. In fact, by that time, it would appear that
the Easter Islanders had gained sufficient sophistication to

specify that they did not wish one particular European item,
but another. Dupetit-Thouars's knives and scissors were turned
down and graphic signs made that fishhooks were the iteKixEix

cov-ted good. In the early days of the Spaniard's visit, Bub-

gHtxvHgRtHbiBxpxadBBBxaMB lieut. Herv^ remarked that their
trade goods were hidden by the Islanders as soon as they were
acqu-ired, but Belcher of the Blossom, in 1825, noted that a
cxiiefly figure wore a European felt hat.

Aside from the vegetable market that Rapanui became for
South Pacific mariners in the 19th century, it also became knovm
for other attractions. On the material side, Easter Island statues
became popular with sailors, as the various museum collections in
Ahe United States and Europe can attest. Of course, some collectors
such as Cook, were "scientific" collectors, but many others w ̂ e
merely searching for a souvenir. In I825, Belcher noted that though
a great deal of showmanship went into the statue trading, the
Islanders were obviously eager to part with their carvings in
exchange for the right European item. Wood and fishhooks purchased
for Cuming and his companions in 182? figures of animals and humans
and Dupetit-Thouars, in 1838, acquired a double-headed figure.
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from an aspiring entrepreneur who swam out to the ship as the
Q.

vessel v/as gliding past. The whalers on the George, in 1839,

obtained idols from Islanders who swam out to the ship with them

and Rear-Admiral Frederic Proby, of H.M.S. Portland traded

fishhooks for "small idols." One of these carvers may be the

man sketched by one of his crew that I reproduce here at Figure

8. The opinion held by Islanders in this century probably

reflectstheir similar views held, especially, in the last century;

Local opinion regarding the intelligence of the visitors
is not high. One man brought to us a wooden figure which
he said was 'very old.' 'Indeed,' remarked my husband,
'it has grown up quiclily; it was a new-born infant when
I saw it being carved in the village a few weeks ago.'
'Ah,' said the proud possessor, slightly disappo nted,
but nursing his creation like a.child and stroking it
affectionately, ' he very fine, muy antiqua [sic], I
keep him for ships; capitano man-o-wari, all same
damn fool (Routledge 1919:271). Tro" ̂ i-,

There is only one instance known to me where Islanders

akhHined desired food supplies foom European ships and that is

rerorted by Captain Henry Buncker of the ©haling ship Paragon

in 1822:

We obtained sweet potatoes, yams, bananas, plaintains,
sugar cane, etc., all of which were brought off by
the natives of both sexes who swam out to the boat
(wh^e boat) lying at the back of the surf, and for
their produce they took nothing but whalescraps, which
they devoured with great eagerness (Stackpole),

The George. in 1839, also reported that the Islanders wanted

scraps of whale for their produce.

yi By the 19th century, Easter Island was also knownj^at least
some of its women to sailors, in exchange for t^ade goods. Moeren-

hout, in 1828, was aware that there was "much trafficking in women,"

and there was a fear that veneral diseases were prevalent on

tue island at that time. Cook's men had noticed the paucity of

women in 1774 and just over a decade later. La Perouse opined

that females had been hidden fxHB at the time of the Kngitsk

famous navigator's visit. As for his visit, he notes, "...

t. ey [the women] offered their favours to all those who wou'd

niaKe them a present," le expressed, however, his gratitude
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to the Anglo-Saxon restraint that hhk made the gallic pleasure
possible^ However, with his usual perspicacity, La P^rouse(1786:17-£
also noted that some of the females were forced into this trade
against t eir will;

thirteen or

•friT- +->, ° ^S®> in the hope of receiving pay
f  young females wasa proof that in this respect the custom of the country

^^°i^ted. Not a single Frenchman made use
the barbarous right which was given him: and if there w^rp
some moments dedicated to nature, the dksre and
consent were mutual, and the women made the first
advances.

Women w.r ̂ often brought on board ships that did not otherwise
land, as for example, in the case of Dupetit-Thouars who noted
that in three of the five canoes that approached his ship, an
Jraaia attractive woman was placed in the prow<^^Gumming's coy
remark that the Ensign of the Discover, had much to do with the
Islanders while they lay off tku Hangaroa for five days in 1827
inay be a reference to such behaviour and "Te'ree," beloved of
Captaia Bishop in 1795, was brought on board the along with
other .aldeas, P-clsely for _the^ purpose ot/llTe^rs. with the
crew of that ehlpX When strong surf prevented the landing of

in 1801, in addition to attempting to attracfc the
crow With hunches of sugar-cane, yams, and other or oduce, the
women also made clear by signs what commerce they offered.*'

In only seven of the accounts is there a mention of European
fear of Islander attack,wjille of these, in five of these there
are actual acc ouata of attacks. Looking at them in chronological
context, in the Registry, it la clear, however, that while some
Captains feared attack, others enjoyed good realtions, often even
in the same year. Captain Chapman, in 1821, remarks, "This island
tRapanul] is inhabited by savages," five months earlier Captain
Raine of the Surr^ had enjoyed excellent relations. In 182?,
the Discoverer landed no personnel for fear of attack, but app-ars
to have had no dlfriculties during their stay.
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********«***********«***************;;*****«******•****************

While cHziaiHigsx probably not a commercial venture, three

ships reports contain a reference to islanders actually wishing

to be taken off the island. Captain Raine, in 1821, refused to

take an Islander with him who expressed a desire to leave. A

quarter of a century earlier. Bishop notes that two young men

specifically requested to be taken to "Britanniee," which he

refused to do. In about l806, a South whaler. Captain Page,

took a young man to England with him and his story is told in

retrospect in a news story that was reprinted in a New England

newspaper:

A few days since tne youngest son of Crang-a-low, King
of Eastor Island, was baptised at Rotherhithe Church,
in the name of Henry Easter, after the island. This
prince came to England six years ago, in the ship
Advonture, Captain Page, South whaler, who touched there
to refresh the crew, they having scurvy. vVhen he departed.
King Crang-a-low v/as supposed to be 125 years old,
scarcely able to walk, and his hair as white as milk
and thr! fathe of twenty three children, all of whom
were alive. This young grince is, in every respect,
a handsome man, about 22 years of age, five feet eight
inches high, is very tractable, and will, in a short
time, be able to civilize his countrymen, if an
opportunity should offer.

Adcording to oral historical a counts, at least one other

Isla der voluntarily ent off on a whaling voyage, to serve as

crew.^^*

*****************************************************************

La Perouse experienced some pelting by stones in 1786, when

some of his crev/ attempted to recover a grapnel stolen from the

ship, but it wasn't until Captain Adams, in 1806, and Captain

V/indship, in 1809, that Islanders are alleged to have actually

repelled visitor« by attacking them. Von Kotzebue, in 1815»

appears to have received a very chilly reception, though initial

relations were amicable with trading of vegetables for small

bits of old iron. IMien a landing was attempted, his men were

repulsed, apparently without provocation. A story that enjoyed

a certain popularity in the last century wa_ the surprise attack
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ott Captain Beechey'B men, who attempted to land at Cook's

Bay (Hangaroa) in 1825. Three accounts exist of this incident,

though they are all relatable to the EHBiniaiidiBg officer's

report submitted by Lieut. George Peard (1972)70-4). Gough

(1972:73) is quite incorrect when he states that "Roggeveen had

a similar experience; a friendly reception gave way to native

hostility;," as the Dutch difficulties are relatable to Cornelius±x

Mens's timidity, as the account makes very clear. In the

Beechey case, it is more difficult to explain just whey an attack
initial

should ensue from fxrifg friendly relations. PeaLrd believes that

the Islanders may have feared that they foreigners were about to

move off, without further trading and so wished to prevent their

departure. Beechey, from his vantage point on the deck of kicsHMS

Blossom notes: "About this time [of initial landing] one of the

natives, probably a chief, with a cloak and head-dress of feathers,

was observed...hastening from the huts to the landing place,

attended by several persons with short clubs"(BGechey I831t48).

What Beechey's men mayxhavH suffered bxbxekz may be related to

some onshore conflict between the newly arriving chief and those

already present, the result being a decision to pelt the outsidors.

Of all the incidents of conflict report, however, it is

usually the European who has escaped unscathed and there is only

one report kkxk of a foreigner's death on the island and that was

of Robert F. Weeks, boat steerer, who was murdered by Rapanui in

1856.

On the other hand, attacks on Islanders by Europeans did

occur in the last centmy, even before the 1862 outrage that

follows shortly. The most notorious episode occurred in 1805 and

is know* from several sources, though all attempts to trace a

schooner Nancy from New London, have failed. It was a well-known

incident and even in the reports on violence against Europeans by

Rapanui, newspapers and other comn;entatora refer to the Nancy as
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an explanation for the attacks. Delano, who arrived to the seal
& 1805

islands of Mis Afuera (Juan Fernindez Group) in iBOO/provides a

good discription of the, then, infant industry (1817:304-8IX),

Between 1800 to 1804 between ten to twenty ships called at the

small island for the purpose of sealing.xmi± The trade began between

Canton and the sealers in daout 1797 and Delano estimates that

as many as three million seals may have been tarried off up to

1804, he himself being an important participant in the trade.

He reports that he has been aszDDaHyxaszfaHEiBKBXBhlps, "...at the

place v.hen there w e the people of fourteen ships, or vessels,

on the island at one time, killing seals"(Delano 1817:306). Such

work requ-res labour and as Eastor Island is the closest inhabited

(and unprotected) territory to the sealing grounds, it is not

surprising that unscrupulous captains might look to the Rapanui as

a labour pool. In 1805, most reports agree, the Nancy carried off

12 men and 10 women. While the females remained on board, the

men, given the first opportunity, jumped overboard to escape, most

of them perishing as the ship was far out to sea. Englert (1970:

150-1) reports a tradition that one of these desparate men actually

managed to survive the long swim and returned to his island.

Contemporary reports, however, record that the Nancy returned

to Rapanui for another raid shortly after their first one.(M—ren-

hout- l857br2?7-^Von-lC&tzebue-l82m?9=2e>^ There: ±S'-a i^iled =

note in-Thomson (1091:465) that aHbtlier similar-raid was
/

perpetrated -by a Captain Rugg'of the Friend- at some-time ua—

spec-id'ied,-

Not--UHexpeotedly, reportTS—crf—such atrocities are infrequent,

tha—purpetrators preferring anonymity-te -in-faiBj^r The only other

reported incident of tliis nature was that of the whaling ship

Pindos, in 1822. An enterprising first-mate, Waden, gathered
r T

up a quantity (by force?) of women and took them to his crew

mates as prostitutes. The following day, the Islanderswrre

released and thrown back into the water, Jch left to make it
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decade opens witi the determination of the Sacred Hearts

mission in Valparaiso to send Lay Brother Eugene Eyraud to

Easter Island, The House had heard of the condition of the

island when Captain LeJeune of the gHzxtxt French warship,

Cassini had visited the Chilean seaport in late 1862. Eyraud,

a Frenchman who had made his fortune as a merchant and mechanic

in Argentina and Bolivia, eagerly volunteered to work on the

Mission,

I do not propose to provide here a mission history for

Easter Island, for that has been done elsewhere. The details

I included above regarding the Peruvian-related events were nece

ssary as many of these have never been recounted and I wish to

provide some detail of the traumatic events so that their sub

sequent effects could be better appreciated. I have discussed

above the numbers involved in the trade, but for Easter Island

I must also add that among those who were carried off to Peru,

figured Maurata, the last lineal king of Rapanui, as well as

most of his court and principal advisers. In Chapter Two I wi 1

detail the rise in pov/er of the matato'a (wsu: lords), but here
i/\

I only mention that these were tlie individual a ̂remaining
by the end of 1863, along with their followers. The situation

that the missionaries came into was an. open one, where power

was there for t .ose who wished to take it. I will discuss the

events between 1864 and 1872 mainly from the point of view of

the Islanders^ re to tnocc-
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'.Vhilo tho firat ))ri;L,3ionary on Rarnnui v.as ;',yraud in

1364, it was not until March of 1866 that a true mission v;as

at ii\r5t establishod on tho island. Brother ..yraud's aicount

of his ninoronths ationg tlie fierco and divided napanui testifies

to the power strufj^lo that existed 3UbRcpuo3it to the Peruvian

ceiaoue, L.i-\rly on, Eyraud becores asioociated with a matato^a

called Toroir.oti, whose rolo in later events will bo considorod

btlOV.',

ncarceiy a f vs months after the disast; rs recounted above,

rother ougine arrived on Lastor Inland in early January, 1964*

lis ( :yraud 1864J account of his first contact with the Rayanui

includes his roturnlnc of rano 'a Pabhu, Adrien, Taiaateka and

tfir other Pa^anui. On the voyaye out from Tahiti to Rapaniii,

lone yromisod to aid Eus^ne in the settinfj up of tho

mission, but a ears to have abdicated this role upon arrival,

for vvG road no more of him. The ^^arty landed first at Hangaroa,

i3Htx2,yE4'iaDizhGd2tiax®aJtii.zt0xfiiiakBHax2;ifehsxiKZE0xrHBi0HK with a yo ng

i.ancarcvan taking them ahoro, whii.e Eyraud waited on board. V.hhn

Daniel tho ; angarevan returned, ho exclaimed tho ferocity of

the Rajanui and urg.d lirothor iiugino not to land. Daniel also

notfxl that of 100 Hapanui embarked at Gal] ao and ri/turnod to the

island, on'y 18 had arrived alive a short while before and that

t ey had carried v.lth thorn smalloox from id-ru which was infecting

tho v.hoio island. The Captain offered to return Brother Eugfene to

Tahiti free of charge, if ho would abandon his plan to Kxtsda go

ashore,ximt Tho detorminod Lay Brother chose to disregard this

advice and landed. He found himself ourroundod by an apparently

iostile crowd and only the vc- enco of Pane apreciTS to have moli-

iied tho gathering's unfriendly intontiono. All were armed and

ot . i!' risingly, on thoir ;uard. Eyraud fled with hio companions

nd o ont tlio night in a cave, on tho road to Anakena.

The ne.rt day he firrived to find that the ship, possibly fearing

the smanrov. . ..
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that Ivi;:. cr'aocta liad boon d3barked at llancaroa, bo fore the ship

had depart ad. A na;-i ealled Temanu prosGntod ':;yraud -rith thrne

chiicksnti and it is then that ■Toror,;etl firot aprsearis. Later,

!.k\.^thor kus&uo reflects u. )on the cnaractor of his chief protector,

nrd aatagenist:

Toroinoti is a raan of 30 years, largo and very much
like the natives of the island, ikis false and con-
trciry airos r.ivcMaaK ins. ire in one a feeling of
defiance and justifies the ^.ad reputation that he
has, udcording to tlic others, l was told tliat he
vvaa not a iiaa-iijo • of the bast or Island race, Pcesibly

is roally r. caaaca; he has liis si" .lie s and a
nut .erDUG family; and I p rcloved that he KlcxyKst
enjoyod a exx1cx±h gr: 'at ms±xk^ pov/er over his
neigjoourc (kyraud l'364!l8l).

.ofore long, Toroueti has stripped Eyraud of his goods,

clothing and even his d gnity and the Lay Brother becomes

a momb r of Toroi/oti's entourage, being drap; ed bout by him

as the natato*a*a fortunes change. In later years. Father

Hippolyto Roussel was to recognise that Torometl'a inter st

in associating hiwi^ielf trith the mi usionaries (initially) was

because of his thirst for power and that hds interest in religion

as such was marglncil to his larger aims.

Eyraud notes that B-»asonal fostiVtals were -racticed during

hia initial rosidenco and he was resenL at some of t eee, though

tho gprin kataveri ho mont ons (which I will discuss in greater

doLail below) w^s^was only, ",..un espfeco do cthamp do mare ou I'on

30 r^unit, (Eyraud 1864-1136)," While treated as Torometi's chat tie,
he novo.-t oles;; was considered to have some sort of magical

!)0'.;ors. Phis is d-. -monstrated "cy an incident in which ho attempted

to tell his irgil about tho afterlife. Eyraud's knowledge of

:ia anui was sparse and only when ho pronounced "e pohe oe," (hia

rei'dorinp; of " ou shall die") did oromoti respond not with th.oo-

lugical uudarBtanding, but v.ith foar that a spell had b-en cast

upon Idml 3- -ing a "papa," as Kymud rondei-s the Tahitian t riui o£

for "for ipnor, or vh:Hn man," he .as also o> ected to know about
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boat construction and to thic end, a colisction of driftwood,

.iccoo of -.aropoun oriniia, f^uch as oceclocka, Acre brou^'ht to him

to aG-.cr.ble, P/raud tried to canvinco them that ho wasn't export

in naval iiattc-rs, hut Toroa^eti and his companions insisted. 3yraud

retaivis, v.hen the frasile craft was launched, that as soon as tho

- cat enter 1 the 'sea/ tiie sea entered the boat and that was tho

end of the orcject (F:yrnud 1964:200-1),

About the 3rd or Uh of Oe;.tcmb.-r, 1364, a »!nntavcri" was

nelcl nnd Torrr, etl lost to his rival Tamateka, ToroToti was ori-

giiially from Anakena, but had occu^^iod an ortato in the xiangaroa

urea, at leact during Pyraud's tiiro, v.lion Torocoti lost the

annual contest, Tamatclin drove h4o4iiHAx*kaxX3UiHKintXKi from Ilangaroa

•;nd Eyraud chose to follow his torrcontor-protoctor. l ooe than

ci\9 i.onth later, Lro'l.cr Lugon© departed from tho Island, but with

u riot .rr.inatibh ta rctiirn.

Lobu than two years later, L'.ruud undo good his dps^^e and

did return to Tia anui, but this time accompanied by ah "hven more

det-rrulnod Father UipA^.olyto RougdoI, Father Ttl-.polytc was a v^ry

diffe -nt man from 'Jyraud, Though younger by six yeai's than the

oionoor rulrsinnary, he had been a j)rieut for over t* oiity years and

for aone nf that r.i o, a Gi,.ccosoful mJ osionary to the Karquesae,

t'ua>.otu, :uid l angnrcva ndnricnr.. lie v.as an ox ;eri'mcod man with

v-ry d .fi'.iito idcun as to hovic a mieoiun should bo organds 'd and

outiuctod. hen liO rr-:. -.rr.ud vri-rlv-d on -ho island, ae later

told 6xsXata:.chxsKlx$; I-almcr cf the Topazo, "...It lia, i.-cned that

one f too ,-rl >;y.ul c.ilffa took up a stouo with a menacing g sture

and i ado alu mfujU, .» » ■ lioulc*. brain hux.} out iXk-usnel \.aG oqual to

tuo .vccasinn, and quietly follou hir., with his walking stick...

(r.lmor 1^69:372).

short wl.ile later, a/raud mid kcuseol were joined by Father

Gaspard Zumbohin and Brother Thdodule Escolan. After a slow start,

the Mission progrors. d ra-^ldly and b late 1868, Rousael could
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claim that all Papanui had b; an baptiaod and, ;r cumably, entered

into tho church. From the oneet, h^yraud apaeare to have exercised

a calmini?: effect upon ii useel and Fumbohm and Hscolan ';:ent off

to tho other side of the island to establish the irission at

Vaihu. Zurnbohm favoured brin^ins tho church to the Islanders,

v/hile I?ousscl vas of tho opposite opinion. He vish to sain coiri-

plote control of the Islanders's a tivities and discourage

"pngan" festivities and paraniianalia, Tho prized Easter Island

carv-lngs were either distroyed or sent off to th® scholar-Bishop

Tepano Jausson. ZuribohiTi, howev r, was irore tolorant it appears.

His main task was tho estnb] Isliment of an orphanage.

Though both eventually convertR, Torometl and Poma, repre -anting

tho west and cost factions, ap nnr to have continued thoir rivalry,

but more quietly, Th© main etr am of conflict appears to have

bofjn between Kyraud and Rouscel, for tho former left the house of

the latter end rofus d to live with him. After Fyraud's death in

Ibbo, Zuribohm ap oars to have ttiken on the Lay Brother's Views and

appears in oprositlon to Roussel's centralist plans. On the other

hand, it was Lumbohm who pronioted the idea of a police force,

the ffluto'i, to which Rounnel refers as a "secret police,"(R-^uesel

1^^)68), Roussel favoured tho croation of a central village, with

a govornn-cnt and council to judge difficulties. In this, ho was

aided by a French Captain in the Merchant Marine, Jean-Paptiste

On^sJmo Dutrou-Borrler,

Uutrou-B rnler, In his forties v/br^n he first ar/iv^d on

Easter Islc-nd, as Cnptain of the Tempi Co to bring rurbohm and

Escolan froin Chile, had been an officer in the Crimean Var, In

1865» he had ccme tr the ^outh and had pnrticipatrd in

inter-island trade. He had also recruited Island re froa French

Polynesia for plantation work and had ©von tried to recnuit a

work gang on Rapanui in February of 1867, His relations with

tiie miaeionaries, when he arrived then, wore very good and he had
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soni, a /ory laudatory lettor to tho EiBbO|SZH2xSHbitfci, ^raining

the \;ork of the I'aioaion.irleB (Dutrju-'3ornlor 1867). In late

1867, he ap >ear8 to have rim cat of luck and was advertising

transport to Liverpool. A similar advertieonont, by the house
hncllsh-'fahltian

of tho w.althy/iiierchant, John Brander, ho-.over, ap :earB to have

received the gr at'.r public response, lor th.o Tanrpico roni.ained

at the dockside, while Jlrander»E ship departs, A month later,

in F'Bbruary, 1868, Dutrou—Bornier Iooggo his ownoi'ship ef the

Tari.jico and bocoEies captain of the small, 69 ton Aoral, in which
Gnrietian Schmidt -z-z

ho and an asjociate/depart for hantnr Island.^

Initially, Dutrou-Bornier and rjouncol closely cooperate

•md the Captain assisted the missicnary in bringing in Bapnnui

living outside of Hangoroa, In 1869, The njssion, John brandor

ixnd Butr u-Bcrnior ont-r into a cooperativo contract to develop

Baotor Island connrrrcinlly. V/hile Zumbohrr. had established himself

at V.uihu and Poussol at Hangaroo, Butrou-BornJ r chose the sacred

Gito of Mataveri for his headquarters. Torometl appears to have

r. cominad tho rOle that Dutrou-Pornicr might play and asaociateo

yd' ) hirrclf with ulic tatavcri mob, Homa, Ipv. V'jr, reirainod with

the micrionai'ies,

rarly in the minrlon's }).u;tory, lou.'wcol had proposed that

the dying population should be transferred to Ilangareva and that

the island should be abandoned. Father Augusta Jamot, aftrr

spGfiklnf: vith Bur.bohr:, -.ho had cocnr c.d a largo plot of land in

the south of Chile, sugrpnted transporting tho entire population

there. And, Butrou-Bornler still had his inter sts in obtaining

fjrrKziahCKrHrJez plr.ntrticna lobourors for Rrard. r'n TahJtian

uropertj PS. In this rtf.ir i, the Rui rpoans on Kapanul had very

Fimllar nrtionc of imt should be the final fate of the island's

"o u]-tion. I ounopct that it was tho details of these arrangements

that eventually r?sult d in tho conflict that erupted in 1869, as
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v/oll as the Claohin,-: willc of the Rapanui nrotagoniste, Torometi

and Roma,^'^

The main point of conflict between Rousoel and Dutrou-Bornier

anpears to have been over the witnisaing of sonie land deeds,Azxiix

nyxbyx Rouar.ol refused to witnef58 them, though Zurr,bohm*B position

on this is obscnre. The Vaihu nissicn ap-->oars to have enjoyed

friendly relations with Dutrou-Bornier.HaAx3t)uuix&)UB)aM)uiggBlfe±lt

ihile Toromoti and his "pupuranga" v/ere tearing up Hangaroa crops

and firing upon Roussel^a adherante (including Roma, of course),

Dutrou-Bornior find Zumbohm wore exchanging pigs I A siiort while

later, when Zunbohm fell ill, Dutrou-Bornier visited his ftiend

on :oro than one occasion, RouBsel (l870) is grantly displeased

by this amity, Dntrou-nornior tries to con^'lnce Zumbohm that the

only difficulty on ICuBtor Island Is Roussel and that If other

missionaries vero to come to the island, than troubleo would cease.

The only time that Dutrou-Bornier sought to Justify hie actions

wan in a letter dated 25 Foburary, 1871i to the Bishop of Tahiti,

in which ha claims that Roussel, In an early act at centralization,

forced Rapanui at gunpoint to leave tuolr homoe in Anakena and

llotuiti and to come to "langaroa. According to Dutrou-Bornier, the

rain source of conflict was over his allowing a certain part of

the population to return to their homes in Anakena and to live

there, as they choose, Roussel sends a force to distroy this

oncaxapment and it Is Irom that, according to Dutrou-Bornier, thvit

the real devar^tation arisos (J)utrou-Bornler 1871) •

>hatev<:<r the Ruro joan motivos might have been, Torometi

amnryoc as Dutron- 'ornier•n chompion. Above, I mentioned that

Torov eti had b.--«n hunlXiated and thrown out of Hangaroa, Now,

with the aid of Dutrou-Bornier»a armaments (and a kog of powder

from a Chilean sh:'; in I870), he v/as able to exact his revenge.

It ap oaro from contemporary accounts that what Toror.etl was
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coiiijitjtcut v.ith "FatavGi'i behaviour." It wat. not until the luiddlo

of l87b that • ■uropcHn arnr, v/oro uc.d in the conflict, on Dutrou-
boDiier'n Rldo.InThe o.tx'ly conf^ictts, in which Toroiiieti and his

coBii.-aniono tore up crops, Dutrou-V'ornior did not appear, but
aloo in 1670, he . res a blanlc at Flouoaol, ap firontly to scare
him. Today, Ripxnui sLill point to a low pronvnitory and affirm
that it v/afl from that locale that ]/utrou—T'ornlGr would amuse him—
oolf by firing; upon the niaaion nt Hancaroa. Under th6 Ijatavori
covornr ent, \dth Torometi as its prime prota/ronist, there is an

ar-ent return to ""pa^yinicn" and a revival of old customs. In
the fi.iB:>loi'iary accounts'^^ ten Rapanui are mcntionod specifically
as heing followers of Dutrou— ornier, thou^'ii the Dij-sslonaries
admit that he had as many as 80 followers. Like Tcrometl, those

other nine Icnown Ra, nnul wore from westccant clans and ,. i;ro, in

fact, all Kiru, while the onl-Y opposing Raannul, Roma, vas from
ToSf^ariki. The reviv 1 of this oontinuinn conflict, i'/n.lch I
discuss in gr ater Jotali in the next chapter, in evident.

In late 1870, LuTrbohm falls gravely lll,3nid loaves the
island, and the situ, tion rapidly detorioratos, Lven a visit
by John i r- ndcr, in 1871, falls to nolv. . tho problems and by this
timo, Latavcri raids on nangaroa and (after hm.bohm*s departure)
on Vfiilhu, have rKdKesdrfchORexsronBxtaz dovantatod those areas,

Xhc bishop rtfi-uaxaKtisf ord re Rousnel to abandon tho island in

/loril of 1871 and, at the snmc time, rrnndc; and Bornier comract

va.irKern for n coco.eat pi intation at Ila^jpapo, In June of l871»

the Brsnder ship, ."ir John Purgoyno, brings 109 ra] anui to Taliiti
caul 166 . top in I angareva with Rou: sol, though PoucselVo firut
1  tl r fror. K. ngarwa lists only t- tity-nino adults and Jauoeen

(  ) in a lat^r wllic tlonK avfrn that Rcuceol only took with

him "at. ut fifty," Ac: ..rdinc to the ml;:.: Ir.nrry accounts, all

save a few stalwart Dutrou-Bornier supporters, .viched to come to



dCj)^':irt, but ultimately 175 woro left behind on the burnt-out

]:lant'itiune of "apanui, iivon I?oMa and Toromati loft their

lioiaoland,HH3t thouch both periahed in Tahiti in subaoquent years,

inzthsztlMztztxa

Byzi83?2:^ by the end of 1872, 247 Rapanui had cone to reside

in Tahiti ajid v;ithin one year the unfamiliar climato and, pro

bably, poor conditions, had claimed the lives of 95 (38 o/o)

of them. More v/orr- to nerish, until axaHzthHZsaiaiiXzKBteHyxBf

25zlaBHdHZHfA'fHBtijtzthakxBXBXsaaifciraxsafc the rlaster Island pro.-ence

in Tahiti v/aa to all but vanish. The rnicsionary affirmation

that Dutrou-Bornier provantcd Rapanui from leaving the islfind

v-it the misnionaries doo not b- ar up to the nroof of continued

migration to Tahiti tliroughout 1872, Itirth'T, the French captain

felt seonre enough of his poBition in early l87X to leave the

island and Journey to Bydney, whore he i^archased 40? Eierino

laitibs and shipped then Lack to Rapanui,

As 1 will diacuGc in gr ator detail in Chapt r tho

population by IC'72 had been educed to only about five percent

of its ostimatod l862 level, Fataveri and Hangaroa had become

tho centr<? of govornmcnt and authority on the island and Rapanui

had firmly ontrred into contact vith ciutsid rs. Those islanders

v;ho rorrainod behind, arrived at an aceamotJatlon ith their

tavaua (gov rnor), as niatrou-Bnrnior had dcclar. d himself. Later,

prob.'Lly for a v rioty of reasons, Dutrou-Pornler was to be
■ij?

Kiadderod by his Island r nraoclatcs.

4. ! .'y. 1' it* i G end culoniu* i-u

The next haae in Raranui's development history extends from

t^ZS. 1S72 to 1383, Juring this period, the island waa nearly
dapopalatcd and -.vnilo ^ facto a colony of French Polynesia, was

iii! .bido.A.ad. iit ctate, fne majority of the contact was with

Tahiti, through at least two 1. rand' r ships each yesir. Though this
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tino in cloEvr to the rrodern-day po-pulv.tion, very ?_ittlc is Imov/n

of it in tho traditional hintory. Moreover, there is little in

the way of docuirentation to inforn uo of activities on the island.

It was psrhapG bocauEG it was cuch a tranquil period that little

is rn: oEberod, save for tho expedition to Tahiti, discussed belo^v,

b  tho "hin'"l' a::d his antoura/::o. Tho noriod ends with a discussion

of c,ho grcv/inn; Chilean interos.t in tne island, that was to

ovcnVaato in annexation in Soptonbor, 1838,

Tho main activity on the island during this period was tho

raising of livestock, as is amply demonstrated by tho records of

;>hoeo ar ivlny from Hapanul during the period. In all, 780

S leep were known to have been brought for sale in Pane' te and,

acci)rding to tho roport of the Constance, in l854-i bot\ eon

t,,onty-fivo and thi-ty tons of wool -or year ran produced on the

island. The last woolshipirent to Tahiti vyas 5i766 kiloyrai-'ros

uf v-'ool, in late 18B8.

Accci'ding to Islander traditions, the old v/aya were oracticed

onco ayain, particularly xkRH during Alexandre 3alnion*s tiwo on

tho island, The Croo.yo corcvony, vhJch had c ?aord under Eissionary

influence in tho l860'a, was revived, and ■uropean clothes wore
v;orn jnly v K'n rhip'r; vicitod, rP'ilirtcn hlmnelf wore the traditional
iuami, or braachcloth, . h^n relaxing vMth his Hapanul oitiployo a,

Crlnon, or Ari'i Paoa, as ho ir. romopbr.'rod on Papanui, was the
a ''! ci the /Ti^'l 1 sbr an, Alexandre /j''lmon, his nothor being of the7lA,y^S0€H mho, 0'Reniii(Vv,JLl€fO/ffrt
, 0. ore frtiil^. l -o •vas a young man, und-r thirty, *':hon ho first
arriv-.d on Raxanul, to t?.d:e over tho rr..-na,' eir.ent of the Drnnder
intcrv'sts. '"c • val tac yor.ngor John Grander v/orc couBlns, After

+:r u-for ivr .e ' ,urb,r;rod in Aupjst of 1876, the I'ntavori nanage-

pont v;vG t:Uion ovr for a tlrne by a Chilean, called Chavez, who
L.arracadoci hiirnolf :'n tho rar.chh >iioo "nd wo;-t about f.cavlly earned.

In late l379, Paoa aroivod to take over the Rapnnul Intoroota and
was in offoctive control until 1888 (3oe Appendix D),
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Tlio first Uuroroan ctdlGr at naTj<inui after Dutroa-'^ornicr'b

death rTyorts that is "queen", I'oreto, had taken over, xtiEic ac

ro^jent for the rreiicruaan'a two dau^iiitorr, Carolina and Karta. Ey

the uirjo Eatk-r ilir^polyto retux-aou to tlio island for a brief

visit in cbtKKXScf 1073, however, oho was under the corn, .nd of an

aid chief, cai .od l.ati. Koreto, whoso nickname was "Maii.oe"(sheep)

had .;aCome ]Jutrou-."ornier' s wife shortly after his arriVral to

the island and In potUdons sent to Tahiti ta calling for French

protection, durin/:; aiiurou-Bornier'o time, she v/as pr aented as the

dueen of IRapanul,z.x?.tlilazxarBxfraat2:J3atEXi£ "hen the Frenchman

v/as tiiurder(3d, owev/jr, a <iiatant undo of hor's apirlted the

iuoen and her twri dauphtora av./iy nnd lild them in a cave for a time,

-y 1377, owovor, oho was froe to receive foreign vlcitors and in

on onpiravjng (Fig IP) appears with her eldest daughtor CDOwned,

In 138a, howevor, Father Hlp^-)oj:yte urges that the "pagan" (moaning

i'ati) gov "•riiEient abandoned and organinos a Trdiitlsm style

King, v/itli two couaoallors and two .judges. A.tamu Tekona and

his wife, Eva Uka Hoi, /"ire prodrlrned Icing and queen as being

faitiiful entholica, thou.gh inevitably an anti-t Iru arose to

iiulloupjo this authority in the form of the Tupahotu, Pakomio,

who assoclat d li:Ir..:elf vith Tatavori, ."'ille in the census of

1836 (Vupondiw E) tlio ?'ing rnd otill stand as importont

figuros, Pn.konio is the of idol t:\ach >r and catochlnt,4

Vi;e form of govru'lont, itli the 3rau ior repr: sentotive

being the civil g'^'/rruor or t.nv-na. n'rown in the 1336 c->nsus was

-rob ibly tho one er-^ctnd by Ttrucsol fivo yearn 'uor; icr. Stamu

i'.f .ena Is the "waxi)ium na. nority," with T. no and Tc Jhi as tludgo

u.d t.n;>Iotaat - o.-lo/lug th;\t throo "To So pa9»" or

loiiuoe?,loro. Throe, in turn, c opo ■•at d \'it;i tho four Tauturu

i  tore* n, or -ierGons of r>ank. Fin Jlly, four men w re
desig2>atcd as ?Qi± no icemen or mutoM, The other fifty-kone adult

iialoa in the population at that time are d- slgnated, in good
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ko.,ul)liccn Fr'-nch rr.rvjier, Hulra'atira, or citizonK. In Chaptor

Four bolov;, I will bi; rc-ex; in.i ng this census for its doco-

/:ra hie content rnd possible iiaplicotions for population develcpKent

in this period.

Another source of income, besides v;orl:lng for the j'randor

oalmon ranch, vac t'lroueh the sale of curios to visitors. Four

major expeditions vi'itod tho Island in 1372| 1877» 1882 (two) and

1 .36. Col].'-r Li nn v/'-r ; r ado by those visitors, tho hi^h points

br;inn the ex ort of statu.;s on the Floro and I'ohican and tho

nuiurly tiirce hundred pieces of '..tlmographicn coliocted by

Kapitanlieutonant Gclssler in 1882, Tho tho export of moal (tho

stone fii^uroo) orobably did not brinr any money to the Island .rs,

the other, KH smaJLlor oLjocts probably did. .Vh<5n Paoa was

resident, he BrsTtreHrg act :d as a^ont for the T?apanul and produced

dir layc of ;irt..facts in his house at Vaihu to nrospective clionte,

txxl det'orrrininf; lu-ic s and t :rinE,

For moat of this time, tho Fi-onch flag flew over Hapanul

and, in 1881, a "ciiief" (Ibiti?) and about twenty Island'rs

sailed to Tahiti to rc piost a French arotnctorato. In that

visit, tho local authorities a/proed to s.md a gendarme to ostabllsh

til'' rolai.ion.ship, but uothinfj over CiUiio of it (Caillot 1911t4-85)»

.hon tliG Xi4X)5)05 IC-h' arw ho vinitod in l':82, the Fnglish flag was

h.'.i.nt d 'ind <':onv rs'ltious : onduct:'d then lod Clark (I899sl46) to

recoi.uend that, r.ojosty'n yoV'ornront now extend... some

..,ox't of _in-ot'.c■'orata over it [bast r Islmid," The G rmnn and

.Ai oi'ican vinicors ra.y have irouc s'jTnilor rocomi. ndations, but

u thing CiUuG of it.

bei: tne ioraze visit d Hapanui in 1868, tho com;ander of

.he siilp told F,"th r Hii polyto that rumours v/oro circulating in

/.:0 epi-.-dso that Chile v-is thinl^ing of annexing Fapanui (fiouosel

1368). The formal and oxti.nd d visit of tho training ship

u'Higgina, in 1870, scorns to have confirmed those sucpiclons.
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at loo'..t in tlio nina of tho Britlnli Chargd cl'AffaireE in

V al and Clii3.o'B 1 adding ncv.'opanor, !i rcurio, declares

that in 1869, it ̂ -'V.hlished an editorial uriug eucu a couroe of

action. Tho Chilean v-rsion, hov ov r, appears to SU; port a rath^ir

Moro rotjnntic and individual ctory. According to this, it v.ae

Captain 1 ollcarpc ioro hurtado's zoal that brought tho ChllctUi

(iov'.;rnrront to the dccioion to take poasoosicn of the tiny terri

tory, It was noasibly he who influonco the gr'at Chilean ctateeman,
(1885)

"den.iaiuin VicuRa Knckenna/to publioh in tho first isnue of the

Idoriuo dovuo (devlota do i-arina) a s^-.ort oanay urging that Chile

takes a role in the "fcU'titloning of the Pacific" and claic i'ast

inl; nd,

roiicarpo Toro. ay hrave been a vioionary patriot or a aelf-

int^;r( atod buoinosauian, eoking to ootabliah a p'^rconal enipire,

but in •• ithor Ciise, ho alone is rcopanaiblG for tkH urging the

uovcrn.icnt to annex uap.'uiui to Chile, In 188? and 18G8, ha

.lournoyed to Pa.of oto r,ore timn once to securo title to the lands

and to ncrotiato nith the Pi-onch :uilhoriticn (GCclGstiastical

and civil) about Cla'.lo's intcrooto. In July, 1388, Captain Tore

transported his bi-olht-r, rcdrt^ dablo Tore and t. olve other colonists

to nst r Inland and t'\en 'vent on to Tahiti to finalise the

orranr. .ento, Phen ho rrturned, in Scntonb r, 1888, the formal

ciianiiony of aiinexation v.as held, Thrro runths latt r, Erandar and

drlr.jH left ast r Irlr.nid for good and a r.ov. era had la'gun,

3> The Chlloan era

In this last oection, I Intend to only eketch the major

developments in this j.iod. rn phase of kapanui*e development, which

extends from 1888 to the proa nt day, I v/ill not go into great

detail at this time because it will be more appro >rlately treated

in Chapter Ceven, vhon I consider Islander-outsider relations in

general. In the oral tradition of tho island exist scores of

accou ts of Chiloan b^taayal or kindness and those balievc'd
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ev nts for:., a oart of ulio ctock of infor-.ation j.>ur/-.yGd

to ::eonat^» iu aapanui ooci-ty. T)io l^crlstey of Authoritiee

(Arreiidix D) v-ao vi'A^^rod particularly for thlB per'od and has

i-jcn u-3d to oata^'liah cKaiSBisiHgyz rolatlvo chronology for the

ev. itc of this pha-o. This legi.star, in conjunction with the

.no for Visitors, is the i.oatrlx into thich events have been

"lacod, V.liat I int r.d to tro.os ielow is that an eEncntially

iiioaci; 1 olynoolan patt rn of colonlalisn cario to an cud r.nd by

IhG turn of the t ..nvbleth century it had b an i-eplacod by a

uouth jGi..Oiic.in (.'Uid noro particularly Chilean) arrangement as

:  "coruiany island," The np;' inted king was roplacad by an

- .jint.-d cad r,.uo to acr. as intorr.'diary botv.oen an indigoneoun

po.'U-at_:n ..nd the ruling commerci.al inter ots.

Tor the fir.at few- yirxTnt aft r the Chilean occupation, all apaearfi

to have gone v;rl2 . The Uhlorlnda. a small vo sol, ' as purchased
h.i irara the Toro's aHdutEaiiBXQXtKd for tho purpose of transporting
Bupp-iloa -uivi merchandlBe to and fror. the island. The final blow
to the Toro*s hopes was v/hon, in Juno, 189^?, tno ship sunk just

off ,a;5t r I.oland, leaving the l.oland v.'ithout a regular service,

u.ail oHiyzrsEBntiy the present day. The Chilean colonists them-
..ivos bc:c i:.o dtac.varaged .nnd in Juno, 1889, two or the throe

returned to Vrloaraiuo and the third died just one month

afterv.ords. Tore v;us left alone, ,-ith hln family and in .Ceptambor,

io9?, the Tore outer rj.so folded.

in that came y.ar, the hnpanui monarchy appears to have been

r. vivod. Upon the Oooth of \tainu Tekona in 1892, a young man called
•as (Itrt d, Inly by v/oK.on votTS , it appoiirs, to bo th ir

hinr, ov r Mu ri litful ruccuo or. According to P'rank (1906) who
vl :itel tiiG l.exond n-rwrotiuc in the 1390*o, tha "Kin" F^iro had

com Jet' contro?. over the Chilean repre.'";. iitatlvo on tho Island

•uid, .a cvjrding to a riooiinary ncc ount from 1900 (tatayo 1900),
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vmcn Alberto .jiAUcher. iiaat-.rola arrived to naiiaso the sacep ranch,

vorchatj-d by jinrlqua I.orlet in 1694, soriouo troublo developed

boteeon tho Inlander aufaority and the Chilcaji, Thin culminated

in Iv'iro tjoing to Chile in probably l399i n-ith -c^ counsollors. His

j.urpi.ao v;as to discuro Inlandor j':;rievanGea with I'orlot but before

thin could oe accQmpliohed, he was poiecnod, tradition alleges.

At V'0--3ibly about that time, i'.crlet visit'-.d Aapanui himself and

in an oct inter .rot .■! by a vlsitine raissionary, threw a burning

cig,.irotto into th...- try, ro.:-.anui plantations and sot them ablaze,

In 1901, B.'toilio -v'o.ias, Captain of the Chil an ITaVal vogboI,

Uoaoral Baquodvano. "...becauco of various complaints of the natives

against the concossionairos-oxpl.)iters of tho island, organiend

their v;ork as in the hacl..'ndaa of the continent} he rogiitv.ntaliovod

tho oblig.ations of the ^)atrons and the ivorkers, and named, among

t e nritiv o, a chit^f or cacique in cucarge of order and de.oidant

Ui >on tho Aarttirre Aubdologato (Jtophau-Chnuvct 1965s572)«" SZBODC

A coiitomparciry soUrco also notes that he rec xmondod

tls'it ar.y trouble Li-d-ierc on tho Isl/md snould be deported to Chile,

"w i-To Aiey would bo dealt -..Ith,

i.'ot surpriaingly, theie v; .ro fow a t .. pts to usurp the

■authoi'ity of tiie now Airmly o tablishod ruli>rs -i-id thoso that did
a

oc:;ur, in tho form of strikes,/natlvistic cult and, la -tly, a

po .1 ,iG;AL raovou-nt, v.ill be considor d in dct<'iil in Chapter Aevon,

v-Uoil t o lato IQdu's, I oland a-s v/nre allowed to Coxao and go as

thoy ploasod but ...A-n oome j.oli-.icul j.rlsonors osco.p.od to Tahiti

only i^hili-.an ships ,'ro honcofortU alloy/od to co.ll at tho Island,

IjO.;rosop, auich had been rougitt to the Island by some x'etournecs

in 1 ■ j6, boc;u,:c rai.ip.ant :uid Chil. .mi iAurs of infection prompted the

.rutho.'-ltics to ban all Island jrs from loaving the island. This

■rovchr-d a cxioa of clandoot'.Ano voyaguc, as well as a sm- .ts at

stowing away on the sup.^ly ships, that did not c ase unti.l 1957,
fhoug I the Company that continued to exploit Caster for about
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"unt 1060), tho P.-^pTinul hnvo coran into c^on-^^ contact -Ith

>  .'• rvr ■ rj.' fleet (in '.orlrl "or I), an ■n^orican A.lr Force

(fron I9C6 to 1971), and, v.'ith the prorv-nt weekly air nervlce,

tode ^ o V ri ety of oth .-r mtionnlltion ond ^rounn. The

c aractT of the Chil o?.n contact has chajiged from the rrprofjQFolve

r .;;ire of the ear-ly of this century, to being tr-ated as
c" V/ on a Ilnval vo -o) In the 1950's, to the por'^isnive period

of the 111 ende Govo'rnr ont in Chilo, fron 1971 to 1973» Today,

0"cc ."'""in un*'! r nil''t';ry rule, 'is is all of Chi-le, they have
the

:lniri\-cor?.'unal tus o.ervloes, television, and x nroinioo of a status

•-0 a tax free port. til of those shifts in tho foreign contact
"r ju'i havo had n.c.'iti'i 'is for the strategies that tno Raiviuui
iiavn eJo"*t .'d to d al ith thf< lutsidei's. This part of th© story

,;i'i.*. 1)0 c innldfrr d in great r dotall near tho end of this thesis.

->o' c ..oi^yni

Tiiis Chapter has traced the contact history of oaator Island
F'ir.aug.'i five phases of dovolopnient, bringing the contoxt of
oho atructur<3 to bu subaequontly delineated into relief, I have

triod to s.hov; strategies for survival rero volvod very early

on i i the coorn ) of . ' yaanui-outsidur contacts and hov/ theso

'rivo - ^riT.rod a.a ':irrur„at.ancos Jiavc eliiftod, Tho r al detail of

Ihno'-ij in cjhcrQi.c tcnis, raust, rovjcvar, wait further discus ion
bej.viv.'.
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12, Through Father Amerigo Cools, flf the Sacred Hearts

order, in Rome, I was fortunate to receive a typescript,

comiled in 1973, containing all references to Easter

Island in the Rome Archives. This has greatly facilitated

my work and I have in every case quoted from that

compilation. When possible, I have chosen published

works over those listed that were unpublished. Additionallj

the Memoire presented by Army Captain Pedro Pablo Toro

to the Chilean Congress in 1892 contains a wealth of

information about Easter Island isixjckHx between

1888 and 1892. Unfortunately, on a minute portion of

this extensive documentation can be included within the

necessarily limited scope of this present thesis, but I

hope to publishHi from the sources in the near future.

13, I made it a special point to collect texts in Rapanui

relatin to major, recent events in the Island's history.

It is not possible to include these texts at this time,

due to the restrictions of space. In the near future, I

hope to publish ray collection of Rapanui texts, with

translation and annotation. In most cases, the derails

of the Rapanui texts have been confirmed by archive

sources and this has led me to have great confidance in

their autlienticity.

14, [Possibly transfer Davis from Ch. 1, p. 52-3]

15, Blue beads, that Roggeveen's companions presented to

an Easter Islander may have been the same one^ discovered

in the Tangata manu house at Skhh Rano Raraku (Skjoldsvold

1961:293).

X.
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"" -ho cUlcG-d at. ack /md connibalist:; on .dtienne

i;ouc"ica::,o, liob.op of Hilopoliii is contained in x'our
S'-'Cond

rii ery g-urcos knov:n to rao, Tho is a lot :or

fi'ou katlic'r JcGoph Lich to I''.Gr» ntionno Jauaoeu on

So.Jiino, • rchivGS dG.CC, kotie, 3f3-9)» tho firfit Is

a ietler Troa Fe.thor i.arnali^ Gnotan to IliP houoquet, in

1572 (dd.GC, ..rchivcE [hoiaoj, 61-10), tho ihird is a

i' ttur Irora i'ath r JiHaKgKX Joseph iich to Ti'h- Poucquct

Ox 3 Co'oobor, 1873 (GG.CC, . •.rchivGs [Pome], 60-3, the

fourth a lott r froia Father Parnab^ Car.tan to Father

Ildofonao /.lanard of 29 Juno, 1897 (JP.CC, /.rchivoe

[hoKoJ, 39-9, and, laetly, a letter froti Father Joseph

hicli to ?. thi.r Ildcfonso Jlaaard of 14- Api^'il, IC98

(ad,00. pre ivos [hoiie], 39-9). The reasons for the

dif i-riGTce : in the stories ore complex and Pixy be ro-

latad to tho Lac populations from v.hich the accounts

como, ror. Lhan to tho charactor of tho o ont itself,

■fh.'-i oturios oniirminG the AceasiniPciiin, in Castan'E

le t rs, ai; c no fror. .hajjanui in I anGorcva, shilo thoao

donyinc -he Incid nt come from ';icIi*B accounts,

in - hivi, Cnc of tvro 1 anationn is peszriblo, I'hc first

3 G thc.t the 'Z',-hitlan F.-potnui , orlied for the f ichop in

Tahiti ...nd, • :g tlioy later v.'oro to receive land from liim,

'id not V-■ sf t.a.lr oven ancient anti-clcric act to bo

Iriov/n to tno eeclostlaaLicyl ■Uthoritiec, A second ex-

plan tion in that the hapanai in KanG^rova felt that the

Ghui'Ch had ■. 1 yecJ them vroncly and, by admitting to having

nil Z ed -n iMperLant per.;onaGo, v, to somohov/ enjoying a

fooling of rcvenco for tholr perclovod poor tr atment, Tho

a.-. van co itinGout of Thq-a.nul, afterall, completely

difcd out and did not even en^oy the lii.it.od land rights

granted to hr Tnui in Tahiti, Bug^e8ti.ire,--hwtev-T,-that
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riotn'.^x* ienioG thai; tho Bisliop coljo to :~'apa.nui,

bU'. t.bcv diff.;r in ."iiatb-r ii^ v;ria ki7.1r?ci th cr Bailed

.■v,..cv ui'toi: a brief ccufflc, :;tive that aoce iin-

^ ertajit ^ Brnarai^u nay have b ea Id. I and cookad iii a

oven la the legend cone ruinc Tangaroa, publiohod

by hctraux (1940j31d-l). :.ora, Tax.rai'oa conGr. from

i- .anceJr'cvi;'., in tho fore of a neal f ii<l laiidc at Tongariki,

lio in aooault .J v.itn .-itcner^ and thro;<'n into an

o.-u-t/i cvc.'i (i; .g) vu'ro, uvmucccs ful t.y, the (probably)

I'uya'ii.,l;u ;.bt.,i..pt to cook uin, Tho brother of Toagexoa,

^uzrivii-ig afb^.T tho B:>;.d-;;:od, irfor.r.s tiic ;0;;uJatiun that

t oy 'n.vvf. C0i. . .-!.tt©d doocxdo, byi .boliioiilly, tlils feale,

otij. iviio- .Tt in o, trinxatod fore to Tv iniorer-nta,

.rAjpi- .-.-ont f.io l iter laio le-'ly that tfx-y hTAd 'd.llod an

Is;- .;rUot .. • rjr.nago,

17, .'h.o i\v. -lo wnoder Ij.ag. c, !mcvm .-za nprd .♦ or "flat

I'lily in 19th c.ntury colbocti ms and I

Jiovo to bo a r .:nac tc the Incz' ar.rfi traffic

Cv..?;jn,. t. -. Lo'' Icliuid, Tnc flgurG ir; tuo Glcioleot of th®

■ .j.ai-;.. u il, .it.I .litl lo dabor. tiv..n, . orhapc In or-ier

t.iat :.jio a. ; '.loi'-cllontf; could idontity tiiat oho ntatuo ras

ib do, bin: ton hatdn indicate tho br ast and vagina.

-cy , iuy h;z/-:; .ror::.fd a .e rt of tho crloctivo ^ roatituticin

tu. ib tli'j !b.p,vua.i. ^ i'^aclic'.;d in idio pr-.,'-l,16f? tisica, One

viuLtor i; : j.u3-., rir .•ijTldiig the i.rcviioncG vf the cox

trade roz.arhod, " 'o found that cha.atlty was not iSm± in

i-jLcir ftlia for lo.'3*oJ c ■".t'i.loguo of virtiicu, but C:..rtrlnly
, r. V T it - 1 a;. , aha. a ta a:-y, dmlr b.ct article

.if traffic" (wrlcbar I833il2). i he ruf fio in "uld

t.'. , : ;,-b'ia. ; a. ■.y j b i.-n an Jj i. tr. d a.Gpcct of trad, .'.ith

aut.aid ro. bjiuvzti: oo, th.o objocta in lIiiR i.r.,dG cr.B'.e

fror. the cc .ox'in'j of old cav b by the Island era thewooii v 8
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CHoutiuuGO 1919;274). In a personal 1. tt;cr to some

frivn(J.c,±H:cna4; the lonc-tiue sheep ranch reanacor on

tiio Island, h.I . .Jdmunds noted that aft<jr Kacl'.illan

irov/n's visit in 1920, the caves were- searched for

•'Old t-.lncs." Vi>;cn the G-nnine articles were not

fortliCoining, artefacts v.ould be faked| as is the case

discribod in detail by Fordon (1966:103-22),

L;mv jjre-l362 visitor's to J?apanui rtjportod the

fascination of .;hG Islander^ v.ith i]uropoan white skin
The cult of white skin involved the seclusion of neru
(e.g. .;nGl-:irt 1948:178t 232-6, MtStraux 1940:104-67^

'X'hcce choser. young men and women had to romcan indooro

so that their slttns might not tan with xpusure to the

sun's rays and thoy wore paraded by their proud parents

Oil rituiil occasl'-jns. Captain Bishop) noted in on early

account, that Icltinderc wished to adopt his very fare

10 yoc-r old cabin boy (1967:40-1), It might be sjieculated

that in order to ob'ain such fair cr.aturoa, the trade

in woi^en raght have parti;iily evolved. That is, that

it was not po...-iblo to actuiilly ob .ain an European in

tiieir i.a.dst, irat tlicy have noticed that a woman who

had had int rcourso with an duropoan, g'avc. birth to a

ligiiti.r sisLnncd child thiin would otherwiso have been the

caoo. If this is so, then the women who went to the

chips for .hiropQiui uso (voluat.-iry, of course) may have

been a spociJuI caste, i^kkxkk o'loctod and x>r'?corvod for

this tack, Tuoru la neither confirn.ntion nor denial In

my .at rial for thio hyothesio, but it does, to some

evt nt, explain why it was that only certain women were

allowed to slo p. with huropoane, while others wore ob-

vi...-iclp . itliliold. Till.? roluc-ancc, noted by La rdrouse

in tho loth century and cited above, ivas newr rnonti ned

by any othai visitor, I am not euggostine that the cult
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bho foil ; iu^; locuiii -.nts: P.olation du ?, Hlr;polyto TJoussel

a  cv'no-o-o.-bo orrJv-5.- I'llo do F^qvcs du 12-9-l?69 au

19-9-.137C, nl:lrccs^9 h Jiussen (Pl.CC, VochivoB,

Pome, 75-2), Polatl.yn du ?. Hlppolyto luuscel, continuat

ion (1,. ,Jo', Arcriiv .0, '?oine, 75-2), Lett-r from

riiooJdlo iGGolan h I'Er. Tcpano Jausoan i Fape 'to, of

11 icptc;..'b(.r, 1870 (od.CC, fjrchivcs, Pome, 75-4). In

that "'l::! ati r.n" of Fathe>- Uippolyte is n llstlnq, b

datr, of the /.rinci pal ovents of the conflict botween

lutrou-Doiad'T and Poussel, i- tallE of v.hich are boyond

the limii;.t;cl scope of this thesis.

3C, • for u::ti-a footnote! ]

37. i'ha refer- lieo : for tlio nuiila r of sheep brought to ZXKXIQS

Ihilriti KKZx fren Pastor ai-f^ contoinod in tho horiat'r of

Viiritorr, It roeld bo d slraVle at oore fetaro pn'nt

to I'o ihrouph a crmploto coiloctirn of T.e !'Gsr-ar"r de

l-jjiiti. from 18BG to, po '. ibly, the and of tJio lOth

century, fof'- . '-uic t. In tho he sa.r- r v; T'-- discovered

b  '0 . If in prc-fiold study in 1572 and rocontly

I at';.a /. ■ rlf O hools, of llio Incrod ^'oarts, Pome, ,,ont me

r  n plete -thii!' from tiio ; cssn;" r until tlir end of

1579, as en e, • ondix to ti.e d;-i ur c ntntion ho s. nt in

1S'73| ^ont;h n^:d in Footnote 12,

3^« •" h'vc dr.t r.r'ji' cl that Ci: eon. hlro, eho '^'QS the son of

the djuri, ! .-iti ned as e fo' ov.rr of "lutrou-hornior in

F.i^ta.jto 35, pi'obebly loft llopanuiln l895. In the

hc-o.tis! al r- cords, in tho .frchlV'- s of the ishopric in

1  p-'cLc, tli is e luto th.xt rimeono Plro Kn'nn;a was

J:i tie. d by 1 .th'r Btppolyto on 9 harch, 1P79, .'hlch

I e- iis, he- eoba: ?y n vo-iuny man in thio llOO's of rhape

tlilrty. In the census of 1586 ('loo 1 , >-.n11x H), ho

fi.e'rroG .es en dnlt male of about 14 or 18, but un—
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r.iaiTied. no is elected king "by the v/omcn in 189?-1 Uiion

tee death of Atar.iu kckena. VgrtSnicn Idahute vms sent

froy T.ahiti, ;.ith a dova^ry by Antonio Aringa,
cii/i ̂  ri

to riarry/Te haJialcitauMi*a, but unlmov/n to Aringa in

Tahiti, Rair.on had already rfiJirriod Torosa Uengaroaroa,

su "V(3rc5riica \:a3 warried to Sinoon Rlro, This story is

from Victoria Fapahango. hiro and Verdnica had threo

boys and o girl between 1899 and 1895» the last being

the only survivor during iny stay on the island, Juan

i^iroroko ItJiute, ray neighbour, In a listing cf Church

sup^-ortors, com ilod betw en 8 and 10 January, 189S,

hiro a^. ■ rs ulth liis v/ife, but^ she is pormittrd to

marry a Chilean sheon herder on 29 January, 19C0. As
re

r Cat'nolic rio: tK -."ould aot/raarry someone who was not
todc-

a vidov;, it is almost C' rtain that Riro wasi^oad by

that tirao. Th^ > detoils of Riro's d. ath, as thoy have

h  '-n ooira.unicatod to rno, must v/ait until Chapter Covep
"  ' f^/v*ncri

to be ri c<)unt{;d, as they still influence laodorn'nDehaviour
to.'ardr; Chi 1 ans> h;r h piiiinud
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38. The H.-nnnui Dianpor?. of tho 1860'b, fron the Pftravian

TtcIc and, later their travolR to Fangareva and Tahiti

known in tho lit'Tnturo, but v.hat haunenod to these

populotiono in obscure, A ahotopraph in the .^rchivos

of tho Sacrod Hoartn, Pome, ohows a group of Haeher

Islanders Kttk in front ef the Ccotholic f-'lBoion in

IR72 (Fig, 13). In a letter from ThowsB Croft, of

Papeete, of l8'M| ho ronorto that those working for

J-^hr) Brandfjr in Tahiti, br-^ught sovcral of the famoue

rongo-rongo boards to to to sell them as curios,

while anntb'g group of Island rs is living vith the

Hishop on his proportiosCCroft 1974). Baorsler (I9OO:

84--,5) in his popular book visited To anui in Famata*!,

where tv/enty-flvf heads of family purchased land from

the Pi shop, Hr* notos that in his visit, probably In

tho 1890'b, there were only RO men, 11 wot-ian and 13

children. In a bree?,y visit ta also to Pumata*!,

tho guidebook a ithor V.ragge (1906:156-7) m-ntione hia

brief conv rsntion with lanannl rsldent th'Ts, At the

j^rsndor rlantatlons in Fahina, the deaths of 69 Papanul

are T'^corded betv/eon July, 1873 and '/ovember, 1873, in

tho pp.'OB of the He.'isag r de Tahiti, vrhile only four

b-'rtha are recorded for the sariC period, Ir 1875, two

kn»'anui ore e- ntfenodd to -trleon terrca, acc- rding to

a c^urt anmnncmont In the t'^essarer (1875 N, 41, 8-10,

and p, 164, col, 1), '^e •"1''1 be discuss-d further in

Cha-nter f-'our, thetv viv.B cons.ld r=<b.le population mov rent

O 'tveen Tahiti and R.'.-, rnul in tho Isat century. In a

letter from Father Rogation Kartln to TRP Boucquet,

dated 8 Anril, 1885, he ?' ntl "ne that Father Ceorgee

bic.h trenaf('rr. d flibout 20 Rapaniii to I'oorea t^vat year,

as port of tho Catholic rcisnlon ootabllshod there.
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or-njiiflorablo nur.bnr of !?op.nnul v.-ent 'vi.th Fnther

to ."ancarcva, but ucccrdlr.c to a notice

In tho ; r.oaror (1871, No. 51, 23,18.1871, 195),

many of tliem foil ill upon arrival. When PJiilh^s (1875«

271) arrlv-.;; at Nikit a in 1374-, he is able to pick-out

"oom.c-' inhabitants of Papar.ui amon.'r the KanrareVcinG.

Thc-y are notable for tlicir tatoos, he o'atGs. vhen

locr.'i Inn I r.wn vj: its i'.anj::ar^va some yoars later, ho

photo - phG per sons he lev s to b ■ descendants of

Rararul (Ir ,.vm 19 : ). Ho-. vv r, these "natives of

Napanui," nir y have been of the .Ichmldt fannily and are

cn' y i ndlr' C t1 y rclat 'd to" ' .•?st-:^r TslanderG, ochmldt
Hufina Rengahingahinga

rr-a'uced t .-o pirls vJ th the Na nanui, EM«XlI»XPiihMBU (

No, 7Z on 1388 Cmrus Ordorinf, Appendl'-: ■^). One of

thoGO 'iris remained on hautar and from hor came the

na\. nurc rour; for i i y bo'-rinr the nurnam© "Tuki," oubae-

ru. nt to h.lG ll.acon v jth rurheu, .'chir.idt '.'/ho, it is
Danish

uo i") r d ".00 Dutron-W irnj or' r./handyraan, married th®

1 rcodcs lalns, Cho bore him fifteen children,

br.tva n 1"74 and 19G1. The fir.'it child r..: nti med in

WchPd.'t'r briicf Morrf-hy, io-hio w-.s, in fact, nlster

to Cccilda N/ ituoc, vho reronined 6n Nnpnnul, according

to y ^iifrrnnntr, (cf, fi'Poilly & Teisnler 1982*4-22),

■ 'a t'-o .Na:l''-in pol.l ical risoner, Carlos Vjcu?<n escapes

frr . .art r '1531 , h(.! r.to. io briefly in Nanprnreva, where

ho .-.rr-tr torirra C (Vicufta 1916:170-1). The on'y

•  - -1 . Of, ■ rv Pay ntuii i^navr t ^ have W no ±8

~  ;!c;ho»c, Ni" ' bar nio'v o, :>cord:, r,-nt to re from the

.  I c,.15 shop of Icaioli-''" Indicatcx that o C. rtfiln "Nlkodemo

FoV," d t, - .; •■ • ' fru' th' di 'T. j at r 21 ,'Ufuf:t, 1863 and

n Ma/i by that nafiie rrrr.'ed a local Stolpo

(l£99l5-9) lerlvoj teiaxi sill of his material, in fact,



Footnotes, 15

fror. J .s ,1th Ru; --'nui in Tahiti r.nd Rukuhiva

(i ;;-irquonori). Tit nottin that two Rnpamii, in l arch of

13P.4, GorVv.i as rolicei-iGn thusH on IIuR.uhiva and wcro

int grated into the comnunity. This surgeoto that

t ioy '.eifji'.t hove arrived on board the Din rant no well,

fiough Llic arohlirhnp'o contcr;: orery note of 1863 rentiona

or.ly one, Cth r Rru-anui may have travelled oxtrnGively

on ; inJiny veor-ola, nc i'aol-1 did jn the colloction

of .jlox'li o by Cowan (1936:49-59)• Irow L on Tuki Hey,

1 co]d ctGd n 1,300 word t- :;t dlGcribing the "Qdyssey"

of throo Rafrnui uho, eft tho BiBXBXCHtiilax Peruvian

inc..' .'cnt, rliyifd on ':ial:'nr r.hiys ncl vioitod many

-nrl::; of t iio v.orld, Otn> ro, whose story never returned

to Rrv^anu:', may have dnne the nnno, Thira text, an

Ith I'-.e olhe n, v.dl'1 be- tddlrhed at a later time.
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ANTONY GIBBS & SONS, LTD.
'  rouNDED 1808 ::•. i ^

AUSTRALIA • BOLIVIA directokb ' "ANTIPODES. LONDON, E Cfl? "
^  __

AMBOCLATXD COXPAinXS nf:* TELEORAPBIC ADDRSSS

CANAUA ■ CHILE - PBBU .,. ".;.°^u°u«\°chTb7«rcuT.v. TBLKPHONE NUMBER: Ol-580 4U1• IR PHILIP DS ZULUrrA CHIEP KXCCUTIVC _ . .U-NITBD KINGDOM lord aldenham p. mellman TELEX NUMBER: 886720 • - ^
UNITED STATES 07 AMBRXCA hon. o, c. Campbell o. b. wornk ^ X -I'*

o. e. l. aiBBs SIN anthony o. a. burney, o.b.e.
R. BCANLON t>. FITTON

22,
i  ■ ■I  — ^y>yhC€*?n^, ' ''''.v' '

OUR REFERENCE A/EH YOUR REFERENCE . - - -vii * , T'; :• ■ EC2N 4AQ. ' /?/
■  -y'

3rd April 1973

Grant ncCall, Esq.,
Easter Island,
CHILE.

Dear l^lr. ncCail, '

Your letter has found Its way on to my desk, and I ulll
do my best to reply to your various questions.

First, our connection ulth Easter Island was only that
of Managing Agents, arranging shipments of stores to the Island
from the mainland of Chile. As far as I knou, nobody from
Gibbs & Co. ever visited the Island, and the records of that
business have long since disappeared, possibly in a fire In our
Valparaiso office In 1958 and possible after the take-over by
the Chilean Government of nearly all our business in that country.

Yes, Gibbs & Co. , Peru, were interested In the guano
trade from about 1849 until the final liquidation folloijing the
Pacific Uar of 1879/80, uhen Peru and Bolivia were allied against
Chile, and Chile uon.

I  suppose ua had offices In the Port of flataranl, but I
cannot be sure. There Is a large quantity of letters In the
Guildhall Library here, but I have never had time to read them.

Ue did not In fact exploit the Chlncha Islands, but ue
uere responsible for the sale and shipment of the guano produced
there. This led to the little rhyme:

Antony Gibbs
Made their dibs
By selling turds
Of foreign birds.

I  am sorry I cannot be more helpful.
'  ̂ f

Yourssincerely,

-4-^ c-
. ..ir

Aldenham.
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HOT FOR PU BlICATION )) C OHPIDHHTIAL REPORT

i 0 N1°' 11.) > .Mt r ̂ A t-i
V ' RFCCIYED

Report on the Peruvian Research :i 1 /l iR-r—-
*  —— \ ^

Ur /I

-J ( I

This research is the result of a proposs^jfuad^'fi^m

Easter Island on 25-5.972, the funds for which were apprwi^""
later on that same year. It was financed by funds provided by
both the University and from a private grant made by H.E. Maude,

The Report itself is divided into the following sections:

I. leads and information about Peruvian arrivals

on Easter Island;

II. Itinerary;

III. Results in:

A. I.Iollendo-Iiatarani;

B. Lima:

1). Personal contacts;

2). Archives consulted;

3). Other investigations.

C. Callao;

D. Pisco-Ghincha Islands;

E. Arica-Tacna.

IV. Other results;

V. Budgetary notes.

I. leads and information about Peruvian arrivals on Easter Island

Before embarking on the research in Peru, I was given

good reasons to believe that new information might be discovered

if a personal visit was made to the principal known sites connect

ed (or, reputed to be connected) witli the arrival of Polynesians
to Peru in 1862 and in 1863. These "leads" and other information

are summarised -under five major headings:

A. Traditional and modem stories

Throughout my stay on Easter Island from 1.4.972 to

28.4.973, I received stories and other information about the arri
val of so-called Peruvian ships to the Island, the experiences of

some Pascuense who were in or near Peru and the stories which

have been passed down from those who returned from their exper

ience in Peru in the last century. These stories may be con-
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sidered in two categoriesr 1). Traditional stories, known by

several of my informants, with some even being published in past

reports by others over the years about the Island, and, 2). The

"modem" stories, where various Pascuense have claimed in recent

years to have met descendants of their unfortunate (and distant)

ancestors in or near Peru,

1) . The traditional stories

Several persons know that the so-called Peruvian ships

arrived first gust off Apina and landed a group of men there.

First, these men scattered gifts such as tobacco, mirrors, pipes,
etc. in front of the pascuense there assembled and as the Islanders
scrambled to pick them up, the invaders attacked and trussed up

many of the people. Those v/ho resisted were shot. Later, more

men attacked and took people at Hanga Roa and at Tahai, along

the same coast. Another version holds that the slavers landed

first at Hanga Piko and there threw thej.r gifts out. In another

part of the Island (possibly the north coast), a ship drew up to

the coast, and Pascuense swam out to meet it, as was their custom

with new arrivals. They began to dance and to sing and then went

below decks to continue the party. As night fell, the hatch was

quietly closed and the ship set sail. Two persons came up for
air from the festivities and discovered the trick and they and

various others jumped over-board. Only four of those who juqjped

managed to get underway swimming and only one actually made it

to shore. He did this, according to Lazaro HOTU IKA, by swimming
and alternatively floating on his back and warming his heart with

his hands. Another version says that the three attacks were at

Hanga Piko, Tahai and at Hanga o Hoonu.

One family preserves the tradition that two of their

members, Macomacona and Upa Ha (brothers of Veriamu, who has
passed the story down to the Tepano family) went volimtarily,
with their respective pregnant wives. They came to the cave
where Veriamu was living as a young girl and said goodby to tliemr
younger sister, preferring to walk to the ship, rather than be

tied up and dragged.

The oldest woman on the Island, maria Tekena, claims
that her older brothers were taken on the Peruvian ships but,
also, that others voluntarily signed on previously to this- Ameri-
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whaling vessals. These events occured before she was bom.

Another tradition mentions a Pascuense called, Hulcu Kahu,

who escaped from the attackers by taking his clothes off when one

of them grabbed on to them to carry him off. His name indicates

this life saving maneavgn,.

According to various traditions, there is a large flat

rock which has the nimber of Pascuense taken away during these

raids incised or marked upon it. A rock that was pointed out to

me as such was located at Tongariki, in Hotu Iti and was photo

graphed on Roll IiXXXIII-6,8. At other times, however, I have

independantly come across just as likely candidates for this in

other parts of the Island with the came sort of counting (I sup

pose) device. These were found mainly on the north coast and

figure on the follov/ing rolls: LXXIX-2,7; LXXVIII-10,13;

LXXVIII-15,13; and, IXXVII-15,1^.

The last surviving son of one of those taken to Peru

still lives, but he was born after the incidents in a later mar

riage and not raised by his father. Therefore, iMicolas PAKOMIO

ANGATA knows only a little of what happened to his father,

Pakomio Maori. What he does remember is that the Pascuense v/orked

in gangs of twenty on the guano islands and that their food for

the group for one day's work v/as a can (about the size of a five

gallon paint container, he indicates with his hands) of moat.

Leon TUKT HHI, one of my chief inforrasmts on all aspects

of the Island's history, tells that "Ure Kino," as Pakomio was

known by his detractors (Ure = Man - Kino = Useless), returned

from Peru with a Pascuense girl friend that he had picked^lfup

while captive there. The ship that they came back on was loaded

with a lot of very sick people. The ship first arrived at Motu

Maratiri and, there, the dead were thrown into the sea. Then,

the ship moved over to the beach in a sector called Anakena. Ure

Kino's girl friend then took sick, but Ure Kino did not. Now,

the ship put down a boat to take various Pascuense ashore. The

number usually given is fourteen, plus Ure Kino. Ure Kino v/as

worried, however, as Anakena was ̂  peka (enemy territory) for
him. He had been a matato'a (warrior chief) before being carried

off and had many persons who wanted to kill him, (specially in the

sector of Anakena. Ure Kino's safe rround and home was near Ana
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0 Neru, on the Poike peninsula. So, Ure Kino took a blanket and

put it over his head like a shawl and sat in front of the boat

like a woman. He let his red hair peek out from under the shawl

and sat quietly while the boat was rowed to the sandy beach. No
one ashore knew that it was Ure Kino, '//hen the boat scarcely had

touched the beach, Ure Kino threw off the blanket. At once, the
Pasctiense on the shore saw his full red hair and knew that it

could only be Ure Kino, but they realised it too late. He ran

off to Ahu Runga on high gromd from ^Inakena and was away from

danger. As he was the fastest runner on the Island,no one could
catch him.

Efforts to elicit the names of those fourteen persons
who accompanied Ure Kino in the boat referred to above have not

met with success. Instead, I have a list from Leonardo PAKARATI

RANGITAKI of fifteen persons who are known to have gone to Peru
and returned, though they arrived on the Island over time from

1863 (?) to 1888. This list has been given to me asr

I. Terongo 'A Kena 2. Pakomio Maori-Ure Kino

3. Angata 4, Tepano Rau Hiva

5. Ivlaanga 6, 1 ̂  Ringa
?• Renga Rite 3. Vero Tangata
9» Te Hei 10. Liatias Punahae

II. Marate Haka Hira 12. Gabriel Revahiva

13. Renga Roa-roa 'a Hare Kai Hiva

14. Papa Rona 15. Hereveri

This list may also be compared with the rough one which I have

drawn-up from my geneaology book. (Appendix I) According to
another tradition, a man called Peroa returned from Peru and

brought with hira a kind of bSLnana which still bears his name.
This information came from Melchor HUKI TEIiEI\^A, who gen-rally
receives all of his data from his grandmother, Maria Tekena.

With respect to returning Easter Islanders, and the
story of Ure Kino, it has occured to me that there is only one
ship knoTOi to have brought Islanders directly to the Island and
that was the Suerte, which brought Lay Brother Eugene Eyraud. As
his letter about his first nine raonth(j/l^ stay on the Island indi
cates, he arrived on the Island with four men and one woman, all
of whom apparently abandoned him quickly, as they never appear
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again in his relation. As the landing also took place at Anakena
beach, Ure Kino may have been among them.

Leon Tuki's tradition has it that the first person to

die of smallpox after the Pascuense began to return from Peru was

a young girl in the region of Ahu "Runga. She lived with four

other persons and they too soon died. Prom there, the disease

spread to the rest of the population. Another disease is also

reported as having come from outside of the Island and that is
one which particularly affected the family of Hei. He had fif

teen brothers ana/§ister^ This family lived at Ma'unga 'ori, on
the south coast. The sickness involved the knee swelling—up and

death soon followed.

There is a story known by various people about dogs

devouring the dead and near dead who ware too weak to resist.

The story was made more precise by Maria Tekena. In 1863 - that

is, after the raids, but before the arrival of Brother Sugene -

a ship arrived at Ovahe. It was an American ship and it carried

"dogs good for snow." They were big a,nd the ship was going to

use them dirring its voyage. However, the food gave out on the

ship and the dogs were put ashore at Ovahe just after the sickness

started (?). These huge dogs, which had not been seen on the Is

land before, went from house to house and cave to cave and ate
the sick people. Maria Tekena knows what such dogs look like now

as she saw the same ones that her elders had told her about when

the American Admiral Byrd arrived in the 1930's on his way to

the South Pole onj^expedition.

Leon Tuki says that a man who took care of him when

he was young, was called Mata Kau Va'e. He used to live in Mata-
veri. After the sickness had started, three men from the north

coast (where the disease eventually took fewer lives) went wallcing

along the south coast, the home of their traditional enemies and

where the majority of the peoolc who fell ill died. The three
men designated themselves titles in the following way:

Ngure kape o te miro

Vaka Ariki(father of
Hanga Rau) He "first mate" o te miro

Mata Roa He mataroa

As noticed by various 19th century visitors to Raster Island, the

Islanders knew well the composition of a ship's crew and the
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various officers. Ngure, the grandfather of ray neighbour, Juan
RIROROKO MAHUTE, designated himself "Captain," while Mata Roa

("eyes long" or "sharp eyes") called himself simply "sailor,"
v/hich also happens to be his name. Vaka Ariki, like Leon when
he told me the story, used the English, "first mate." Then,
they went walking in the devastated section and if they met some
one, they v/ould pretend to be from a ship just off of the coast

and would ask: "I hia kanakita o te henua i mate?" (How many
little kanakas are dead in this land). It was seen as a joke
and they walked from Hotu Iti to Vinapu and then to Mataveri,
where they met Mata Kau Va'e and asked him their question.

Another storjr known by many concerns Kite Rangi, who
went on a merchant ship and one day found himself in a place

called, "Paka te Mayo," in Peru. He remarked that it was a poor
place. There, he met a woman whose husband was a Pascuense and

had stayed behind after the raids. The exact time of the arrival

of Hito's ship to Peru is unknown, but it must have been before

1888, for he was back on the Island then. For phonetic chancres
from the Peruvian original to a Pascuense pronunciation, I have

supposed this to be the north peruvian port of Pacasmayo.

There are other stories of subsequent Pascuense travelling
between their time in Peru and their return to the Island, but
they are not directly related to the Peruvian episode. One last

story, hov/ever, I will quote from the Pascuense original, as
Leon Tuki told it to me:

V/hen the Peruvians arrived here, they tied up
people. Tori arrived. He went to a place called
Ana 0 None. The bullets of the rifle of a man [slaver]
ran out. 'Alien he [Torij arrived at Ana o Wono, he met
this Peruvian man. Tori ran after him. Vftien Tori ran
after him, he was very close. There, and by a hut, he
shouted, "Hey, young man, whore are you running off to."
Turn around and lets fight. Turn around and let's
fight. Let's malce war. vdiere are you running off to?"
He ran to Ana o Nono. He ran away to Pou a hare. "Hey
yooing man, where are you running to. Wait..." Tori
was right behind him. "Turn around so that we can fight,
where are you running off to." Tori could easily have
thrown his mataa Cspear] and have killed t'lat man, but
he did not want to throw at the man's back. "Turn
around with your face at me so that I can throw and
we can fight." That's how he shouted. "V/here are you
running off to, young man. Turn around and let's
fight." They arrived at Apina Kui. They arrived at
the same time. Tori shouted the same thing. "Hey,
young man - where are you running off to? Turn around
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and let's fight. They arrived at Puku Paka Kina.
V/ell. He shouted again the same phrase - Tori's
cry. [The peruvian] captured that part of the phrase
that said, "he pea." At the same time, a boat from
the [peruvian] ship came ashore, having seen the chase.
It came to shore this boat of the ship. The man ran
away and arrived at the place called Apina Iti and there
he left. At that place, that man went directly down
to the boat. This man [Tori] stayed up above. They
took him [the peruvian] away.

Now, this [next part] happened in the time of
Paea [Tati Solomon, Manager of the Easter Island
ranch for John Brandor from about 1877 to 1888]. Now,
a ship arrived here and that same man [peruvian] came.
He was the one that in pascuense is called by the name,
"Tono Panioro"[this has no meaning in pascuense and is
thou^iht by Leon to be a Spanish name that was deformed
by the Pascuense]. I don't know what is his original
name, but they always said "Tono Panioro." That was
the name that they called him. Well, then. Paea went
on board the ship and the man asked Paea. You see,
when that ship arrived, this man came in that ship.
"Ask when you go back on shore if there is a man who
was aroimd when we came hero to tie people up who
chased me and shouted, "ki pea taua." In Spanish he
asked this. His conversation was in Spenish, but the
part, "ki pea xaua," was just like that. Ask about
a man who chased aftv;r me and said this phrase - "he
pea.' He shouted, 'he pea.' And when we arrived at
Apina, I climbed into the boat. Well, he saved my
life. I tell you, I want to meet that man. Perhaps
he died orperhaps he still lives. I want to give
him presents like blankets, tobpcco, "paha-paha"[meaning
unknown]. I want to give gifts to that man because
he didn't kill me and for that that he shouted at me."

Good. Paea said, "All risht," and returned to shore
and asked about who chased a peruvian man in the time
when the peruvians came to tied up the pascuenses and
shouted, "Ki pea taua." That is the only thing that
is remembered, "ki pea, ki pea." That was the only
phrase that he cauglit. Tori said that he was the man
and that he chased him from Ana o Hono to Apina Iti.
"I will tell him, old fellow, what this phrase means
that I shouted at him. I said, "don't run away young
man. Turn aroimed with your face to me so that we can
fight. I don't want to throw my lance at your back.
I could have easily thrown my raataa [lance] cl"t y O 13.2?
back and have killed you, but J d.-i iin't wx.rt to .
VThat I wanted was for you to stop, turn you face so
that we could fight together. That's what "he pea"
means when I shouted it at you." That's what he
told that man. That's what old man Tori said. Paea

returned to the shin. He tola the man. "That man
is alive. He explained the conversation up there on
the ship. "That phrase that was shouted at you means,
' V/here are you. going, turn around your face, wait and
let's fight." "That's what it means." "He didn't
wish to cut you with his mataa from behind. You would
now be dead with his mataa. He didn't wish to cut you
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from behind. 'Turn yoiar face first and wait so that
we can fight.' That was the phrase that he shouted at
you. That was the phrase when you fled. That man is
here." [The peru.vian said] I love this man and I want
to carry him my gifts, blankets, tobacco, pipes."

Because of these acts which occured so long ago, the

pascuense have a special dislike to all (nearly) Peruvians who

have come to their Island. Anti-peruvian feelings on the part

of some Chileans from the mainland may also play a part in

keeping this near hatred alive,

2) ♦ The modem stories

These stories, especially in recent years as pascuense

travel off the Island has increased, have abounded to the point of

absurdity. An example of this is that the Chavez family on the

Island always feels a close kinship to any person with the surname,

"Chavez," when they come from Peru. They are the only Peruvians

given an unambigious welcome on Baster Island. In the Pascuense

case, all persons with the family name of Chavez are ultimately
related to one man in the last century called, Te Ave. Because

of the close phonetic resemblance between the pascuense initial
"t" and the Chilean Spanish "ch" and the Ghilean tendency to drop
terminal consonants, "Te Ave" (a personal name converted at bajv-
tism to a surname) became "Chavez." Thus, the lil&ihood of any
other pascuense who went to Peru also being called, "Te Ave" and

following the same phonetic changes in the Peruvian context would
be very small.

In late augtist of 1972, the story started to circulate
that a Peruvian singer by the name of Alberto Pate had appeared
on Radio Americas (Lima). Pate is also a pascuense surname. Later
versions of the story added that this same singer had acknowledged
his pascuense origins.

Finally, there wa,s the hope of at least one Islander

that any possible relatives in Peru might be wealthy or have lands
that the Pascuense could claim, as they have done and are trying
to do with their relatives in Tahiti,

By far, however, the largest group of stories ultimately
came from a Pascuense travelling businessman who spent many years
in Continental Chile called, Jose Kahoe. I have eight first re

ferences in my notes to his stories and many more supposed references
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He used to live in Colina near Santiago de Chile and was married

to Victoria Elena HEREVERI PAKARATI. He died of stomach cancer

in 1971 while still on the Continent and rarely returned to the

Island.

One story is that he went to Peru on a business trip and

there met a Sr. Pakomio who took him to the house of a Pua family.

He also met a "Teave family" and reported that in the south of Peru

all of the Pascuense had lived in a large walled fundo and that
outsiders were not allowed to live with them. Angelina ATAH PAKOMIO

knows the same story and claims that Jose has the address of the

Peruvian Palcomio^s, but lost it when he fought with his wife.

According to another story, Jose hahoe and a Teniente

Riveros of the PACH (Chilean Air Force) went to Peru and there

they met a pascuense descendant of the GhavezCs.

The existance of Chavezes in Peru (as mentioned above)

w ith the story coming from various sources, is believed or at

least related by a number of persons. Jose Kahoe's name is often

given as proof. ^
A man whose stories I tend to doubt

retired official of the Chilean Army.

is known in most respects to be an

honourable and hard-working man.

I first heard his story on 21.9.972 and I checked it

again on 20.2.973. I't was on the re-telling that I began to lose

a bit of faith, for he then acknowledged that the first person to

meet these descendants was Jose Halioe.

In any case, the first version I have included as a

Xerox of three pages of my notes. (Appendix II) In the second

version, he said that the place where he had met "Abuelo Hitorangi,"

was Tacna in the south of Peru. He also said that the old man

used, "old language" to greet him and recited:
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Koho raai koe iVelcome

kai a nua era Brin.^ me that mother

illai a koro era Brinv me that father

Mai te kainga Bring me the land

Mai vai a potu te rangi Bring me the water

of the extremes of the sky.

This is perfectly good ^ascuense, but there is nothing strange or
"old" about it. It is also strange that the old man should have
greated Leviante's raother( "nua") when she could not possibly have
been there. "Bring me the water of the extremes of the sky,"
which, while being poetic, is hardly "old" or special. In my
second interview, he also claimed that the old man had two boys
and one girl and that the two sons had promised to come to Pascua
one day. He also said that his son Alberto had met a pascuonse
descendant while in military service in Arica, in northern Chile,

The next group of stories, which also enjoy a certain
popularity, are those brought back by some of the forty odd fascuense
young men who have been conscripts in the Chilean Army, in Arica.
According to these stories, when the first group of fascuense con
scripts arrived in Arica, a group of them were playing the guitar
and singing m front of the main military post, the Rancagua regiment.
An older woman, who was said to be a descendant of the fascuense
in Peru, invited them to her house and has continued to invite
other conscripts since to visit her family. She is married to
"a thilean." Stories vary that there is one family or two families,
but the ascription of pascuense descent is constant. I secur/cd
the address of one of these women, Gabriela Chavez.

The last of the modern stories is one which eventually
comes from Martin RAPU PUA which he, in turn, received from his
mother. Three uncles of his grandfather were taken away in the
Peruvian raids. One was Bmilio, who returned and stayed to die
in Tahiti, the other was Eduardo, who eventually came to live in
Valparaiso, Chile, and the name of the third is unknown, but he
is thought to have lived in the south of Peru. Emilio figures in
the Tahiti land claims registered in 1887, while the son of Eduardo
(also (Hilled Eduardo Pua) is suoposed to have come to the Island
in 1956 as an official on the Alii pen, a vessel of the Haberbeck
Company. V/hen he came to the Island, he told Pilomena Pua (Martin's
mother) about their mutual ancestor's adventures in Peru. According



Peruvian eleven

to my informant and his brother, iCduardo Pua still lives and is

in Valparaiso. Further, a certain Carolina Pua works in the

City Hall of Valparaiso in the Health Section. The relationship

between Eduardo Pua and Carolina Pua was not specified.

A final short story is told by Pedro TEAO RIFOROKO,

who lives in Valparaiso. V/hen he arrived in Valparaiso fresh from

the Island a man on the dock helped him to find his way. This

man explained that his grandfather was a ̂ ascuense who had gone
to Peru in the last century as a slave and that his family came

from Hakarava. After the man helped Pedro Teao out, he disacoeared

and was never seen again.

The latter two cases have yet to be investigated here in

Valparaiso.

In addition to these stories from the Island, there

were also other items which led me to consider the trip to Peru

and northern Chile.

B. A STATUE exists in the British I.TuseiAra (London) v/ith

the follov/ing entry in the catalog:

Nro. 8700. Easter Island.

Wooden figure in the form of a man, with a
fish's mouth, and finny hands. The eyes inlaid
with shell and obsidian. At the back of the
neck a pierced projection. Prom the Cliincl.a Is.
Peru. Presented by A.'W. Pranks, Esq, 29.Oct.,
1872 ( Boucard) .

Ho other information is available at the present time about how

this object came to London or, even, the kind of wood out of which

it is made. Through the kindness of the British Museum, I securred

three photographs (different angles) of the statue to take with

me to Peru. The style of the statue is undoubtedly from Easter

Island and the motif is a well-known one. It is, in reality,

a tangata moko (man lizard).

C. A REPORT written by M. Eucher Henry about his

mission to Chancay details the presence of Polynesian agricultural

workers in this valley in I8n3. The report was sent to me by

11.E. Maude.

D. IN PO;{TPOLIO 138, NO. 3b OP THE ARCHIVE OP THE ARCH

BISHOP OP SAi'^TIAGO, with the date of 2. Becember, 1869, a certain

Pierre Mau sold his house and property on Easter Island to the
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Catholic Mssion and asked that two hmdred and fifty francs be

paid to him personally and a sum of six hundred and fifty francs

be sent to Lima for the Reverend Mother Superior of the K-uns of

the Sacred Hearto

E, FINALLY, DR. RAMON CAMPBELL, who lived on Easter Island

for one year as the medical doctor and who has published a book

about the Island is is about to publish another, tells that when

he went to Ilatarani in 1970, he and his wife went by ^axi to
Areq-uipa, in the south of Peru, for a tourist visit. On the way

back to the port, in a taxi, the driver said that about one himdred

years ago, a group of Indians from across the ocean came to the

area. They arrived sick and were put into warehouses to be isolated

from the population. There, they died and were buried in a special

ceme/tary near Hatarani. When Campbell got to the ship with this
news, the British Consul in Antofagasta, who v/as travelling on the
ship, told him to wait for dinner to see a certain Ernesto Jeager

who was said to have had a large collection of ^ascuense objectso
The man never arrived on board for dinner and the ship sailed.

Campbell wrote to Matarani twice and on the second time received

word that Jeager had died.

Before leaving for t'-e trip to Peru, letters of intro

duction were sent from Canberra and by me to various suspected

points of interest. Every effort was made to contact as many of

the places as possible so that time could be saved once in Peru,

Though not all of the above is related to the investi

gations which follow, I have included it here so as to be a

general report to H.E. Maude about information relating to

Peruvians on Easter Island.

II. Itinerary

26.5.973 - 2.6.973 La Serena-Coquirabo, to visit
Dr. Alfredo Cea and former

■'overnor of Enster Island from

1.934-1.936,+1937, Hemann Coriiejo,

3.6.973 - Microbus, fr. La Serena to Arica.

4.6.973 - 7.6.973 Arica, + travel to Tfollendo, Peru

8.6.973 - 10.6.973 Lollendo-Matarani

11.6.973 - Areeaipa + travel to Lima

12.6.973 - 29.6.973 Liraa-Callao
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30,6.973 - 4.7.973 Ica-Pisco-Chincha Islands

5.7.973 - I.Iicrobus to Arica from lea

6.7.973 - 10.7.973 Arica-Tacna, with evenin,^: flif,ht
to Santiago

III. Results- in:

Little time was spent at first in Arica as all of the

people that I wanted to visit were either in Santiago or, in the

case of one, in Spa.in.

A. Mollendo-T!atarani

In Kollendo, the town in which most who work in the new

(25 years) port of Matarani live, I rapidly located information
about the German, Arnasto Jeager. I did not use his name, but

was led to him through questions among the dock workers in the

port of Matarani. Jeager was a former Manager of the Mauricio

Hochschild Company and lived a solitary life. I did, however,

manage to speak to a niunber of people who knew of him. His col

lection, according to his housekeeper for many years, was a result
„  . wCvS fvvcAS ct Q

of his travels and we re souveni^rs, which included a pascuence

moai kava-kava, as well as a stone Inca figure which dispensed ci

garettes out of its mouth and had a cigar lighter in its head.

I carried with me a small ;pascuense carving just to elicit such
information. The majority of the collection is still in the

storehouses of the Company in Matarani, as Jeager's sister in

Germany doesn't wish to be bothered with the shipping and custom^s

formalities. Her address in Germany for future reference is:

Prau Berta Haeusser,
Hauntstrasse, 151,
7119 borchteneberg,
GHRl'^iAWY.

The story that the taxi driver told Ramon Campbell could

be a confusion of one of two things. In 1871, a ship with membei-s

of a Peruvian military regiment came to what is now Matarani and they
carried b/^ubonic plague, which eventually wiped out the port of that

time, which was called Islay. The driver may also have confused

the ja^fstory with one from about the same time when a ship load
of Chinese coolies arrived in Aric^ (a Peruvian port, at that time)
and were put into warenouses because of yellow fe^ver tliat they
carried. These Chinese were buried in a special Chinese Cemetery,
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which is today largely in ruins. Information about these two
episodes in Peruvian history is contained in any good history
of the country, but I also purchased books dealing precisely with
these topics. I explored the still standing ruins of the old port
of Islay and ̂ otographed the salient features, but foimd nothing
resembling the cemet^y of the story. A search of a Peruvian
Atlas of the time which contained a number of town plans also
failed to reveal an "Indian cemet^ny," in the region of Islay.
Matarani, in the last century, in any case, existed as a place
najiie, further inland than the present-day port. Research also

showed that it is of Quechua origin and the same name exists in
three other parts of Peru. (Mariano Felipe PAZ SOLDAN. 1877.
Diccionario geografico estadistico del Peru. Lima).

I did not go any deeper into the Matarani matter and
consider that it was a false lead.

B. Lima

1). Personal contacts.

1 was fortunate in getting the cooperation of Hermann
Buse De la Guerra, a lecturer in geography, writer on South Sea-'s
topics and journalist for the leading Lima newspaper, ̂  Gomercio.
He agreed to publish a front page (Appendix III) announcement about
my work on 19.6.973 as a kind of call for help and, most important,
facilitated my ajcess to the very complete archives of ̂  Gomercio
(founded 1839) . ihis latter allowed me to photograph a number of
items for the context of the trade, as well as to photograph those
items which v/ere not available for Lucila Valderrama's thorough
exploration for H.H. Maude in 1970, as indicated in her letter of
16.6.970 to him. A Xerox copy of the listing of the items that I
photographed accompanies this report (Apoendix IV), as well as notes
I took on Items that I did not photograph. (Appendix V) . In ̂
Gomercio, I photographed seven categories of things:

*  in^h^trade^^ arrivals of all ships involved

t^ade"ifl862;^'''^°''^ involved in the
c). All articles speciFirally dealing with the presence

of Polynesians in Peru;

d). The context of contract labour in Peru with Chinese
and Indian ("Gholo") lab oarers;
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e). A full record of the trade situation in the Chincha
Islands, with monthly fi^^ures of extraction and ex
portation and changes in rdministration;

f) . iixamples of French antipathy towares the Peruvian
government at that time due to the war in Mexico and
vice versa;

g). The history and presence of smallpox in Lima-Callao
in 1863 and the Polynesians's contact with it.

Lucila Yalderrama G. of the National Library was consulted

for further paths to follow and these included the Mnist/ry of the
Interior and the Minist^ry of Finance. Neither of these, as 1 indi
cate below, proved to hold documentation that could be investigated

in the time available. That is, the possibility of finding something

existed, but it was a remote one.

1 also consulted with a number of Peruvian historians about

possible sources and archives, both public and private. These were

Felix Denegri Liuna, Jorge Basadre, Aleiandro Lostaunau and Fernando

Ponce. The latter shov/ed me a Chilean publication that published

much information about the Peruvian raids from the archi\'-es of

the Chilean Consuls in Peru at that time r

VDLIZ, Claudio. 1961. Historia de la marina

mercante de chile. Santiago de Chile, Ediciones

de la Universidad de Chile.

This latter lead will be followed-up in Santiago if time permits,

Denegri Luna confirmed a story on faster Island about a

Peruvian who had come to purchase stock from the Williamson, Bal-

four Company and who had been rebuffed by the Islanders. According

to him, Miguel Muelle Leon was the man, who t.iirty years ago went

to the Island. At first, he did not mention his nationality and

he had a very pleasant time. As soon as he said that he v/as

Peruvian, he had to return to the ship. An Engineer names Alberto

Chaparro Melendez had told Denegri Lima about the episode.

With respect to Chancay, 1 spoke to Jose IvATOS MAR,

Director of the Institute of Peruvian Studies, he and his colleagues

had carried out extensive studios in the valley of Chancay and

he informed me that if Polynesians has been in the haciendas of this

area, then he had never come across any traces of them. Someone

with a great deal more time could profit from a thorough investi

gation of the few individual hacienda archives remaining, as well
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as an examination of the archives of long-established notaries in

the area.

Luis Ivlilliones, who has recently published a small book

on black and Chinese workers in Peru, could only provide me with

comparative information from these similar cases. Ke noted that it

would be unlikely that the Pol^mesians had retained any vestiges
of their original names, as there were strong supersiitions in the

work gangs against unbaptised workfellows,

Pablo Macera, and others, informed me that Port Captain
archives and most archives from the Merchant Marine of the time

had been lost in the burning of many public buildings in the War

of 1879 with Chile.

Jorge Basadre, v/hose history of Peru since the Reoublic

of I82I is now into fourteen volumes, suggested that any serious re

search into Peru's history must be done in Washington, B.C. (USA)
where a better collection of archives has been maintained in the

Library of Congress. This is particularly true in the case of

periodicals.

I also spoke with Heraclio Bonilla, who is completing a

study of French and Bn'-^lish relations with Peru in the nineteenth

century. He informed me that no records of use were available in

Peru and that I would have to go to the respective archives in

France and Hngland.

2). Archives consulted

Through the above persons, I foimd out about and fre

quently got information about a number of archives in Peru

The Archives of the luinistcry of the Government (today,
called, Mnistery of the Interior) were not actually consulted,
but I was informed by a member of the Investigations Section, who
did try to find out for me, that nothing remained from that period
in the Mnistery archives and that their records are periodically
destroyed in any case.

I'ly visit to the Ministery of Hconomy led me to believe
that the only possible information that might be found there would

be the papers on the indemnization paid by the Peruvian government
of thirty thousand pesos in 1863. These records too are disorganised
and periodically "cleaned out" as well. The Director of the Archives,



♦  ■

Peruvian seventeen

Durant Plores, was in Europe when I called and was not available

in Lima during my time and so could not personally be consulted.

Photographic archives turned up only one photograph of
Callao in 1860 and this was copied in the national Library. The
Archives, in general, of the national Library suffered heavily in
the War of 1879 with Chile and also with the complete burning of
the National Library in 1943» by accident.

A cursory search in the A^^chives of the Archbishop in
Lima failed to tum up any important informations, but a more

thorough one might. Those in charge of the archives, however,
felt that research would be carried out in the actual parish

records. The time was not available, however, for me to under

take such a task.

The Archives of the government company in charge of

the development of the Chincha Islands, among other things,

SENAPER (The National Company for Fertilising Agents) were equally
barren for the time period involved, though I was promised some

copies of old black and white photographs by the Director of the

Department for Guano, Demosthenes CABRERA QUIROZ. These have yet
to appear by post.

A great deal of hope had been put into finding something
in the archives of the French Embassy. According to M. Jean de

Souza, the Consul with whom I spoke on 19.6o973» these old archives

had been packed off and sent to Prance some two months previous to

my arrival when the Embassy and Consulate moved from their old

quarters on Nicolas de Pierola to Plaza Prancia. I have initiated

efforts to have a friend of mine, a trained librarian who is also
French, to make a thorough search in Paris for these records.

'The most rewarding suggestion for archives was made to

me by Felix DETjEGRl LUNA, who recom.mondod that I examine the books

of the Charity Hospital (La Beneficencia) of Lima. In Appendix VI,
I have included the results of my search, which is the names of
one hundred and fifty five Polynesians who died of various diseases

between 27.6.863 and 10.8.867. At the end of this, I made up some

tables shov/ing the distribution of diseases, ages, and, more im
portant, parts of Lima (by parish) from which these deceased ori

ginated. A later researcher with more time could then examine these

parishes in detail in order to find records and possible evidence
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of descendants. The Parish of St. Ane's should prove to be par

ticularly interesting.

These records in Lima indicate that these Polynesians

undoubtedly worked as domestic servants in the houses of v/ell to

do Limenos, whose surnames they often bear. This latter assumption

is heavily supported by the fact that Polynesians were advertised

in the press for this purpose, as well as being reported as having

escaped from such private homes. I have photographed these adver

tisements from ̂  Comercio.

Attempts were made to find more complete listings of

patients from the Lima Hospitals from that time as well as to

Ibcate similar records for Callao, but these do not exist any longer.

The Lima records are missing in a more complete form and the Callao

ones are not to be fomd at all.

Municipal Archives from the time were also sought in Lima

and Callao, but these were not found, many of them having been des

troyed due to various causes.

3). Other investigations.

During the research in Archives, attempts were constantly

made to try to find descendants of the Polj-nesians by newspaper pub

licity and by personal searches with photographs of Pascua and ex

amples of Pascuense carving. Ko certain information was gained from

these constant questionings. Both my wife and I practically

memorised a patter to explain our presence in Peru and we solicited

information from all with whom we came into contact. V/e found

people generally helpful, but not sufficiently informed.

In the National Library, a series of drawings and en

gravings of places connected with Polynesians in Peru was copied

from:

PAZ SOLDAIx, Mariano Felipe. 1865

Atlas geografico del Peru. Paris, Libreria
de Permin Didot Hermanos, Hijos y Cia.

}

Archive and historical questions were complicated by the

fact that the Polynesians probably did not retain any vestiges of

their Island names and so only archives which showed the place of

origin of the persons in it were of use in my research.
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C. Gallao;

As mentioned, archive sources in Gallao were non-existant
and so, by an idea given to me by ray wife, I went to the Old Peoples'b
Home, operated by N-uns:

Casa Asilo de las Hermanitas de
los iincianos Desanparados,

Constitucidn, 779

Gallao.

There, I enco-untered Angel Narvay, who claims to have been bom in
the Department of Ica on 8.7.855. He could still speak with diffi
culty, but moved in small steps and was hard of hearing. He was
also loosing his vision. He had lived in the region of Ghincha
as an agriculturalist during the 1870's and his clearest memory
was of the vVar of 1879, which he insisted upon relating in great
detail as it affected him. He did not recognise any of the clues
as to "canacas," "polinesians," "Indians from the Ocean," etc.,
that I gave him and did not know anything about the Ghincha Islands.
In the uwo hours that I spoke to him, ho was very eager to spealc
(about the V/ar), but professed ignorance of the events of my in
terest .

In a personal search in Gallao, my wife encoimtered a
woman called, "Teresa Kanaka," but she turned out to be of Japanese
descent. The shov/ing of the statues only turned up a retired Danish
shipwright who sold small Pascuense statues, among other trinkets.
He was r

J or gen Bjelke,
2. de kayo, 749/301,
Gallao.

The library and Institute of Gulture did not have any
inf ormation,

D. Pisco-Ghincha Islands^

Through the Regional Muse-um of Ica, I contacted a local
historian in Pisco (the Port for the Ghincha Islands), Luis Velarde.
He was not familiar with the Polynesian episode, but took me to the
Pisco Inspector of Gulture, Ivlarnerto GASTILLO KHGROH, who has written
possibly the most complete compendi-um about Pisco, Monografia de
Pisco, published by himself some years ago and now out of print.

Gastillo told rae as much as he knew about the operations
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on the Ghincha^s using Chinese workers. He knew nothing about the
Polynesians working there, but he did confirm that such foreign

workers were mostly not allowed to keep their original names, as

persons unbaptised were called, "ivlorros (i.Ioors)," and were thought

to be responsible for work accidents. He also explained that at

that time, Pisco was not the Port of the Chincha/s, but that v/or-

kers were brought directly from Callao, lived on the Islands and

then were taken back to Callao after the period of guano extraction,

I mentioned the theory expressed by Campbell and Silva

in their paper on the Polynesians in Peru about workers from hac

iendas being used on the Islands and he said that if there was

a connection, it was not with haciendas in Pisco provinceo At that

time, there was only one hacienda and that was Caucato, which had

a specialist production in chancaca and rum from their sugar cane

plantations and employed almost exclusively resident black workers.

He suggested that I go to the Parish Church in Pisco and

consult the Parish records, which survived the V/ar of 1879 through

clever priests hiding their records and relics in the thick chtrrch

walls. During the time of work on the Islands, there was always a

resident priest.

As noted in the two photocopies from ray notes in Appen

dix VII, I did find two books from Kuestra Senora de las Eercedes

de las Islas de Chincha, which was the church on Islands during

the period of my interest. I have photographed the marriage and

death books, but no Polynesian names nor origins were encountered
in any of these. Still, these books do point to a very large

foreign and Peruvian setblement on the Chincha/s at the time of

the supposed Polynesian arrivals there. A further search is being
carried out by the Spanish parish priest. Father Antonio, in more
detailed archives and the results of that are to come by post.

No mimicipal or charity hospital (or any other) records

exist from the 1860's because of their distraction during the War

of 1879 with Chile.

On 3.7.973, througli the help of the Pisco Port Captain

and the local manager of SHKAFHR at La Pimtilla (near Pisco), I

was able to visit the Chincha Islands. As time was limited and the

sea journey takes about two hours each way, I chose to go to the

Island with the greatest concentration of people in the l86o/s, as
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a small map in the above-named Atlas indicates (Appendix VII)»

This was North Chincha. The time allowed was also short as there

was no possibility of staying the night and the sea was too rough

for travel in the afternoon. My investigations were hamipered by

the need to respect the guano producing birds, which are very ner

vous and scare easily if approached.

The skipper of the tug that took me out, Victor PAREDNS

SIPUENTES of the "Remoquedor Tommy," had been employed with SENAPER

for fifteen years. He came from Yimgay and had started working as

a common guano extractor and^so^knew the Islands well. I showed

him the photograph of the old plan that I carried to try to elicit-

some information about what he might have seen. He said that no

thing remains of the two to^^ms indicated, but that in the place that

I have marked on the plan, he recalls that corpses, with their skin

dried and clothes in tact, were often dug up while guano was being

excavated. I summise that these bodies are those of the Europeans

and Peruvians whose names appear in the church books that I photo

graphed.

This notion was further supported by Mario ALLGCACO

GHOd^A, the young Quechua who is one of the two men who live all

year around on the nearly deserted Island and who was my guide.

He said that the poor and especially the Ghinese (about whom he

knew) V'jhen they died, were taken out to sea with a heavy weight

and their bodies thrown into the sea. He also knew about the place

where bodies are dug up on North Chincha, but was quite surprised

to see the two tov/ns indicated in the map, as he knew nothing about

them. He did, however, knew about a rotted stump along the shore

near those places which :i s all that remains of an old loading dock.

He recommended that when the Chief Guard, Eduardo Melendes, returns

from other guano extractions on the Island of Asia in November of

this year, that I write to him as he has worked for the Compaiiy for

a long time and knows much about the history of the place. Chief

Guards have a tradition of passing away along stories about the

past of the Chincha's from older to younger. I will write him from

Easter Island,

It occured to me that Peruvian historians have missed

much by not having attempted to write a social history of the ex

ploitation of the Chincha Islands.
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E. Arica-Tacna

Arriving in Arica, I returned the next day to Tacnao

'Transport between the two towns is very easy. Through Jorge Basadre,

a native of Tacna, I had the name of the Directoress of the Tacna

Institute of Culture, Virginia LAZARO VILLAPlEL. She immediately

put me into contact with a local historian whose local interests,

among others, include the Chinese migrations to the area. He is

Lids Cabanaro.

He informed me that he had never come across any persons

with Oceanic or Polynesian origins, let alone Pascuense, though he

did have thorough records of Chinese who had come to Tacnao

The charity hosoital records for Tacna had disapneared

in a fire in the early 1860's and because Tacna was a Chilean

possession from 1879 to 1929» the best collections of old dociments

for the area would probably be fo-und in Santiago de Chile or in the

fonner centre of that part of Peru before 1879» which is Iquique,

now deep into Chilean territory.

He suggested that I might make a re-study of the Parish-

records for Samo, where Chinese had worked in asane plantations

between 1860 and 1870 and also have a loolc at the general Parish
records for Tacna, Unfortunately, the lack of time and a proscect

V\o\
forf,enco\mtering easily the information forced me to abandon this

research, Cabanaro has promised to write me if he should encounter

anything in his researches relevant to my work.

The last point to be investigated was the so-called des

cendants of Pascuenses living in Arica. Through a contact with Juan

ARAKI KAITUOE, I met Pablo HIREYIRI TEAO, The former has been

established for some time in Arica, working for Si'ITEL, the Chilean

Telephone Company, while the latter had ^ust completed military ser
vice in precisely the Rancagua Regiment in Arica, V/e also carried

a letter for Hereveri from his mother on Easter Islando Araki knew

nothing of ^ . but it was through them that I en

countered Gabriela Chavez and Gustavo COhTRERAS ORELLANA and their

families.

The two families in question first began to have contact

with Pascuense conscripts in 1968 and, on the I4, April, I968, they
made a list of the first group that they had entertained in their
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homes. It carried tv^/enty one names and, they assured me, that they
have attended to at least another twenty since then. Their interest

53"was simply one of curiosity - Llrs. Contreras first saw the boys,
as they had told me, playing Pascuense songs in front of the Regiment
and invited them home for their ovm interest. They are not Pas

cuense nor do they have any inkling that there is any other con

nection with the Pascuense than just their own friendliness. They
have no economic ends for their help and appear to be simply generous
people. Gabriela Chavez's mother v/as Bolivian, but that is about

as exotic as the family lines become. Thej'' said that after the

first group, other Pascuense conscripts would arrive to their homes

with a special map, showing the route with all details, from the

Regiment Rancagua to their doorstep. These two families were known

to be helpful and kind people. For example, in Hereveri's case,
Contreras provided him with a job in the bicycle factory, through
a mutual friend.

It is my opinion that the Pascuense with whom I spoke
felt a special closeness to these people and perhaps could not con-

cieve that a Chilean, whom their parents had always told them to
distrust, would want to do them disinterested good. Their way of
dealing with this anomalous situation was to try to imagine them
as somehow related. Disinterested family relations are under

standable, but a Chilean simply helping out without other ends is,
unfortunately, rare in the Pascuense experience. I could cite
other examples where other helpful Chileans have been given kin

ship status for their kind acts.

T'ly penultimate naragraph in this section may also explain
"the Pascuense" that Rahoe met, as they too were kind to him.

IV. Other results of the Peruvian trip;

Before actually arriving in Peru, I had already received

a letter from:

Ilaria kercedes Rotalde,
Congregation of the Sacred Hearts,
Avenida Alvarez Caldorbn, 761,
San Isidro, 27 - Lima,

in which she explained that she had had a look at her Congregation's
archives and had found nothing about Pierre IJau's gift nor the pre
sence of Pascuense or other Polynesians in Peru.
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An interesting prospect was offered to me by Jose IvlATOS
MAR, Director of the Institute of Peruvian Studies. He manifested
a strong interest^ in publishing a small booJc about the Polynesians
in Peru. He projtsed that I write a chapter on Pascuense traditions
about the Peruvian raids and my Peruvian research. Then, as
another chapter, he would publish the paper that Ram6n Campbell
and Jorge SILVA OLIVARES wrote. Finally, a Spanish translation
of the letter of the French M. Eucher that H^E. Tlaude sent me could
be included. For using the latter, of course, I will have to have
Maude•s pe rmi ssi on.

I

As a result of my contact with Matos and the Institute,
I secured the Campbell-SiIva paper, a copy of which I can send at
a later time.

I do not feel that ray contribution to this volume v/ill
in any way betray ray confidance nor compromise ray obligations to
Maude. Before absolutely accepting and completing this task,
however, I must have his permission. This additional task would
not measurably interfere with my other research that I am at pre
sent carrying out here in Valparaiso.

Should the publication be possible, it will mean that
Peruvian students who read the book will come up with valuable
additional information that was not possible to obtain durinv my
short visit. The pointf of the publication, as Katos'and
I agreed, was to call attention to the historical problem, to
show what had been done in Peru and in Chile on the problem and to
suggest further avenues of research.

Arriving in Chile, I again contacted Campbell (whom I
had met for the first time in Lima on 17.6.973) and he agreed to the
publication of his paper in the volume. I also renewed my contact
with Jorge Silva, whom I had previously met on ilaster Island and
we decided that it would be advantageous to both of us if we'could
do it together. Thus, instead of mv Pa<^piioric,n

'  "'-y -t^ascuense stones only, then
would also be a larger section betniTinr. nr.
, , ̂ ^ retailing Peruvian and Chilean sourceswhich we would both write. He and I win hon-sv, i

,  . . will begin wo^^k on our resoectivesections while I am occuoied here in VpI nnn-ni -+.1
vaiparaioO with various other

sorts of topics. It is Matofe' s intenti nn +r, kt • j-i
4--U -^mention to publish the small volumebefore the end of the year.

Finally, l would like to make a snecial note of thanks for
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R.H. Howard and the staff of the Australian Embassy in Lima for

their cooperation in both the study and its practical side.

V. Budgetary notes.

I have continued the same system of collecting receipts
for all items during the time in Peru and connected with the trans

port to the North of Chile. The details of this will have to be

presented later, as the time renuired for this task is not now

available.

Neither the Universit.y nor H.E. T.laude are responsible

for any amounts in excess of the budgeted A$ 500.00 alloted for

this work and no expenses were incurred which were prejudicial

to the main requirements of my study.

One large effect on this bvidget was the obligation of

Paragraph Two of the Supreme Resolution of the Peruvian Ministery
of Foreign Relations, dated 21.3.972 that every tourist must ex

change a minimum of USS 8.00 per day per person while in Peru.

This meant that I was obliged to change US$ 16.00 per day during
the stay of my wife, my child and myselfo

This report is being sent to Canberra via the Australian
Embassy in Santiago de Chile to whom I am very grateful for assuring
the safe arrival of my report, A copy should be sent to H.E. Maude.

Grant McCall,

Conc6n, 30.7.973.
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Paecn.ense in Peru

Hito rnn^i - 21.7.■'72
Atamu Tekena Ini: Leviante ArnJci
Jos^ Nahoe
Dutrou-Bornier Appendix II
Juan Iraki Nai

Kotenene • f ousemr . t i on on 1 a.- • -uaae

In 196^, Levia.nte Iraki went to Lima as part of hin trainin/j, in
the Chilean arri,'/. "l-en he arrived, ,1 ournalists -as'-ed hi: i vvhero he
was from and he said Chile. They s^id what part of Chile end he said
the Pacific pa.rt. They said what part of that ■ he r- id J -la de
Pascua, [all'ths-t said "dth areat conviction and care so as to not
say one be-fore the other, I think] PreFtnmably, as a result of this
notice beiny published, he ot encountered in his hotel, in the centre
of Lima a fsjnily with an ai-hty-year old man.

The man, rho he only knew as"Abuelo 'litorang.i"[he secn.;ed re
luctant to tell me the fnjaily name], was eiahty years old and walked
with a stick. He was the a 3 arc sense .?.nd never knew his
■father, but his Peruvian firsiy^raised him and told him about his
backfround. He said that the old mn.n lookid just like the Hito
famdly. Now, after a while, another old Pascuonsa came to live in
his mother's hOT:ise and when the "abuelo" was younaer, he learned
a lot from the man.

Abuelo used old words that Leviante did not knov/, like "Umiki,"
meaning "egoism." The man's family cane from Rano Raraku to the Nii.
He mentioned the ns-mes of three place names that, when he hea,rd then,
Leviante had never heard before. Two of them that he remembered were*

■/ai apotu te rangi

Vai Taringa aku-aku.

How, this old man said that in 1375-1876, the Pascn.ense were
taken from the island to Peru in two ship loads. They ware talren
first to the Guanara islands.

Now, when the war of 1879 »y;wTwwt between Chile and Peru occured,
the Pascuense or, at lea.st, "the man who told the al uelo and the son
of the king of Pascua( Atamu Tekena ) wiiose name Leviante diin't re
member, were called to take part in the Battle of Tacna. There, the
Peruvians lost and the king's son was killed and his comnanion was
made prisoner.

The old man then said to Leviante that Tacna oumht to be given
to Chile and not be kept by Peru. That this case should be out ijefore
the United Nations to decide in retribution for the Pascuense having
fou'-'ht in that battle. As 1 .asked several times about this, I'm sure
that I didn't get it too wrong. The Abuelo offered to talce Leviante
to Tacna to show him the exact trench where the king's son fell fightin
for the Peruvians.

Now, almost to corroborate this story, Leviante said that Jos^
Nahoe had gone to Lima and had stayed thr.ie months with that s'lme
family. \Vhe.n Josd and Leviante compared stories, they were the sarnie.

The old man also told about figjiting of w-arring tribes on the is
land.

Leviante said that he was ashamed that he wasn't able to mider-
stand ihe old ' s -'ords and so he told the Abuelo that he had left
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Baster Irl o^d five earlior aid had, -i;. eref ore, i oraottan
his laaaua."e. ' ' •*

Ha was 0-7 V i- Li ma ''or .lo-.irtaar. or fiftoan d yn, hut r-nrir^fl'
that time he went thre.^ limos to visit the hcvse in which the Abuelo
was livina.

The old Iran also told- him xaat the f .lil.v lias a ^ oai calldd
Puku oiihi-oixhi. how, he astad his f-ih t about tuic and his father
E-aid that the hooi now I a Ion •■■s to .is i -mi i v — Vie;,' . had won it by
conouest. jevhante s-'id to his f .then that he had no ri aht to the
Moai as he had won it hv co-rn uest and, -hieroj ore, still belonged* to
the old Hito iViiily -o.nd not to the Pate's.

How, when Leviante left Idraa, the old man gave him a Cxiranto
and he ore^-anted it to hirn in the correct way. That is, when the
C-uro.nto ms opened, Levia.-ite had to srnell the odor of the steam and
taJce out the -^irst chicken and bite its crest.

Then, he started to say that he had been \aiting a lon^': time to
give his blood for his coiuitry, Chile. Chile had he'loed him out and
he feels rreat shame that the son of the King of Bastar Island had
fourht in a battle against "his" Chile. He feels an obligation to
repa" this debt. He has baon waitin-'^ for a conflict to occur so that
he can give his blood. He was save'" years in the nrriy and fust left
exactly twenty d-ys ago. He r;;ac}'..ed the T-ado of First Lt.'

He feels that the Pascue*"se race is is good for -vork, cut has
a low moral character. It must be crossed with Chilean blood and
reoorssed ag^in and again, v/hen he said "Chilean," he also said
"Ara.cnnian" ?nd "Scanish," as examples of good blood. He wants all
of his kid" ■':o "o into the rsrm.y "^nd to serve their country.

'i'hen, he sot off onto a track which he reoeated riore than onedi; erent wf y. Jle said th-at even if his sons v/.nre f i-'hting for an
indeoendant liastor Island, he would defend thn,t from hapoenidg becausehe is first and foremost a Chilean. He would f i''ht his own Chilren
If it were necessary. *

Then, he slowly started to go into his family. His mother was
ij^portant to him. Che, Parapina Araki Pornier, when she died,called Leviante last into the room to give her last words. He is '

'Pc^^ogest in the family. He asked him to hold her in his arms and^he said that she has never asked any other service in her life from
him except now and that was to die for his countrv — to serve his

_ country. fa ^rve nio

hie, child, he was raised by Rapu's and, it seemed to him that
knL/'v.h wa.rted to recornise his existance. He did not
fathe^ u f"-ther was and was always asking everyone who is ry
his discovered, when he went to apply for his camet, that,.irth hadn't even been registered'.

the al out thirteen, his mother drag ed him by
toi,fi Plaza Libartad (near the church) and
point^fl + 4.U asking about his father and never to do it again. Sh€
vour Chilean flag flying above the square and said, "That isxaxner. Obey iti"

fortv-fn father, he believes, did finally recognize when he was
up L6vin«+ .vears old. He vas wearing his military uniform and he came9 and congr'^tulated him. It was very emotion for Leviante.
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He '.vent on to sa;^/ that he v"-:k xhe firrt i.ascuonse to r.o through"
full army C-idet tr'-ininy. He w- s chooen, b' the recently ass.aeinated
General Sohneidor, then hcd o" '• ■] e ec) ool, to carry the standard in
reccnition of this. It was clnr-ed to -nbLlish a" note tliat Leviante
was the -Pirot Papc:ie 'f e to be a soldie-'^, b-ot J.evj ante said no. The
First was actar'.j.ly, Juar: Araki H i, tv.e father of Paraoina A'raki. He
was in the im Reviment, w^iile "'aip.-.ceda was Pr j dent. ■'-'"o rave
his nam.e as "lol-an.t \ralci Hai, " -nd leviante said t-'.at lie had fourjht
in the civil wo.r of l."90. he ho.d sovc'teen '.'ears of sor'/ice, before
he was killed in b-attle.

He told r.e to yo to see Anelia Tenano, the -vife of Scuitiayo
Pa'carati, to . '.s'c at out his fx grandfahner ar.d about Amelia Teoano's
father's asse icion to be Oacicue of Hester Island.

on?he thre i men who went into the T.birina in I9I4 were Lateo
Veriveri, JosA Takarati and, Leviante's father, Dorainvo Pata.

Levi,a.'-te also claims descent fron Dutrou-"- ox'ni ir. iie said that
war ti_e first owner of Has tor I slajod. He had destroyed the church

so as to corral his animals and Levia.nte fe.i'ls th-at he . lay have been
somewhat correct in doin." this. All the r vne, he was a nirate. He
came to the part about Dutron-Pornirjr' s death, • .nd Jie s.id, •li th; yr'at
cererony, to rarrior mo, at . 'O c->uld not tell mewho itilled .liu yr ■ at
-r.'^ndfather. The descendajits of those who did still livne 1 thev ivould
think that ho still held it agoinst t;rir:i for tha.t. fe times
■and in dif'"erent times anolo.-'ised for not bei.i] - !. • to toll him who
had killed .Jiitroi;-'' .ornier.

He did, however, claim to have been the n.irson who went -and who
dug up Dutrou-lornier' s bones and who buried t.iieh-. the present tomb
over-looking the farabineros' s station, ife says th;'t he is the only
one to carry tl-e lornier aoellido today, as ho'ca"'Is hir-s'ilf Leviante
Araki Pomier.

I ask ,'d him whire his .n-^.me came from a.nd ne s- id that he really
didn't know. Some Japanese har/e said +hat it is similar to J.ac.anese
names, 1 :^t Leviante saii that he didn't knov/.

He told re that his oldest son is ivith JHTHL -.ind is living in
Arica. He is ."o ng to marry "a pure s-racan" on the klrd (Sunday) of
this month and Leviante is sending him a ne'vly slau'-ht.jr.jd sheep as a
present. lie is Hmilio Araki Tepano .and he was 3 years in ■^he army.
His otaer son, Jaa.n .Iraki Tepano, is still in the army and, I -vould
gather, on the continent.

Leviante was Georgina Riroroko Tuki's adoted fcat'ier.

1 met Juan Tepano Haituoe 'valking down tcvards she oort. He told
me a rather confusing story about Luis Riroroko Tolci robiing his
brother /alentin. The viejo, Ju ...n Riroroko was involved here in this. i
Juan Tepano stepped in and tried to solve the problem, '.'/hich he thought
*  vu yeste'r'day, LeviauUte Ar-^i advised the Carabineroa|of the ro ■ ®^y 32'^ Carabin ros came to ti :e cinema last night looking!

for him to esti_y. He refi.ised to come out. They stop-ed b." <his
morning^ at his house and he ne.'trl '' fou '~.bt vith them. He f ;el that the
matter is a family mat '^er and th-A- hie ^arabin }ros have no business in
it. Leviante ( el to^; T^mino c lie d him) feels that it is
a matter of law.
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